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At Dr Pepper Snapple Group we are growing

with flavor and whats more flavors are

growing as percentage of carbonated soft

drinks CSDs Having gained steadily on colas

over the past two decades flavors took the

lead in 2009 and now represent 50.4 percent

of all CSD retail sales in measured channels

As the undisputed leader in flavors

Dr Pepper Snapple Group is capitahzing

on this momentum We now hold more

than 40 percent dollar share of the flavor

category up 17 percentage points in 2009

On top of that our CSDs outperformed the

industry in both volume and dollar sales

in 2009 demonstrating the strength and

resilience of our brands amid softness in

the category
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We invite you to experience taste of

our achievements and the ways in which

our powerful flavor portfolio is laying the

founidation for future growth
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2009 DPS SHAREHOLDER RETURN
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2009 we geierated $865 mu1 of Si

from operati ig activities Oar st ong stable

cash flow allowed as to epay approxn uately

$550 million in lorg term oebt while

condnuing to irvcst grov rh oppo es

We aiso begs deployng excess cash in

shareho1der friendly ways md iding deciariig

our first ever divde id of $0.1b per stare or

the company comman stock and an tounc iig

plans to repurchase up to $200 mi lion

ou outstanding co trr ock over the

rextdtreeyeas

More ecen ly completed tho licer.sing

of certa brands to PepsiCo Inc fol vi ig

its acquis tiors of The Pepsi Bottlng Group
Inc ai Pep.iAmc rcas Inc As part of te

trnsactuon DPS received on. tur cash

payment of $900 nill on baore tax and

other reated fees and expense.s Having

used oortion of these proceeds to further

reduce our dcbt obligatons our total

outstnong cebt now sta ids at $2 b5

billio in nc th our target captal struc tu

approxi nately 2.26 times total de.bt to

EBITDA after certain adjustments vloreovr

our board autl or ted thc rcpurciase of an

additional $800 niiliort oi our outs ancing

common ock bring ng total are

reps rch.se a.thorzation to $1 bi9ioii

tc.5s nai woyeorsaf.erouig pub

nave achieved our gt rap ta structt re
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He piayed critical roie in our successTul

s..paration from Caobtry Sctweppes and led

signficant in ou systems and

fir ancial controls He so ilt tclcnteo and

highly effective finance and II garti7at on

re gratef il for Johns nany ccnti ibutions

our business
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is Marc ii EI.en sho II oin as iron Snap-on
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in srategy and opetators and wil pay ai

nportarut iok ir taking our business to the.

text lesel of financial aid operating success

Au iough tt econo nv corsumer

sper.dung are of expected to picic up unti

later this yet we reriain confident our

cosverful brand rt1c.lio our ibility to capute

ev sales and dstribuio wins ou .ontinucd

oc 01 cost ontro and out dedicated

er iployees ombind they prcbidc th

platorm to se ze opportu.iit es aid deliver

another yecr of solid financial esults ii 2010
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2009 product inovation focusee on bringing

new users to our bra ids tn shorCtein l1nc

extensions commementad by products with

multiple year growth plans The resu in

several eXcitIng innovations that are dris ng

consistent nomentum for theii traoemarks

Dr Pepper Cherry winner of the 2009 CSP

Retailer Choice Best New Product Award

was formulated to target the occasio use

who finds the taste Dr Pepper too strong

its launch in early 2009 Di Pepper

Cherry has ignited growth for the Dr Pepper

trademark up percent in volume grov for

the year It also nas driven trial and repeat

paiucu arly the critical coastal marKets

Cherry 7UP Anboxidant has hiought

functional benefits and great ft to the

trademark as 7UP not only outpe rormec

the lemondime category Out delvered positive

full year growth for the first time in 10 yea

Canada Dry is tpacing the category

with Canada Dry Green Tea Ginger Ae

creasing more than 20 percent in rs easured

channels and ccrtribung handsomely to

trademark volume growth of perce it

We also iefreshed two Core co isumer

favorites relaunching sparkling lemonace

within the Sunkist soda fami and

reformulating AW with rca aged vanilla

Seveiai of om new proon ts made big

splas ic Canaoa wher lotUs Truitsations

and Canada Dry Green lea Gir per Ale won

Product thc Year Canada ày cros in th cc

categorics the only co npany wOh multiple

ns 2010 novadon ll put rser moe
ne spin on core branos Ca ada with the

debut of Canada Dry Whi1e Tee Ginger Ale

with Raspberry

In the we ii introduce Cherry Crush and

energize tie orange segment ith the launch

ot Sunkst Solar Fusion 2010

Without question our revitalzation of

Snapple eremiun is the iargesr riakaover

weve eeer conducted on one ct our iconic

bra ds With Better Stuff message

improved taste sweetened with sugar

updated grapiics new packaging and

iational media campaig the brand

recaptu ing its original fun and quirky

peronaIity and consumers are responoi ig

Snapple returned to growth 04 2009

with premium volume and share up mid

sngie dgits

We also launcoed Snapple piemium six

pace new national takehone package

fo our piemium line whicn has added

nrementaI volume at higl er margin and

achievec neany 80 percent distrbution in

Sc first year Value focused consumers turned

to Snapple 12 packs of 16.9 ow value teas

and select markets enjoyed apple I9cant

value cans an offering we plan to expand

iationally With rmenergizeo pemium line

more comp.eiensive p0 tfolio offering and
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Is leading position the jc ice ais

2009 bolstered by Hawahan Punch and the

health and wellness messages arour Mott

125 YEARS 2010 AND STLL GROWNG

Increased media spending iew disrnburior

and strong retail programming drove growth

foi Mott apple juice anc Mot for Tots

lowersugar juice that mm itains the nutrient

uonter ott regula offwin In 2010

we II orovide more conrenient nutrition fo

iioms with Mott Medleys breakthrough

nrovaton that conbine the great taste

of Mo juice with wo rut ann cegetahle

servings per 8oz serving

favo he of sot ooers suc Pig value

Hawai an Pu ich suroassed volurer

expecta ions double digit growth airo

delighted consumets cite wo new flavors
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pIasli in sp ig 20

ri 2009 we ooosted ivestments behind

Hispanic programming across our portfolio

cluoing tiaveling Dr Peppr citO

oxperiecce called Vida3 Ac resilt of

these efforts and expanded dsirbrtion

Dr Peppei has increased volu re shaie in

nine of the top Hispanic markets In

fact volume for Dr Pepper up perce

the U.S Hispanic ma ket comoared to

percent deelee for total CSDs 7UP

also headlined Seveninima campaign that

connected with the natural energy fun

and spirit of Hspanc corsui ms

Well invest turther ii local and national

programs that connect with Hispanic

consumers ncloding greeter focus on our

iuice udtegory particuahy MoOs auc Claiatc

In 2010 7tJP will sponsor the atm Grammy

Awards and Dr Pepper ml sponso Premios

Juventud Hispanic youth awards

Our new Venom Energy branci oucds out

our portfolio its first full year Venom

Lnergy has cautu ed percent share

the $6 Lot er eg ink arket one

has significant distributo jpside in 2010

Venom Energys sponsorship of etti

Autosport and the 26 car dr yen by

Mmcc Andretti wil augme it our locaizcd

grassioots forts to build this bm id fom

the ground up
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Fosteting Awareness at the Fountain

The fountain is one of our most effective

sampling vehicles and key driver for

bottle and can sales so were pleased

to have gained better visibility at quick-

service restaurants Dr Pepper which was

available in approximately 60 percent of

US McDonalds restaurants in 2008 began

rolling out to all US restaurants in 2009

Our goal is to complete installations in 2010

Diet Dr Pepper which was available at just

26 percent of US McDonalds restaurants

is now offered as regional option

At Jack in the Box where Dr Pepper is

already on all of its US fountains Diet

Dr Pepper installations began in 2009 and

will be completed at most restaurants

this year Both wins are driving greater

awareness for our brands particularly in

coastal markets aiding our ability to increase

per-capita consumption

GROWTH IN FOUNTAIN INSTALLATIONS

OUR BRANDS HAVE SIGNIFICANT GROWTH

8oz servings per capita per year in the U.S

OP PORT TIES

Average

12%
vs 2008

1%
vs 2008

Each year we provide new samphng occawons to

consumers irough the addton of increments fountain

vaves restaura its across the unted States

GOAL100

Top State

GOAL 20

GOAL5

10 2009 ANNUAL REPORT
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DR PEPPER SNAPPLE GROUP INC

RECONCILIATION OF GAAP AND NON-GAAP INFORMATION

Twelve Months Ended December 31 2009 and 2008

Unaudited

The Company reports its financial results in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the

United States of America U.S GAAP However management believes that certain non-GAAP measures that

reflect the way management evaluates the business may provide investors with additional information regarding the

companys results trends and ongoing performance on comparable basis Specifically investors should consider

the following with respect to our year-end results

Segment Results Segment Operating Profit SOP
Beverage Concentrates

Packaged Beverages

Latin America Beverages

Total SOP

Unallocated corporate costs

Impairment of goodwill and intangible assets

Restructuring costs

Other operating expense income net

Income loss from operations

For the Twelve Months Ended

December 31

Percent

2009 2008 Change

683 622 10%

573 483 19%

54 86 37%
1310 1191 10%

265 259

1039

57

40
$1085 168

Percent change 2009 vs 2008

As reported

Impact of loss of Hansen product distribution

Impact of foreign currency

As adjusted

Reported EPS

Net gain on Hansen termination and sale of certain intangible assets

Impairment of goodwill and intangible assets

Restructuring costs

Transaction and other one time separation costs

Bridge loan fees and expenses

Separation-related tax items

EPS excluding certain items

Net sales and SOP as adjusted Net sales and SOP exclude the loss of Hansen product distribution and are on

currency
neutral basis

For the Twelve

Months Ended

December 31

Net Sales SOP

3%
4%
1%

2%

10%

4%
3%

17%

Diluted earnings per share EPS excluding certain items Reported EPS adjusted for the net gain

related to the Hansen contract termination payment as well as the sale of assets in 2009 certain separation-related

tax items in 2009 and restructuring costs in 2008

For the Twelve Months Ended

December 31

Percent

______ ______
Change

NM

2009

2.17

0.15

2008

$l .23

2.74

0.14

0.08

0.06

0.05 0.06

$1.97 $1.85 6%I
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SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains forward-looking statements including in particular statements

about future events future financial performance plans strategies expectations prospects competitive environ

ment regulation and availability of raw materials Forward-looking statements include all statements that are not

historical facts and can be identified by the use of forward-looking terminology such as the words may will

expect anticipate believe estimate plan intend or the negative of these terms or similarexpressions

in this Annual Report on Form 10-K We have based these forward-looking statements on our current views with

respect to future events and financial performance Our actual financial performance could differ materially from

those projected in the forward-looking statements due to the inherent uncertainty of estimates forecasts and

projections and our financial performance may be better or worse than anticipated Given these uncertainties you

should not put undue reliance on any forward-looking statements

Forward-looking statements represent our estimates and assumptions only as of the date that they were made

We do not undertake any duty to update the forward-looking statements and the estimates and assumptions

associated with them after the date of this Annual Report on Form 10-K except to the extent required by applicable

securities laws All of the forward-looking statements are qualified in their entirety by reference to the factors

discussed in Item 1A under Risks Related to Our Business and elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K

These risk factors may not be exhaustive as we operate in continually changing business environment with new

risks emerging from time to time that we are unable to predict or that we currently do not expect to have material

adverse effect on our business You should carefully read this report in its entirety as it contains important

information about our business and the risks we face

Our forward-looking statements are subject to risks and uncertainties including

the highly competitive markets in which we operate and our ability to compete with companies that have

significant financial resources

changes in consumer preferences trends and health concerns

maintaining our relationships with our large retail customers

dependence on third party bottling and distribution companies

recession financial and credit market disruptions and other economic conditions

future impairment of our goodwill and other intangible assets

the need to service substantial amount of debt

our ability to comply with or changes in governmental regulations in the countries in which we operate

maintaining our relationships with our allied brands

litigation claims or legal proceedings against us

increases in the cost of employee benefits

increases in cost of materials or supplies used in our business

shortages of materials used in our business

substantial disruption at our manufacturing or distribution facilities

the need for substantial investment and restructuring at our production distribution and other facilities

strikes or work stoppages

our products meeting health and safety standards or contamination of our products

infringement of our intellectual property rights by third parties intellectual property claims against us or

adverse events regarding licensed intellectual property

our ability to retain or recruit qualified personnel

disruptions to our information systems and third-party service providers

weather and climate changes and

other factors discussed in Item 1A under Risks Related to Our Business and elsewhere in this Annual

Report on Form 10.-K
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PART

ITEM BUSINESS

Our Company

Dr Pepper Snapple Group Inc is leading integrated brand owner manufacturer and distributor of non

alcoholic beverages in the United States Canada and Mexico with diverse portfolio of flavored non-cola

carbonated soft drinks CSDs and non-carbonated beverages NCBs including ready-to-drink teas juices

juice drinks and mixers We have some of the most recognized beverage brands in North America with significant

consumer awareness levels and long histories that evoke strong emotional connections with consumers References

in this Annual Report on Form 10-K to we our us DPS or the Company refer to Dr Pepper Snapple

Group Inc and its subsidiaries unless the context requires otherwise

The following table provides highlights about our company

flavored CSD company in the United States

Approximately 75% of our volume from brands that are either or in their

category

North American liquid refreshment beverage business

$5.5 billion of net sales in 2009 from the United States 90% Canada 4% and

Mexico and the Caribbean 6%

History of Our Business

We have built our business over the last three decades through series of strategic acquisitions In the 1980s

through the mid-1990s we began building on our then existing Schweppes business by adding brands such as

Motts Canada Dry and AW and license for Sunkist soda We also acquired the Peæafiel business in Mexico In

1995 we acquired Dr Pepper/Seven Up Inc having previously made minority investments in the company In

1999 we acquired 40% interest in Dr Pepper/Seven Up Bottling Group Inc DPSUBG which was then our

largest independent bottler and increased our interest to 45% in 2005 In 2000 we acquired Snapple and other

brands significantly increasing our share of the United States NCB market segment In 2003 we created Cadbury

Schweppes Americas Beverages by integrating the way we managed our four North American businesses Motts

Snapple Dr Pepper/Seven Up and Mexico During 2006 and 2007 we acquired the remaining 55% of DPSUBG

and several smaller bottlers and integrated them into our Packaged Beverages segment thereby expanding our

geographic coverage

Separation from Cadbury and Formation of Our Company

In 2008 Cadbury Schweppes plc Cadbury Schweppes separated its beverage business in the United States

Canada Mexico and the Caribbean the Americas Beverages business from its global confectionery business by

contributing the subsidiaries that operated its Americas Beverages business to us The separation involved number

of steps and as result of these steps

On May 12008 Cadbury plc Cadbury plc became the parent company of Cadbury Schweppes Cadbury

plc and Cadbury Schweppes are hereafter collectively referred to as Cadbury unless otherwise indicated

On May 2008 Cadbury plc transferred its Americas Beverages business to us and we became an

independent publicly-traded company listed on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol DPS In

return for the transfer of the Americas Beverages business we distributed our common stock to Cadbury plc

shareholders As of the date of distribution total of 800 million shares of our common stock par
value

$0.01 per share and 15 million shares of our undesignated preferred stock were authorized On the date of

distribution 253.7 million shares of our common stock were issued and outstanding and no shares of

preferred stock were issued



We were incorporated in Delaware on October 24 2007 Prior to separation Dr Pepper Snapple Group Inc did

not have any operations Refer to Note of the Notes to our Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for further

information

Products and Distribution

We are leading integrated brand owner manufacturer and distributor of non-alcoholic beverages in the

United States Mexico and Canada and we also distribute our products in the Caribbean In 2009 90% of our net

sales were generated in the United States 4% in Canada and 6% in Mexico and the Caribbean We sold 1.6 billion

equivalent 288 fluid ounce cases in 2009 The following table provides highlights about our key brands

CSDs

in its flavor category and overall flavored CSD in the United States

Distinguished by its unique blend of 23 flavors and loyal consumer following

Flavors include regular diet and cherry

Oldest major soft drink in the United States introduced in 1885

OUR CORE BRANDS

orange CSD in the United States

Flavors include orange diet and other fruits

Licensed to us as CSD by the Sunkist Growers Association since 1986

lemon lime CSD in the United States

Flavors include regular diet and cherry antioxidant

The original Un-Cola created in 1929

root beer in the United States

Flavors include regular diet and cream soda

classic all-American beverage first sold at veterans parade in 1919

ginger
ale in the United States and Canada

Brand includes club soda tonic green tea ginger ale and other mixers

Created in Toronto Canada in 1904 and introduced in the United States in 1919

OTHER CSD BRANDS

orange CSD in the United States

Flavoi include orange diet and other fruits

Brand began as the all-natural
orange flavor drink in 1906



ginger ale in the United States and Canada

bwePP
Brand includes club soda tonic and other mixers

First carbonated beverage in the world invented in 1783

grapefruit CSD in the United States and leading grapefruit CSD in Mexico

Founded in 1938

carbonated mineral water brand in Mexico

Brand includes Flavors Twist and Naturel

Mexicos oldest mineral water

NCBs

leading ready-to-drink tea in the United States

Snapp1e full range of tea products including premium super premium and value teas

Brand also includes premium juices and juice drinks

Founded in Brooklyn New York in 1972

apple juice and apple sauce brand in the United States

Juice products include apple and other fruit juices Motts Plus and Motts for Tots

Apple sauce products include regular unsweetened flavored and organic

Brand began as line of apple cider and vinegar offerings in 1842

fruit punch brand in the United States

Brand includes variety of fruit flavored and reduced calorie juice drinks

Developed originally as an ice cream topping known as Leos Hawaiian Punch in 1934

leading spicy tomato juice brand in the United States Canada and Mexico

Key ingredient in Canadas popular cocktail the Bloody Caesar

Created in 1969

The market and industry data in this Annual Report on Form 10-K is from independent industry sources

including The Nielsen Company and Beverage Digest See Market and Industry Data below for further

information

The Sunkist soda Roses and Margaritaville logos are registered trademarks of Sunkist Growers Inc

Cadbury Ireland Limited and Margaritaville Enterprises LLC respectively in each case used by us under

license All other logos in the table above are registered trademarks of DPS or its subsidiaries

portfolio of mixer brands in the United States

Bloody Mary brand Mr Mrs in the United States

Leading mixers Margaritaville and Roses in their flavor categories



In the CSD market in the United States and Canada we participate primarily in the flavored CSD category Our

key brands are Dr Pepper 7UP Sunkist soda AW Canada Dry and Crush and we also sell regional and smaller

niche brands In the CSD market we are primarily manufacturer of beverage concentrates and fountain syrups

Beverage concentrates are highly concentrated proprietary flavors used to make syrup or finished beverages We
manufacture beverage concentrates that are used by our own Packaged Beverages and Latin America Beverages

segments as well as sold to third
party bottling companies According to The Nielsen Company we had 21.0%

share of the United States CSD market in 2009 measured by retail sales which increased from 19.7% in 2008 We
also manufacture fountain

syrup that we sell to the foodservice industry directly through bottlers or through third

parties

In the NCB market segment in the United States we participate primarily in the ready-to-drink tea juice juice

drinks and mixer categories Our key NCB brands are Snapple Motts Hawaiian Punch and Clamato and we also

sell regional and smaller niche brands We manufacture most of our NCBs as ready-to-drink beverages and

distribute them through our own distribution network and through third parties or direct to our customers

warehouses In addition to NCB beverages we also manufacture Motts apple sauce as finished product

In Mexico and the Caribbean we participate primarily in the carbonated mineral water flavored CSD bottled

water and vegetable juice categories Our key brands in Mexico include Peflafiel Squirt Clamato and Aguafiel In

Mexico we manufacture and sell our brands through both our own manufacturing and distribution operations and

third party bottlers In the Caribbean we distribute our products solely through third party distributors and bottlers

In 2009 we manufactured and/or distributed approximately 44% of our total products sold in the United States

as measured by volume In addition our businesses manufacture and distribute variety of brands owned by third

parties in specified licensed geographic territories

Our Strengths

The key strengths of our business are

Strong portfolio of leading consumer-preferred brands We own diverse portfolio of well-known

CSD and NCB brands Many of our brands enjoy high levels of consumer awareness preference and loyalty

rooted in their rich heritage which drive their market positions Our diverse portfolio provides our bottlers

distributors and retailers with wide variety of products and provides us with platform for growth and

profitability We are the flavored CSD company in the United States In addition we are the only major

beverage concentrate company with
year-over-year market share growth in the CSD market in each of the last

five
years Our largest brand Dr Pepper is the flavored CSD in the United States according to The Nielsen

Company and our Snapple brand is leading ready-to-drink tea Overall in 2009 approximately 75% of our

volume was generated by brands that hold either the or position in their category The strength of our key
brands has allowed us to launch innovations and brand extensions such as Dr Pepper Cherry 7UP Cherry

Antioxidant Canada Dry Green Tea Ginger Ale Motts for Tots and Snapple value teas

Integrated business model We believe our brand ownership manufacturing and distribution are more

integrated than the United States operations of our principal competitors and that this differentiation provides

us with competitive advantage Our integrated business model strengthens our route-to-market by creating

third consolidated bottling system in addition to the Coca-Cola Company Coca-Cola and PepsiCo Inc

PepsiCo affiliated systems Our manufacturing and distribution
system enables us to improve focus on our

brands especially certain of our brands such as 7UP Sunkist soda AW and Snapple which do not have

large presence in the Coca-Cola-affiliated and PepsiCo-affiliated bottler systems Our integrated business

model also provides opportunities for net sales and profit growth through the alignment of the economic

interests of our brand ownership and our manufacturing and distribution businesses For example we can focus

on maximizing profitability for our company as whole rather than focusing on profitability generated from

either the sale of beverage concentrates or the bottling and distribution of our products Additionally our

integrated business model enables us to be more flexible and responsive to the changing needs of our large

retail customers by coordinating sales service distribution promotions and product launches and allows us to

more fully leverage our scale and reduce costs by creating greater geographic manufacturing and distribution

coverage



Strong customer relationships Our brands have enjoyed long-standing relationships with many of our

top customers We sell our products to wide range of customers from bottlers and distributors to national

retailers large foodservice and convenience store customers We have strong relationships with some of the

largest bottlers and distributors including those affiliated with Coca-Cola and PepsiCo some of the largest and

most important retailers including Wal-Mart Safeway Kroger and Target some of the largest food service

customers including McDonalds Yum Brands Jack in the Box and Burger King and convenience store

customers including 7-Eleven Our portfolio of strong brands operational scale and experience across

beverage segments has enabled us to maintain strong relationships with our customers

Attractive positioning within large and profitable market We hold the position in the United States

flavored CSD beverage markets by volume according to Beverage Digest We are also leader in Canada and

Mexico beverage markets We believe that these markets are well-positioned to benefit from emerging

consumer trends such as the need for convenience and the demand for products with health and wellness

benefits Our portfolio of products is biased toward flavored CSDs which continue to gain market share versus

cola CSDs but also focuses on emerging categories such as teas energy drinks and juices

Broad geographic manufacturing and distribution coverage As of December 31 2009 we had 19

manufacturing facilities and 176 distribution centers in the United States as well as four manufacturing

facilities and 27 distribution centers in Mexico These facilities use variety of manufacturing processes
We

have strategically located manufacturing and distribution capabilities enabling us to better align our oper

ations with our customers reduce transportation costs and have greater control over the timing and coor

dination of new product launches In addition our warehouses are generally located at or near bottling plants

and geographically dispersed to ensure our products are available to meet consumer demand We actively

manage transportation of our products using our own fleet of more than 5000 delivery trucks as well as third

party logistics providers on selected basis

Strong operating margins and stable cash flows The breadth of our brand portfolio has enabled us to

generate strong operating margins which have delivered stable cash flows These cash flows enable us to

consider variety of alternatives such as investing in our business reducing our debt paying dividends to our

stockholders and repurchasing shares of our common stock

Experienced executive management team Our executive management team has over 200 years
of

collective experience in the food and beverage industry The team has broad experience in brand ownership

manufacturing and distribution and enjoys strong relationships both within the industry and with major

customers In addition our management team has diverse skills that support our operating strategies including

driving organic growth through targeted and efficient marketing reducing operating costs enhancing

distribution efficiencies aligning manufacturing and disthbution interests and executing strategic acquisitions

Our Strategy

The key elements of our business strategy are to

Build and enhance leading brands We have well-defined portfolio strategy to allocate our marketing

and sales resources We use an on-going process of market and consumer analysis to identify key brands that

we believe have the greatest potential for profitable sales growth We intend to continue to invest most heavily

in our key brands to drive profitable and sustainable growth by strengthening consumer awareness developing

innovative products and brand extensions to take advantage of evolving consumer trends improving distri

bution and increasing promotional
effectiveness

Focus on opportunities in high growth and high margin categories
We are focused on driving growth in

our business in selected profitable and emerging categories These categories include ready-to-drink teas

energy
drinks and other beverages We also intend to capitalize on opportunities in these categories through

brand extensions new product launches and selective acquisitions of brands and distribution rights For

example we believe we are well-positioned to enter into new distribution agreements
for emerging high



growth third party brands in new categories that can use our manufacturing and distribution network We can

provide these new brands with distribution capability and resources to grow and they provide us with exposure

to growing segments of the market with relatively low risk and capital investment

Increase presence in high margin channels and packages We are focused on improving our product

presence in high margin channels such as convenience stores vending machines and small independent retail

outlets through increased selling activity and significant investments in coolers and other cold drink

equipment We have embarked on an expanded placement program for our branded coolers and other cold

drink equipment and intend to significantly increase the number of those types of equipment over the next few

years which we believe will provide an attractive return on investment We also intend to increase demand for

high margin products like single-serve packages for many of our key brands through increased promotional

activity

Leverage our integrated business model We believe our integrated brand ownership manufacturing

and distribution business model provides us opportunities for net sales and profit growth through the alignment

of the economic interests of our brand ownership and our manufacturing and distribution businesses We intend

to leverage our integrated business model to reduce costs by creating greater geographic manufacturing and

distribution coverage and to be more flexible and responsive to the changing needs of our large retail customers

by coordinating sales service distribution promotions and product launches For example we intend to

concentrate more of our manufacturing in multi-product regional manufacturing facilities including opening

new plant in Southern California in 2010 and investing in expanded capabilities in several of our existing

facilities within the next several years

Strengthen our route-to-market In the near term strengthening our route-to-market will ensure the

ongoing health of our brands We are rolling out handheld technology and upgrading our information

technology IT infrastructure to improve route productivity and data integrity and standards With third

party bottlers we continue to deliver programs that maintain priority for our brands in their systems

Improve operating efficiency The integration of acquisitions into our Direct Store Delivery system

DSD component of our Packaged Beverages segment has created the opportunity to improve our

manufacturing warehousing and distribution operations For example we have been able to create multi-

product manufacturing facilities such as our frying Texas facility which provide region with wide variety

of our products at reduced transportation and co-packing costs In 2009 we established Productivity Office to

drive ongoing productivity initiatives

Our Business Operations

As of December 31 2009 our operating structure consists of three business segments Beverage Concentrates

Packaged Beverages and Latin America Beverages Segment financial data for 2009 2008 and 2007 including

financial information about foreign and domestic operations is included in Note 21 of the Notes to our Audited

Consolidated Financial Statements

Beverage Concentrates

Our Beverage Concentrates segment is principally brand ownership business In this segment we manu
facture and sell beverage concentrates in the United States and Canada Most of the brands in this segment are CSD
brands In 2009 our Beverage Concentrates segment had net sales of approximately $1.1 billion Key brands

include Dr Pepper 7UP Sunkist soda AW Canada Dry Crush Schweppes Squirt RC Cola Diet Rite Sundrop

Welchs Vernors and Country Time and the concentrate form of Hawaiian Punch

We are the industry leader in flavored CSDs with 40.3% market share in the United States for 2009 as

measured by retail sales according to The Nielsen Company We are also the third largest CSD brand owner as

measured by 2009 retail sales in the United States and Canada and we own leading brand in most of the CSD

categories in which we compete

Almost all of our beverage concentrates are manufactured at our plant in St Louis Missouri



The beverage concentrates are shipped to third party bottlers as well as to our own manufacturing systems

who combine them with carbonation water sweeteners and other ingredients package it in PET containers glass

bottles and aluminum cans and sell it as finished beverage to retailers Beverage concentrates are also

manufactured into syrup which is shipped to fountain customers such as fast food restaurants who mix the

syrup with water and carbonation to create finished beverage at the point of sale to consumers Dr Pepper

represents most of our fountain channel volume Concentrate prices historically have been reviewed and adjusted at

least on an annual basis

Our Beverage Concentrates brands are sold by our bottlers including our own Packaged Beverages segment

through all major retail channels including supermarkets fountains mass merchandisers club stores vending

machines convenience stores gas stations small groceries drug chains and dollar stores Unlike the majority of our

other CSD brands 72% of Dr Pepper volumes are distributed through the Coca-Cola affiliated and PepsiCo

affiliated bottler systems

Pepsi Bottling Group Inc PBG and Coca-Cola Enterprises Inc CCEare the two largest customers of

the Beverage Concentrates segment and constituted 25% and 23% respectively of net sales during 2009

Packaged Beverages

Our Packaged Beverages segment is principally
brand ownership manufacturing and distribution business

In this segment we primarily manufacture and distribute packaged beverages and other products including our

brands third party owned brands and certain private
label beverages in the United States and Canada In 2009 our

Packaged Beverages segment had net sales of approximately $4.1 billion Key NCB brands in this segment include

Snapple Motts Hawaiian Punch Clamato Yoo-Hoo Country Time Nantucket Nectars ReaLemon Mr and

Mrs Roses and Margaritaville Key CSD brands in this segment include Dr Pepper 7UP Sunkist soda AW
Canada Dry Squirt RC Cola Welchs Vernors IBC Mistic and Venom Energy

Approximately 87% of our 2009 Packaged Beverages net sales of branded products come from our own

brands with the remaining from the distribution of third party brands such as FIJI mineral water and AriZona tea

portion
of our sales also comes from bottling beverages and other products for private label owners or others for

fee Although the majority of our Packaged Beverages net sales relate to our brands we also provide

route-to-market for third party brand owners seeking effective distribution for their new and emerging brands

These brands give us exposure in certain markets to fast growing segments of the beverage industry with minimal

capital investment

Our Packaged Beverages products are manufactured in multiple facilities across the United States and are sold

or distributed to retailers and their warehouses by our own distribution network or by third party distributors The

raw materials used to manufacture our products
include aluminum cans and ends glass bottles PET bottles and

caps paper products sweeteners juices water and other ingredients

We sell our Packaged Beverages products both through our DSD supported by fleet of more than 5000

trucks and approximately 12000 employees including sales representatives merchandisers drivers and warehouse

workers as well as through our Warehouse Direct delivery system WD both of which include the sales to all

major retail channels including supermarkets fountain channel mass merchandisers club stores vending

machines convenience stores gas stations small groceries drug chains and dollar stores

In 2009 Wal-Mart Stores Inc the largest customer of our Packaged Beverages segment accounted for

approximately 17% of our net sales in this segment

Latin America Beverages

Our Latin America Beverages segment is brand ownership manufacturing and distribution business This

segment participates mainly in the carbonated mineral water flavored CSD bottled water and vegetable juice

categories with particular strength in carbonated mineral water and grapefruit flavored CSDs In 2009 our Latin

America Beverages segment had net sales of $357 million with our operations in Mexico representing approx

imately 88% of the net sales of this segment Key brands include Peflafiel Squirt Clamato and Aguafiel



In Mexico we manufacture and distribute our products through our bottling operations and third party bottlers

and distributors In the Caribbean we distribute our products through third party bottlers and distributors In

Mexico we also participate in joint venture to manufacture Aguafiel brand water with Acqua Minerale

San Benedetto We provide expertise in the Mexican beverage market and Acqua Minerale San Benedetto provides

expertise in water production and new packaging technologies

We sell our finished beverages through all major Mexican retail channels including the mom and pop stores

supermarkets hypermarkets and on premise channels

Bottler and Distributor Agreements

In the United States and Canada we generally grant perpetual exclusive license
agreements for CSD brands

and packages to bottlers for specific geographic areas These agreements prohibit bottlers from selling the licensed

products outside their exclusive territory and selling any imitative products in that territory Generally we may
terminate bottling agreements only for cause or change in control and the bottler may terminate without cause upon

giving certain specified notice and complying with other applicable conditions Fountain agreements for bottlers

generally are not exclusive for territory but do restrict bottlers from carrying imitative product in the territory

Many of our brands such as Snapple Mistic Stewarts Nantucket Nectars Yoo-Hoo and Orangina are licensed for

distribution in various territories to bottlers and number of smaller distributors such as beer wholesalers wine and

spirit distributors independent distributors and retail brokers We may terminate some of these distribution

agreements only for cause and the distributor may terminate without cause upon certain notice and other conditions

Either party may terminate some of the other distribution agreements without cause upon giving certain specified

notice and complying with other applicable conditions

Agreement with PepsiCo Inc

On December 2009 DPS agreed to license certain brands to PepsiCo Inc PepsiCo on closing of

PepsiCos proposed acquisitions of PBG and PepsiAmericas Inc PAS
Under the new licensing agreements PepsiCo will distribute Dr Pepper Crush and Schweppes in the

U.S territories where these brands are currently distributed by PBG and PAS The same will apply for Dr Pepper

Crush Schweppes Vernors and Sussex in Canada and Squirt and Canada Dry in Mexico

Under the agreements DPS will receive one-time cash payment of $900 million The new agreement will

have an initial period of twenty years with automatic twenty year renewal periods and will require PepsiCo to meet

certain performance conditions The payment will be recorded as deferred revenue which will be recognized as net

sales ratably over the estimated 25-year life of the customer relationship

Additionally in U.S territories where it has distribution footprint DPS will begin distributing certain owned

and licensed brands including Sunkist soda Squirt Vernors Canada Dry and Hawaiian Punch that were previously

distributed by PBG and PAS

On February 26 2010 the Company completed the licensing of those brands to PepsiCo following PepsiCos

acquisition of PBG and PAS

Customers

We primarily serve two groups of customers bottlers and distributors and retailers

Bottlers buy beverage concentrates from us and in turn they manufacture bottle sell and distribute finished

beverages Bottlers also manufacture and distribute syrup for the fountain foodservice channel In addition bottlers

and distributors purchase finished beverages from us and sell them to retail and other customers We have strong

relationships with bottlers affiliated with Coca-Cola and PepsiCo primarily because of the strength and market

position of our key Dr Pepper brand



Retailers also buy finished beverages directly from us Our portfolio of strong brands operational scale and

experience in the beverage industry has enabled us to maintain strong relationships with major retailers in the

United States Canada and Mexico In 2009 our largest retailer was Wal-Mart Stores Inc representing approx

imately 13% of our net sales

Seasonality

The beverage market is subject to some seasonal variations Our beverage sales are generally higher during the

warmer months and also can be influenced by the timing of holidays as well as weather fluctuations

Competition

The liquid refreshment beverage industry is highly competitive and continues to evolve in response to

changing consumer preferences Competition is generally based upon brand recognition taste quality price

availability selection and convenience We compete with multinational corporations with significant financial

resources Our two largest competitors in the liquid refreshment beverage market are Coca-Cola and PepsiCo each

representing more than 30% of the U.S liquid refreshment beverage market by volume according to Beverage

Digest We also compete against other large companies including Nestld S.A Nestle and Kraft Foods Inc

Kraft These competitors can use their resources and scale to rapidly respond to competitive pressures
and

changes in consumer preferences by introducing new products reducing prices or increasing promotional activities

As bottler we compete with bottlers such as CCE PBGPAS and number of smaller bottlers and distributors We

also compete with variety of smaller regional and private label manufacturers such as The Cott Corporation

Cott Smaller companies may be more innovative better able to bring new products to market and better able to

quickly exploit and serve niche markets We have lower exposure to some of the faster growing non-carbonated and

the bottled water segments
in the overall liquid refreshment beverage market and as result although we have

increased our market share in the overall United States CSD market we have lost share in the overall United States

liquid refreshment beverage market over the past several years
In Canada Mexico and the Caribbean we compete

with many of these same international companies as well as number of regional competitors

Although these bottlers and distributors are our competitors many of these companies are also our customers

as they purchase beverage concentrates from us

Intellectual Property and Trademarks

Our Intellectual Property We possess variety of intellectual property rights that are important to our

business We rely on combination of trademarks copyrights patents and trade secrets to safeguard our proprietary

rights including our brands and ingredient and production formulas for our products

Our Trademarks Our trademark portfolio includes more than 2500 registrations and applications in the

United States Canada Mexico and other countries Brands we own through various subsidiaries in various

jurisdictions
include Dr Pepper 7UP AW Canada Dry RC Cola Schweppes Squirt Crush Peflafiel Aguafiel

Snapple Motts Hawaiian Punch Clamato Mistic Nantucket Nectars Mr Mrs ReaLemon Venom and Deja

Blue We own trademark registrations for all of these brands in the United States and we own trademark

registrations for some but not all of these brands in Canada Mexico and other countries We also own number of

smaller regional brands Some of our other trademark registrations are in countries where we do not currently have

any significant level of business In addition in many countries outside the United States Canada and Mexico our

rights to many of our brands including our Dr Pepper trademark and formula were sold by Cadbury beginning over

decade ago to third parties including in certain cases to competitors such as Coca-Cola

Trademarks Licensed from Others We license various trademarks from third parties which generally allow

us to manufacture and distribute throughout the United States and/or Canada and Mexico For example we license

from third parties the Sunkist soda Welchs Country Time Orangina Stewarts Roses Holland House and

Margaritaville trademarks Although these licenses vary in length and other terms they generally are long-term

cover the entire United States and/or Canada and Mexico and generally include royalty payment to the licensor



Licensed Distribution Rights We have rights in certain territories to bottle and/or distribute various brands

we do not own such as AriZona tea and FIJI mineral water Some of these arrangements are relatively shorter in

term are limited in geographic scope and the licensor may be able to terminate the agreement upon an agreed period

of notice in some cases without payment to us

Intellectual Property We License to Others We license some of our intellectual property including

trademarks to others For example we license the Dr Pepper trademark to certain companies for use in connection

with food confectionery and other products We also license certain brands such as Dr Pepper and Snapple to third

parties for use in beverages in certain countries where we own the brand but do not otherwise operate our business

Marketing

Our marketing strategy is to grow our brands through continuously providing new solutions to meet

consumers changing preferences and needs We identify these preferences and needs and develop innovative

solutions to address the opportunities Solutions include new and reformulated products improved packaging

design pricing and enhanced availability We use advertising media sponsorships merchandising public relations

and promotion to provide maximum impact for our brands and messages

Manufacturing

As of December 31 2009 we operated 23 manufacturing facilities across the United States and Mexico

Almost all of our CSD beverage concentrates are manufactured at single plant in St Louis Missouri All of our

manufacturing facilities are either regional manufacturing facilities with the capacity and capabilities to man
ufacture many brands and packages facilities with particular capabilities that are dedicated to certain brands or

products or smaller bottling plants with more limited range of packaging capabilities We will open new multi-

product manufacturing facility in Southern California during 2010

We employ approximately 5000 full-time manufacturing employees in our facilities including seasonal

workers We have variety of production capabilities including hot-fill cold-fill and aseptic bottling processes and

we manufacture beverages in variety of packaging materials including aluminum glass and PET cans and bottles

and variety of package formats including single-serve and multi-serve packages and bag-in-box fountain
syrup

packaging

In 2009 89% of our manufactured volumes came from our brands and 11% from third party and private-label

products We also use third
party manufacturers to package our products for us on limited basis

We owned property plant and equipment net of accumulated depreciation totaling $1044 million and

$935 million in the United States and $65 million and $55 million in international locations as of December 31
2009 and 2008 respectively

Warehousing and Distribution

As of December 31 2009 our distribution network consisted of 176 distribution centers in the United States

and 27 distribution centers in Mexico Our warehouses are generally located at or near bottling plants and are

geographically dispersed to ensure product is available to meet consumer demand We actively manage trans

portation of our products using combination of our own fleet of more than 5000 delivery trucks as well as third

party logistics providers

Raw Materials

The principal raw materials we use in our business are aluminum cans and ends glass bottles PET bottles and

caps paper products sweeteners juice fruit water and other ingredients The cost of the raw materials can

fluctuate substantially In addition we are significantly impacted by changes in fuel costs due to the large truck fleet

we operate in our distribution businesses
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Under many of our supply arrangements for these raw materials the price we pay fluctuates along with certain

changes in underlying commodities costs such as aluminum in the case of cans natural gas in the case of glass

bottles resin in the case of PET bottles and caps corn in the case of sweeteners and pulp in the case of paperboard

packaging Manufacturing costs for our Packaged Beverages segment where we manufacture and bottle finished

beverages are higher as percentage of our net sales than our Beverage Concentrates segment as the Packaged

Beverages segment requires the purchase of much larger portion of the packaging and ingredients Although we

have contracts with relatively small number of suppliers we have generally not experienced any difficulties in

obtaining the required amount of raw materials

When appropriate we mitigate the exposure to volatility in the prices of certain commodities used in our

production process through the use of futures contracts and supplier pricing agreements The intent of the contracts

and agreements is to provide predictability in our operating margins and our overall cost structure

Research and Development

Our research and development team is composed of scientists and engineers in the United States and Mexico

who are focused on developing high quality products which have broad consumer appeal can be sold at competitive

prices and can be safely and consistently produced across diverse manufacturing network Our research and

development team engages in activities relating to product development microbiology analytical chemistry

process engineering sensory science nutrition knowledge management and regulatory compliance We have

particular expertise in flavors and sweeteners Research and development costs are expensed when incurred and

amounted to $15 million and $17 million for 2009 and 2008 respectively Research and development costs totaled

$14 million for 2007 net of allocations to Cadbury Additionally we incurred packaging engineering costs of

$7 million $4 million and $5 million for 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively These expenses are recorded in selling

general and administrative expenses
in our Consolidated Statements of Operations

Information Technology and Transaction Processing Services

We use variety of IT systems and networks configured to meet our business needs Prior to our separation

from Cadbury IT support was provided as corporate
service by Cadburys IT team and external suppliers Post

separation we have formed our own standalone dedicated IT function to support our business and have separated

our systems services and contracts from those of Cadbury Our primary IT data center is hosted in Toronto Canada

by third party provider We also use third party vendor for application support and maintenance which is based

in India and provides resources offshore and onshore

We use business process outsourcing provider located in India to provide certain back office transactional

processing services including accounting order entry and other transactional services

Employees

At December 31 2009 we employed approximately 19000 employees including seasonal and part-time

workers

In the United States we have approximately 16000 full-time employees We have many union collective

bargaining agreements covering approximately 4000 full-time employees Several agreements cover multiple

locations These agreements often address working conditions as well as wage rates and benefits In Mexico and the

Caribbean we employ approximately 3000 full-time employees and are also party to collective bargaining

agreements We do not have significant number of employees in Canada

We believe we have good relations with our employees

Regulatory Matters

We are subject to variety of federal state and local laws and regulations in the countries in which we do

business Regulations apply to many aspects of our business including our products and their ingredients

manufacturing safety labeling transportation recycling advertising and sale For example our products and

their manufacturing labeling marketing and sale in the United States are subject to various aspects of the Federal
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Food Drug and Cosmetic Act the Federal Trade Commission Act the Lanham Act state consumer protection laws

and state warning and labeling laws In Canada and Mexico the manufacture distribution marketing and sale of our

many products are also subject to similar statutes and regulations

We and our bottlers use various refillable and non-refillable recyclable bottles and cans in the United States

and other countries Various states and other authorities require deposits eco-taxes or fees on certain containers

Similar legislation or regulations may be proposed in the future at local state and federal levels both in the United

States and elsewhere In Mexico the government has encouraged the soft drinks industry to comply voluntarily with

collection and recycling programs of plastic material and we have taken steps to comply with these programs

Environmental Health and Safety Matters

In the normal course of our business we are subject to variety of federal state and local environment health

and safety laws and regulations We maintain environmental health and safety policies and quality environ

mental health and safety program designed to ensure compliance with applicable laws and regulations The cost of

such compliance measures does not have material financial impact on our operations

Available Information

Our web site address is www.drpeppersnapplegroup.com Information on our web site is not incorporated by

reference in this document We make available free of charge through this web site our annual reports on

Form 10-K quarterly reports on Form 10-Q current reports on Form 8-K and amendments to those reports filed or

furnished pursuant to the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended as soon as reasonably practicable after such

material is electronically filed with or furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission

Market and Industry Data

The market and industry data in this Annual Report on Form 10-K is from independent industry sources

including The Nielsen Company and Beverage Digest Although we believe that these independent sources are

reliable we have not verified the accuracy or completeness of this data or any assumptions underlying such data

The Nielsen Company is marketing information provider primarily serving consumer packaged goods

manufacturers and retailers We use The Nielsen Company data as our primary management tool to track market

performance because it has broad and deep data coverage is based on consumer transactions at retailers and is

reported to us monthly The Nielsen Company data provides measurement and analysis of marketplace trends such

as market share retail pricing promotional activity and distribution across various channels retailers and

geographies Measured categories provided to us by The Nielsen Company Scantrack include flavored non-cola

CSDs energy drinks single-serve bottled water non-alcoholic mixers and NCBs including ready-to-drink teas

single-serve and multi-serve juice and juice drinks and sports drinks The Nielsen Company also provides data on

other food items such as apple sauce The Nielsen Company data we present in this report is from The Nielsen

Companys Scantrack service which compiles data based on scanner transactions in certain sales channels

including grocery stores mass merchandisers drug chains convenience stores and gas stations However this data

does not include the fountain or vending channels Wal-Mart or small independent retail outlets which together

represent meaningful portion of the United States liquid refreshment beverage market and of our net sales and

volume

Beverage Digest is an independent beverage research company that publishes an annual Beverage Digest Fact

Book We use Beverage Digest primarily to track market share information and broad beverage and channel trends

This annual publication provides compilation of data supplied by beverage companies Beverage Digest covers

the following categories CSDs energy drinks bottled water and NCBs including ready-to-drink teas juice and

juice drinks and sports drinks Beverage Digest data does not include multi-serve juice products or bottled water in

packages of 1.5 liters or more Data is reported for certain sales channels including grocery stores mass

merchandisers club stores drug chains convenience stores gas stations fountains vending machines and the

up-and-down-the-street channel consisting of small independent retail outlets
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We use both The Nielsen Company and Beverage Digest to assess both our own and our competitors

performance and market share in the United States Different market share rankings can result for specific

beverage category depending on whether data from The Nielsen Company or Beverage Digest is used in part

because of the differences in the sales channels reported by each source For example because the fountain channel

where we have relatively small business except for Dr Pepper is not included in The Nielsen Company data our

market share using The Nielsen Company data is generally higher for our CSD portfolio than the Beverage Digest

data which does include the fountain channel

In this Annual Report on Form 10-K all information regarding the beverage market in the United States is

from Beverage Digest and except as otherwise indicated is from 2008 All information regarding our brand market

positions in the U.S is from The Nielsen Company and is based on retail dollar sales in 2009

ITEM 1A RISK FACTORS

Risks Related to Our Business

In addition to the other information set forth in this report you should carefully consider the risks described

below which could materially affect our business financial condition or future results Any of the following risks

as well as other risks and uncertainties could harm our business and financial condition

We operate in highly competitive markets

The liquid refreshment beverage industry is highly competitive and continues to evolve in response to

changing consumer preferences Competition is generally based upon brand recognition taste quality price

availability selection and convenience We compete with multinational corporations with significant financial

resources Our two largest competitors in the liquid refreshment beverage market are Coca-Cola and PepsiCo each

representing more than 30% of the U.S liquid refreshment beverage market by volume according to Beverage

Digest We also compete against other large companies including Nestle and Kraft These competitors can use their

resources and scale to rapidly respond to competitive pressures
and changes in consumer preferences by introducing

new products reducing prices or increasing promotional activities As bottler we compete with bottlers such as

CCE PBG PAS and number of smaller bottlers and distributors We also compete with variety of smaller

regional and private label manufacturers such as Cott Smaller companies may be more innovative better able to

bring new products to market and better able to quickly exploit and serve niche markets We have lower exposure to

some of the faster growing non-carbonated and the bottled water segments in the overall liquid refreshment

beverage market and as result although we have increased our market share in the overall United States CSD

market we have lost share in the overall United States liquid refreshment beverage market over the past
several

years In Canada Mexico and the Caribbean we compete with many of these same international companies as well

as number of regional competitors

Although these bottlers and distributors are our competitors many of these companies are also our customers

as they purchase beverage concentrates from us

Our inability to compete effectively could result in decline in our sales As result we may have to reduce

our prices or increase our spending on marketing advertising and product innovation Any of these could negatively

affect our business and financial performance

We may not effectively respond to changing consumer preferences trends health concerns and other

factors

Consumers preferences can change due to variety of factors including aging of the population social trends

negative publicity economic downturn or other factors For example consumers are increasingly concerned about

health and weliness and demand for regular CSDs has decreased as consumers have shifted towards low or no

calorie soft drinks and increasingly to NCBs such as water ready-to-drink teas and sports drinks If we do not

effectively anticipate these trends and changing consumer preferences then quickly develop new products in
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response our sales could suffer Developing and launching new products can be risky and expensive We may not be

successful in responding to changing markets and consumer preferences and some of our competitors maybe better

able to respond to these changes either of which could negatively affect our business and financial performance

We depend on small number of large retailers for significant portion of our sales

Food and beverage retailers in the United States have been consolidating resulting in large sophisticated

retailers with increased buying power They are in better position to resist our price increases and demand lower

prices They also have leverage to require us to provide larger more tailored promotional and product delivery

programs If we and our bottlers and distributors do not successfully provide appropriate marketing product

packaging pricing and service to these retailers our product availability sales and margins could suffer Certain

retailers make up significant percentage of our products retail volume including volume sold by our bottlers and

distributors Some retailers also offer their own private label products that compete with some of our brands The

loss of sales of any of our products in major retailer could have material adverse effect on our business and

financial performance

We depend on third party bottling and distribution companies for portion of our business

Net sales from our Beverage Concentrates segment represent sales of beverage concentrates to third party

bottling companies that we do not own The Beverage Concentrates segments net sales generate portion of our

overall net sales Some of these bottlers are partly owned by competitor In the case of PBG and PAS PepsiCo has

acquired majority ownership Additionally Coca-Cola is now in the process of acquiring ownership of CCEs North

American bottling business The majority of these bottlers business comes from selling our competitors products

In addition some of the products we manufacture are distributed by third parties As independent companies these

bottlers and distributors make their own business decisions They may have the right to determine whether and to

what extent they produce and distribute our products our competitors products and their own products They may
devote more resources to other products or take other actions detrimental to our brands In most cases they are able

to terminate their bottling and distribution arrangements with us without cause We may need to increase support for

our brands in their territories and may not be able to pass on price increases to them Their financial condition could

also be adversely affected by conditions beyond our control and our business could suffer Deteriorating economic

conditions could negatively impact the financial viability of third party bottlers Any of these factors could

negatively affect our business and financial performance

Our financial results may be negatively impacted by recession financial and credit market disruptions

and other economic conditions

Customer and consumer demand for our products may be impacted by recession or other economic downturn

in the United States Canada Mexico or the Caribbean which could result in reduction in our sales volume andlor

switching to lower price offerings Similarly disruptions in financial and credit markets may impact our ability to

manage normal commercial relationships with our customers suppliers and creditors These disruptions could have

negative impact on the ability of our customers to timely pay their obligations to us thus reducing our cash flow or

our vendors to timely supply materials

We could also face increased counterparty risk for our cash investments and our hedge arrangements Declines

in the securities and credit markets could also affect our pension fund which in turn could increase funding

requirements

Determinations in the future that significant impairment of the value of our goodwill and other indefi

nite lived intangible assets has occurred could have material adverse effect on our results of operations

As of December 31 2009 we had $8.8 billion of total assets of which approximately $5.7 billion were

intangible assets Intangible assets include goodwill and other intangible assets in connection with brands bottler

agreements distribution rights and customer relationships We conduct impairment tests on goodwill and all

indefinite lived intangible assets annually as of December 31 or more frequently if circumstances indicate that the

carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable If the carrying amount of an intangible asset exceeds its fair

value an impairment loss is recognized in an amount equal to that excess There was no impairment required based
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upon our annual impairment analysis performed as of December 31 2009 For additional information about these

intangible assets see Critical Accounting Estimates Goodwill and Other Indefinite Lived Intangible Assets in

Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations and our

Audited Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item Financial Statements and Supplementary Data in

this Annual Report on Form 10-K

The impairment tests require us to make an estimate of the fair value of intangible assets Since number of

factors may influence determinations of fair value of intangible assets we are unable to predict whether

impairments of goodwill or other indefinite lived intangibles will occur in the future Any such impairment

would result in us recognizing non-cash charge in our Statement of Operations which may adversely affect our

results of operations

We have substantial amount of outstanding debt which could adversely affect our business and our

ability to meet our obligations

As of December 31 2009 our total indebtedness was $2971 million Total indebtedness is defined as long-

term obligations of $2960 million plus the $8 million adjustment related to the change in the fair value of interest

rate swaps designated as fair value hedges and the $3 million of current obligations related to capital leases included

as component of accounts payable and accrued expenses Subsequent to December 31 2009 the Company made

optional repayments of $405 million which represented the outstanding principal balance on the revolving credit

facility the Revolver as of December 31 2009

This substantial amount of debt could have important consequences to us and our investors including

requiring portion of our cash flow from operations to make interest payments on this debt and

increasing our vulnerability to general adverse economic and industry conditions

To the extent we experience deteriorating economic conditions the risks described above would increase

Additionally it may become more difficult to satisfy debt service and other obligations the cash flow available to

fund capital expenditures other corporate purposes and to grow our business could be reduced Our actual cash

requirements in the future may be greater than expected Our cash flow from operations may not be sufficient to

repay at maturity all of the outstanding debt as it becomes due

In addition the credit agreements governing our debt contain covenants that among other things limit our

ability to incur debt at subsidiaries that are not guarantors incur liens merge or sell transfer or otherwise dispose of

all or substantially all of our assets make investments loans advances guarantees and acquisitions enter into

transactions with affiliates and enter into agreements restricting our ability to incur liens or the ability of our

subsidiaries to make distributions The credit agreement also requires us to comply with certain affirmative and

financial covenants

We may not comply with applicable government laws and regulations and they could change

We are subject to variety of federal state and local laws and regulations in the United States Canada Mexico

and other countries in which we do business These laws and regulations apply to many aspects of our business

including the manufacture safety labeling transportation advertising and sale of our products See Regulatory

Matters in Item Business of this Annual Report on Form 10-K for more information regarding many of these

laws and regulations
Violations of these laws or regulations could damage our reputation and/or result in regulatory

actions with substantial penalties In addition any significant change in such laws or regulations or their

interpretation or the introduction of higher standards or more stringent laws or regulations could result in

increased compliance costs or capital expenditures For example changes in recycling and bottle deposit laws or

special taxes on soft drinks or ingredients could increase our costs Regulatory focus on the health safety and

marketing of food products is increasing Certain state warning and labeling laws such as Californias Prop 65

which requires warnings on any product with substances that the state lists as potentially causing cancer or birth

defects could become applicable to our products
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Some local and regional governments and school boards have enacted or have proposed to enact regulations

restricting the sale of certain types of soft drinks in schools Any violations or changes of regulations could have

material adverse effect on our profitability or disrupt the production or distribution of our products and negatively

affect our business and financial performance In addition taxes imposed on the sale of certain of our products by

federal state local and foreign governments could cause consumers to shift away from purchasing our products

For example some members of the United States federal government have raised the possibility of federal tax on

the sale of certain sugared beverages including non-diet soft drinks fruit drinks teas and flavored waters to help

pay for the cost of healthcare reform Some United States state governments are also considering similar taxes If

enacted such taxes could materially affect our business and financial results

Our distribution agreements with our allied brands could be terminated

Hansen Natural Corporation and glacØau terminated their distribution agreements with us in 2008 and 2007

respectively We are subject to risk of other allied brands such as FIJI and AriZona terminating their distribution

agreements with us which could negatively affect our business and financial performance

Litigation or legal proceedings could expose us to significant liabilities and damage our reputation

We are party to various litigation claims and legal proceedings We evaluate these claims and proceedings to

assess the likelihood of unfavorable outcomes and estimate if possible the amount of potential losses We may
establish reserve as appropriate based upon assessments and estimates in accordance with our accounting policies

We base our assessments estimates and disclosures on the information available to us at the time and rely on legal

and management judgment Actual outcomes or losses may differ materially from assessments and estimates

Actual settlements judgments or resolutions of these claims or proceedings may negatively affect our business and

financial performance For more information see Note 20 of the Notes to our Audited Consolidated Financial

Statements

Benefits cost increases could reduce our profitability

Our profitability is substantially affected by the costs of pension postretirement employee medical costs and

other benefits In recent years these costs have increased significantly due to factors such as increases in health care

costs declines in investment returns on pension assets and changes in discount rates used to calculate pension and

related liabilities Although we actively seek to control increases in costs there can be no assurance that we will

succeed in limiting future cost increases and continued upward pressure in costs could have material adverse

affect on our business and financial performance

Costs for our raw materials may increase substantially

The principal raw materials we use in our business are aluminum cans and ends glass bottles PET bottles and

caps paperboard packaging sweeteners juice fruit water and other ingredients Additionally conversion of raw

materials into our products for sale also uses electricity and natural gas The cost of the raw materials can fluctuate

substantially We are significantly impacted by increases in fuel costs due to the large truck fleet we operate in our

distribution businesses and our use of third party carriers Under many of our supply arrangements the price we pay

for raw materials fluctuates along with certain changes in underlying commodities costs such as aluminum in the

case of cans natural gas in the case of glass bottles resin in the case of PET bottles and caps corn in the case of

sweeteners and pulp in the case of paperboard packaging Continued price increases could exert pressure on our

costs and we may not be able to pass along any such increases to our customers or consumers which could

negatively affect our business and financial performance

Certain raw materials we use are available from limited number of suppliers and shortages could

occur

Some raw materials we use such as aluminum cans and ends glass bottles PET bottles sweeteners and other

ingredients are sourced from industries characterized by limited supply base If our suppliers are unable or

unwilling to meet our requirements we could suffer shortages or substantial cost increases Changing suppliers can
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require long lead times The failure of our suppliers to meet our needs could occur for many reasons including fires

natural disasters weather manufacturing problems disease crop failure strikes transportation interruption

government regulation political instability and terrorism failure of supply could also occur due to suppliers

financial difficulties including bankruptcy Some of these risks may be more acute where the supplier or its plant is

located in riskier or less-developed countries or regions Any significant interruption to supply or cost increase

could substantially harm our business and financial performance

Substantial disruption to production at our manufacturing and distribution facilities could occur

disruption in production at our beverage concentrates manufacturing facility which manufactures almost all

of our concentrates could have material adverse effect on our business In addition disruption could occur at any

of our other facilities or those of our suppliers bottlers or distributors The disruption could occur for many reasons

including fire natural disasters weather water scarcity manufacturing problems disease strikes transportation

interruption government regulation or terrorism Alternative facilities with sufficient capacity or capabilities may

not be available may cost substantially more or may take significant time to start production each of which could

negatively affect our business and financial performance

Our facilities and operations may require substantial investment and upgrading

We have an ongoing program of investment and upgrading in our manufacturing distribution and other

facilities We expect to incur substantial costs to upgrade or keep up-to-date various facilities and equipment or

restructure our operations including closing existing facilities or opening new ones If our investment and

restructuring costs are higher than anticipated or our business does not develop as anticipated to appropriately

utilize new or upgraded facilities our costs and financial performance could be negatively affected

We may not be able to renew collective bargaining agreements on satisfactory terms or we could experi

ence strikes

As of December 31 2009 approximately 4000 of our employees many of whom are at our key manufacturing

locations were covered by collective bargaining agreements These agreements typically expire every three to four

years at various dates We may not be able to renew our collective bargaining agreements on satisfactory terms or at

all This could result in strikes or work stoppages which could impair our ability to manufacture and distribute our

products and result in substantial loss of sales The terms of existing or renewed agreements could also

significantly increase our costs or negatively affect our ability to increase operational efficiency

Our products may not meet health and safety standards or could become contaminated

We have adopted various quality environmental health and safety standards However our products may still

not meet these standards or could otherwise become contaminated failure to meet these standards or contam

ination could occur in our operations or those of our bottlers distributors or suppliers This could result in expensive

production interruptions recalls and liability claims Moreover negative publicity could be generated from false

unfounded or nominal liability claims or limited recalls Any of these failures or occurrences could negatively affect

our business and financial performance

Our intellectual property rights could be infringed or we could infringe the intellectual property rights of

others and adverse events regarding licensed intellectual property including termination of distribution

rights could harm our business

We possess
intellectual property that is important to our business This intellectual property includes

ingredient formulas trademarks copyrights patents business processes and other trade secrets See Intellectual

Property and Trademarks in Item Business of this Annual Report on Form 10-K for more information We and

third parties including competitors could come into conflict over intellectual property rights Litigation could

disrupt our business divert management attention and cost substantial amount to protect our rights or defend
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ourselves against claims We cannot be certain that the steps we take to protect our rights will be sufficient or that

others will not infringe or misappropriate our rights If we are unable to protect our intellectual property rights our

brands products and business could be harmed

We also license various trademarks from third parties and license our trademarks to third parties In some

countries other companies own particular trademark which we own in the United States Canada or Mexico For

example the Dr Pepper trademark and formula is owned by Coca-Cola in certain other countries Adverse events

affecting those third parties or their products could affect our use of the trademark and negatively impact our brands

In some cases we license products from third parties which we distribute The licensor may be able to

terminate the license arrangement upon an agreed period of notice in some cases without payment to us of any

termination fee The termination of any material license arrangement could adversely affect our business and

financial performance

We could lose key personnel or may be unable to recruit qualified personnel

Our performance significantly depends upon the continued contributions of our executive officers and key

employees both individually and as group and our ability to retain and motivate them Our officers and key

personnel have many years of experience with us and in our industry and it may be difficult to replace them If we

lose key personnel or are unable to recruit qualified personnel our operations and ability to manage our business

may be adversely affected We do not have key person life insurance for any of our executive officers or key

employees

We depend on key information systems and third party service providers

We depend on key information systems to accurately and efficiently transact our business provide information

to management and prepare financial reports We rely on third party providers for number of key information

systems and business processing services including hosting our primary data center and processing various

accounting order entry and other transactional services These systems and services are vulnerable to interruptions

or other failures resulting from among other things natural disasters terrorist attacks software equipment or

telecommunications failures processing errors computer viruses hackers other security issues or supplier

defaults Security backup and disaster recovery measures may not be adequate or implemented properly to avoid

such disruptions or failures Any disruption or failure of these systems or services could cause substantial errors

processing inefficiencies security breaches inability to use the systems or process transactions loss of customers or

other business disruptions all of which could negatively affect our business and financial performance

Weather and climate changes could adversely affect our business

Unseasonable or unusual weather or long-term climate changes may negatively impact the price or availability

of raw materials energy and fuel and demand for our products Unusually cool weather during the summer months

may result in reduced demand for our products and have negative effect on our business and financial

performance

There is growing political and scientific sentiment that increased concentrations of carbon dioxide and other

greenhouse gases
in the atmosphere are influencing global weather patterns global warming Changing weather

patterns along with the increased frequency or duration of extreme weather conditions could negatively impact the

availability or increase the cost of key raw materials that we use to produce our products Additionally the sale of

our products can be negatively impacted by weather conditions

Concern over climate change including global warming has led to legislative and regulatory initiatives

directed at limiting greenhouse gas GHG emissions For example proposals that would impose mandatory

requirements on GHG emissions continue to be considered by policy makers in the countries that we operate Laws

enacted that directly or indirectly affect our production distribution packaging cost of raw materials fuel

ingredients and water could all negatively impact our business and financial results
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ITEM lB UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None

ITEM PROPERTIES

United States As of December 31 2009 we owned or leased 209 administrative manufacturing and

distribution facilities across the United States Our principal offices are located in Piano Texas in facility that we

own We also lease an office in Rye Brook New York Our Packaged Beverages segment owns 13 manufacturing

facilities 56 distribution centers and warehouses and three office buildings including our headquarters They also

lease six manufacturing facilities 120 distribution centers and warehouses and 10 office buildings

Mexico and Canada As of December 31 2009 we leased four office facilities throughout Mexico and

Canada including our Latin America Beverages operating segments principal offices in Mexico City We own four

manufacturing facilities including one joint venture manufacturing facility and we have 27 additional direct

distribution centers four of which are owned and 23 of which are leased in Mexico which are all included in our

Latin America Beverages operating segment Our manufacturing facilities in the United States supply our products

to bottlers retailers and distributors in Canada

We believe our facilities in the United States and Mexico are well-maintained and adequate that they are being

appropriately utilized in line with past experience and that they have sufficient production capacity for their present

intended purposes The extent of utilization of such facilities varies based on seasonal demand of our products It is

not possible to measure with any degree of certainty or uniformity the productive capacity and extent of utilization

of these facilities We periodically review our space requirements and we believe we will be able to acquire new

space and facilities as and when needed on reasonable terms We also look to consolidate and dispose or sublet

facilities we no longer need as and when appropriate

New Facilities We are near completion of new manufacturing and distribution facility in Victorville

California that will operate as our western hub in regional manufacturing and distribution footprint serving

consumers in California and parts of the desert Southwest When open in 2010 the facility will produce wide

range of soft drinks juices juice drinks bottled water ready-to-drink teas energy
drinks and other premium

beverages at the Victorville plant The plant will consist of an 850000-square-foot building on 57 acres including

550000 square feet of warehouse space and 300000-square-foot manufacturing plant As of December 31 2009

we had capital commitments of approximately $6 million related to this facility

ITEM LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

We are occasionally subject to litigation or other legal proceedings relating to our business See Note 20 of the

Notes to our Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for more information related to commitments and

contingencies which are incorporated herein by reference

ITEM SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

There were no matters submitted to vote of stockholders during the fourth quarter of 2009

PART II

ITEM MARKET FOR REGISTRANTS COMMON EQUITY RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

In the United States our common stock is listed and traded on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol

DPS Information as to the high and low sales prices of our stock for the two years ended December 31 2009 and

the frequency and amount of dividends declared on our stock during these periods is set forth in Note 25 of the

Notes to our Audited Consolidated Financials Statements
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As of February 19 2010 there were approximately 30000 stockholders of record of our common stock This

figure does not include substantially greater number of street name holders or beneficial holders of our common

stock whose shares are held of record by banks brokers and other financial institutions

The information under the principal heading Equity Compensation Plan Information in our definitive Proxy

Statement for the Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held on May 20 2010 to be filed with the Securities and

Exchange Commission is incorporated herein by reference

During the fiscal years ended December 31 2009 and 2008 we did not sell any equity securities that were not

registered under the Securities Act of 1933 as amended

Dividend Policy

During the fourth quarter of the year ended December 31 2009 we declared cash dividend of 15 per share

which was paid on January 2010 Prior to that declaration we had not paid cash dividend on our common stock

since our demerger on May 2008 In February 2010 our board has declared cash dividend of $.15 per share to

be payable on April 2010 to stockholders of record on March 22 2010

Even though we have recently declared two separate cash dividends our Board of Directors the Board has

not adopted formal dividend policy under which we might pay regular periodic dividends to our stockholders

Nonetheless we expect to return our excess cash flow to our stockholders from time to time through our common

stock repurchase program described below or the payment of dividends However there can be no assurance that

share repurchases will occur or future dividends will be declared or paid The share repurchase programs and

declaration and payment of future dividends the amount of any such share repurchases or dividends and the

establishment of record and payment dates for dividends if any is subject to final determination by our Board after

its review of the then current strategy and financial performance and position among other things

Common Stock Repurchases

On November 20 2009 the Board authorized the repurchase of up to $200 million of the Companys

outstanding common stock over the next three years

Subsequent to the Boards authorization we did not repurchase any of our own common stock during the

remainder of 2009

Subsequent to December 31 2009 the Board authorized the repurchase of an additional $800 million of the

Companys outstanding common stock for total of $1 billion authorized

Comparison of Total Stockholder Return

The following perforniance graph compares our cumulative total returns with the cumulative total returns of

the Standard Poors 500 and peer group index The graph assumes that $100 was invested on May 2008 the

day we became publicly traded company on the New York Stock Exchange with dividends reinvested
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Comparison of Total Returns

Assumes Initial Investment of $100

December 2009

The Peer Group Index consists of the following companies The Coca-Cola Company Coca-Cola Enterprises

mc Pepsi Bottling Group mc PepsiAmericas mc PepsiCo mc Hansen Natural Corporation The Cott Corpo

ration and National Beverage Corporation We believe that these companies help to convey an accurate comparison

of our performance with the industry
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ITEM SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following table presents selected historical financial data as of December 31 2009 2008 2007 2006 and

January 2006 the last day of fiscal 2005 All the selected historical financial data has been derived from our

Audited Consolidated Financial Statements and is stated in millions of dollars except for per
share information

For periods prior to May 2008 our financial data have been prepared on carve-out basis from Cadburys

consolidated financial statements using the historical results of operations assets and liabilities attributable to

Cadburys Americas Beverages business and including allocations of expenses from Cadbury The historical

Cadburys Americas Beverages information is our predecessor financial information The results included below

and elsewhere in this document are not necessarily indicative of our future performance and do not reflect our

financial performance had we been an independent publicly-traded company during the periods prior to May

2008 You should read this information along with the information included in Item Managements Discussion

and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations and our Audited Consolidated Financial

Statements and the related notes thereto included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K

We made three bottler acquisitions in 2006 and one bottler acquisition in 2007 Each of these four acquisitions

is included in our consolidated financial statements beginning on its date of acquisition As result our financial

data is not comparable on period-to-period basis

Fiscal Year

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005

Statements of Operations Data

Net sales 5531 5710 5695 4700 3205

Gross profit 3297 3120 3131 2741 2085

Income loss from operations1 1085 168 1004 1018 906

Net income loss1 555 312 497 510 477

Basic earnings loss per share2 2.18 1.23 1.96 2.01 1.88

Diluted earnings loss per share2 2.17 1.23 1.96 2.01 1.88

Dividends declared per share 0.15

Balance Sheet Data

Total assets 8776 8638 10528 9346 7433

Current portion of long-term obligations 126 708 404

Long-term obligations 2960 3522 2912 3084 2858

Other non-current liabilities 1775 1708 1460 1321 1013

Total stockholders equity 3187 2607 5021 3250 2426

Statements of Cash Flows

Cash provided by used in

Operating activities 865 709 603 581 583

Investing activities 251 1074 1087 502 283

Financing activities 554 1625 515 72 815

The 2008 loss from operations and net loss reflect non-cash impairment charges of $1039 million and

$696 million $1039 million net of tax benefit of $343 million respectively Refer to Note of the Notes to our

Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for further information

Earnings loss per share EPS are computed by dividing net income loss by the weighted average number

of common shares outstanding for the period For all periods prior to May 2008 the number of basic shares

used is the number of shares outstanding on May 2008 as no common stock of DPS was traded prior to

May 2008 and no DPS equity awards were outstanding for the prior periods Subsequent to May 2008 the

number of basic shares includes approximately 500000 shares related to former Cadbury Schweppes benefit

plans converted to DPS shares on daily volume weighted average
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ITEM MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

You should read the following discussion in conjunction with our audited financial statements and the related

notes thereto included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K This discussion contains forward-looking

statements that are based on managements current expectations estimates and projections about our business and

operations Our actual results may differ materially from those currently anticipated and expressed in such forward-

looking statements as result of various factors including the factors we describe under Special Note Regarding

Forward-Looking Statements Risk Factors and elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K

References in this Annual Report on Form 10-K to we our us DPS or the Company refer to Dr

Pepper Snapple Group Inc and all entities included in our Audited Consolidated Financial Statements Cadbury

plc and Cadbury Schweppes plc are hereafter collectively referred to as Cadbury unless otherwise indicated

Kraft Foods Inc which acquired Cadbury on February 2010 is hereafter referred to as Kraft

The periods presented in this section are the years ended December31 2009 2008 and 2007 which we refer to

as 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively

Business Overview

We are leading integrated brand owner manufacturer and distributor of non-alcoholic beverages in the

United States Canada and Mexico with diverse portfolio of flavored carbonated soft drinks CSDs and non-

carbonated beverages NCBs including ready-to-drink teas juices juice drinks and mixers Our brand portfolio

includes popular CSD brands such as Dr Pepper Sunkist soda 7UP AW Canada Dry Crush Squirt Peflafiel

Schweppes and Venom Energy and NCB brands such as Snapple Motts Hawaiian Punch Clamato Roses and

Mr Mrs mixers Our largest brand Dr Pepper is leading flavored CSD in the United States according to The

Nielsen Company We have some of the most recognized beverage brands in North America with significant

consumer awareness levels and long histories that evoke strong emotional connections with consumers

We operate primarily in the United States Mexico and Canada and we also distribute our products in the

Caribbean In 2009 90% of our net sales were generated in the United States 4% in Canada and 6% in Mexico and

the Caribbean

Our Business Model

We operate as brand owner manufacturer and distributor

Our Brand Ownership Businesses As brand owner we build our brands by promoting brand awareness

through marketing advertising and promotion and by developing new and innovative products and product line

extensions that address consumer preferences and needs As the owner of the formulas and proprietary know-how

required for the preparation of beverages we manufacture sell and distribute beverage concentrates and syrups

used primarily to produce CSDs and we manufacture sell and distribute primarily finished NCBs Most of our sales

of beverage concentrates are to bottlers who manufacture bottle sell and distribute our branded products into retail

channels We also manufacture sell and distribute syrups for use in beverage fountain dispensers to restaurants and

retailers as well as to fountain wholesalers who resell it to restaurants and retailers In addition we distribute

finished NCBs through ourselves and through third party distributors

Our beverage concentrates and brand ownership businesses are characterized by relatively low capital

investment raw materials and employee costs Although the cost of building or acquiring an established brand

can be significant established brands typically do not require significant ongoing expenditures other than

marketing and therefore generate relatively high margins Our packaged beverages brand ownership businesses

have characteristics of both of our beverage concentrates and brand ownership businesses as well as our

manufacturing and distribution businesses discussed below
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Our Manufacturing and Distribution Businesses We manufacture sell and distribute finished CSDs from

concentrates and finished NCBs and products mostly from ingredients other than concentrates We sell and

distribute packaged beverages and other products primarily into retail channels either directly to retail shelves or to

warehouses through our large fleet of delivery trucks or through third party logistics providers

Our manufacturing and distribution businesses are characterized by relatively high capital investment raw

material selling and distribution costs in each case compared to our beverage concentrates and brand ownership

businesses Our capital costs include investing in and maintaining our manufacturing and warehouse equipment

and facilities Our raw material costs include purchasing beverage concentrates ingredients and packaging

materials from variety of suppliers Our selling and distribution costs include significant costs related to

operating our large fleet of delivery trucks and employing significant number of employees to sell and deliver

finished beverages and other products to retailers As result of the high fixed costs associated with these types of

businesses we are focused on maintaining an adequate level of volumes as well as controlling capital expenditures

raw material selling and distribution costs In addition geographic proximity to our customers is critical

component of managing the high cost of transporting finished beverages relative to their retail price The

profitability of the manufacturing and distribution businesses is also dependent upon our ability to sell our

products into higher margin channels As result of these factors the margins of our manufacturing and distribution

businesses are significantly lower than those of our brand ownership businesses In light of the largely fixed cost

nature of the manufacturing and distribution businesses increases in costs for example raw materials tied to

commodity prices could have significant negative impact on the margins of our businesses

Approximately 87% of our 2009 Packaged Beverages net sales of branded products come from our own

brands with the remaining from the distribution of third party brands such as FIJI mineral water and AriZona tea In

addition small portion of our Packaged Beverages sales come from bottling beverages and other products for

private label owners or others for fee

Integrated Business Model We believe our brand ownership manufacturing and distribution are more

integrated than the United States operations of our principal competitors and that this differentiation provides us

with competitive advantage We believe our integrated business model

Strengthens our route-to-market by creating third consolidated bottling system in addition to the

Coca-Cola Company Coca-Cola and PepsiCo Inc PepsiCo affiliated systems In addition by

owning significant portion of our manufacturing and distribution network we are able to improve focus on

our owned and licensed brands especially brands such as 7UP Sunkist soda AW and Snapple which do

not have large presence in the Coca-Cola and PepsiCo affiliated bottler systems

Provides opportunities for net sales and profit growth through the alignment of the economic interests of our

brand ownership and our manufacturing and distribution businesses For example we can focus on

maximizing profitability for our company as whole rather than focusing on profitability generated from

either the sale of concentrates or the manufacturing and distribution of our products

Enables us to be more flexible and responsive to the changing needs of our large retail customers including

by coordinating sales service distribution promotions and product launches

Allows us to more fully leverage our scale and reduce costs by creating greater geographic manufacturing

and distribution coverage

Trends Affecting our Business

We believe the key trends influencing the North American liquid refreshment beverage market include

Changes in economic factors We believe changes in economic factors could impact consumers pur

chasing power which may result in decrease in purchases of our premium beverages and single-serve

packages

Increased health consciousness We believe the main beneficiaries of this trend include diet drinks

ready-to-drink teas and bottled waters
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Changes in lifestyle We believe changes in lifestyle will continue to drive increased sales of single-serve

beverages which typically have higher margins

Growing demographic segments in the United States We believe marketing and product innovations that

target fast growing population segments such as the Hispanic community in the United States will drive

further market growth

Product and packaging innovation We believe brand owners and bottling companies will continue to

create new products and packages such as beverages with new ingredients and new premium flavors as well

as innovative convenient packaging that address changes in consumer tastes and preferences

Changing retailer landscape As retailers continue to consolidate we believe retailers will support

consumer product companies that can provide an attractive portfolio of products strong value proposition

and efficient delivery

Recent volatility in raw material costs The costs of substantial portion of the raw materials used in the

beverage industry are dependent on commodity prices for aluminum natural gas resins corn pulp and other

commodities Commodity prices volatility has exerted
pressure on industry margins

Seasonality

The beverage market is subject to some seasonal variations Our beverage sales are generally higher during the

warmer months and also can be influenced by the timing of holidays as well as weather fluctuations

Segments

We report our business in three operating segments Beverage Concentrates Packaged Beverages and Latin

America Beverages

The key financial measures management uses to assess the performance of our segments are net sales and

segment operating profit loss SOP

Beverage Concentrates

Our Beverage Concentrates segment is principally brand ownership business In this segment we manu
facture and sell beverage concentrates in the United States and Canada Most of the brands in this segment are CSD

brands In 2009 our Beverage Concentrates segment had net sales of approximately $1.1 billion Key brands

include Dr Pepper 7UP Sunkist soda AW Canada Dry Crush Schweppes Squirt RC Cola Diet Rite Sundrop

Welchs Vernors Country Time and the concentrate form of Hawaiian Punch

We are the industry leader in flavored CSDs with 40.3% market share in the United States for 2009 as

measured by retail sales according to The Nielsen Company We are also the third largest CSD brand owner as

measured by 2009 retail sales in the United States and Canada and we own leading brand in most of the CSD

categories in which we compete

Almost all of our beverage concentrates are manufactured at our plant in St Louis Missouri

The beverage concentrates are shipped to third party bottlers as well as to our own manufacturing systems

who combine them with carbonation water sweeteners and other ingredients package it in PET containers glass

bottles and aluminum cans and sell it as finished beverage to retailers Beverage concentrates are also

manufactured into syrup which is shipped to fountain customers such as fast food restaurants who mix the

syrup with water and carbonation to create finished beverage at the point of sale to consumers Dr Pepper

represents most of our fountain channel volume Concentrate prices historically have been reviewed and adjusted at

least on an annual basis
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Our Beverage Concentrates brands are sold by our bottlers including our own Packaged Beverages segment

through all major retail channels including supermarkets fountains mass merchandisers club stores vending

machines convenience stores gas stations small groceries drug chains and dollar stores Unlike the majority of our

other CSD brands 72% of Dr Pepper volumes are distributed through the Coca-Cola affiliated and PepsiCo

affiliated bottler systems

Pepsi Bottling Group Inc PBG and Coca-Cola Enterprises Inc CCE are the two largest customers of

the Beverage Concentrates segment and constituted approximately 25% and 23% respectively of net sales during

2009

Packaged Beverages

Our Packaged Beverages segment is principally brand ownership manufacturing and distribution business

In this segment we primarily manufacture and distribute packaged beverages and other products including our

brands third party owned brands and certain private label beverages in the United States and Canada In 2009 our

Packaged Beverages segment had net sales of approximately $4.1 billion Key NCB brands in this segment include

Snapple Motts Hawaiian Punch Clamato Yoo-Hoo Country Time Nantucket Nectars ReaLemon Mr and Mrs

Roses and Margaritaville Key CSD brands in this segment include Dr Pepper 7UP Sunkist soda AW Canada

Dry Squirt RC Cola Welchs Vernors IBC Mistic and Venom Energy

Approximately 87% of our 2009 Packaged Beverages net sales of branded products come from our own

brands with the remaining from the distribution of third party brands such as FIJI mineral water and AriZona tea

portion of our sales also comes from bottling beverages and other products for private label owners or others for

fee Although the majority of our Packaged Beverages net sales relate to our brands we also provide

route-to-market for third party brand owners seeking effective distribution for their new and emerging brands

These brands give us exposure
in certain markets to fast growing segments of the beverage industry with minimal

capital investment

Our Packaged Beverages products are manufactured in multiple facilities across the United States and are sold

or distributed to retailers and their warehouses by our own distribution network or by third party distributors The

raw materials used to manufacture our products include aluminum cans and ends glass bottles PET bottles and

caps paper products sweeteners juices water and other ingredients

We sell our Packaged Beverages products both through our Direct Store Delivery system DSD supported

by fleet of more than 5000 trucks and approximately 12000 employees including sales representatives

merchandisers drivers and warehouse workers as well as through our Warehouse Direct delivery system WD
both of which include the sales to all major retail channels including supermarkets fountain channel mass

merchandisers club stores vending machines convenience stores gas stations small groceries drug chains and

dollar stores

In 2009 Wal-Mart Stores Inc the largest customer of our Packaged Beverages segment accounted for

approximately 17% of our net sales in this segment

Latin America Beverages

Our Latin America Beverages segment is brand ownership manufacturing and distribution business This

segment participates mainly in the carbonated mineral water flavored CSD bottled water and vegetable juice

categories with particular strength in carbonated mineral water and grapefruit flavored CSDs In 2009 our Latin

America Beverages segment had net sales of $357 million with our operations in Mexico representing approx

imately 88% of the net sales of this segment Key brands include Peflafiel Squirt Clamato and Aguafiel

In Mexico we manufacture and distribute our products through our bottling operations and third party bottlers

and distributors In the Caribbean we distribute our products through third party bottlers and distributors In

Mexico we also participate in joint venture to manufacture Aguafiel brand water with Acqua Minerale

San Benedetto We provide expertise in the Mexican beverage market and Acqua Minerale San Benedetto provides

expertise in water production and new packaging technologies
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We sell our finished beverages through all major Mexican retail channels including the mom and pop stores

supermarkets hypermarkets and on premise channels

Acquisitions

On July 11 2007 we acquired Southeast-Atlantic Beverage Corporation SeaBev SeaBev is included in

our consolidated statements of operations beginning on its date of acquisition

Volume

In evaluating our performance we consider different volume measures depending on whether we sell beverage

concentrates or finished beverages

Beverage Concentrates Sales Volume

In our Beverage Concentrates segment we measure our sales volume in two ways concentrates case

sales and bottler case sales The unit of measurement for both concentrates case sales and bottler case sales

equals 288 fluid ounces of finished beverage or 24 twelve ounce servings

Concentrates case sales represent units of measurement for concentrates sold by us to our bottlers and

distributors concentrates case is the amount of concentrate needed to make one case of 288 fluid ounces of

finished beverage It does not include any other component of the finished beverage other than concentrate Our net

sales in our concentrates businesses are based on concentrates cases sold

Although our net sales in our concentrates businesses are based on concentrates case sales we believe that

bottler case sales are also significant measure of our performance because they measure sales of our finished

beverages into retail channels

Packaged Beverages Sales Volume

In our Packaged Beverages segment we measure volume as case sales to customers case sale represents

unit of measurement equal to 288 fluid ounces of packaged beverage sold by us Case sales include both our owned-

brands and certain brands licensed to andlor distributed by us

Volume in Bottler Case Sales

In addition to sales volume we also measure volume in bottler case sales volume BCS as sales of

packaged beverages in equivalent 288 fluid ounce cases sold by us and our bottlers to retailers and independent

distributors

Bottler case sales and concentrates and packaged beverage sales volumes are not equal during any given period

due to changes in bottler concentrates inventory levels which can be affected by seasonality bottler inventory and

manufacturing practices and the timing of price increases and new product introductions

Results of Operations

Executive Summary 2009 Financial Overview and Recent Developments

Net sales totaled $5531 million for the year ended December 31 2009 decrease of $179 million or 3%

from the year
ended December 31 2008 largely due to the termination of our distribution agreement with

Hansen Natural Corporation Hansen and unfavorable foreign currency rates in Mexico

Net income for the year ended December 31 2009 was $555 million compared to net loss of $312 million

for the year
ended December 31 2008 an increase of $867 million or 278% primarily due to the absence of

impairment of goodwill and intangible assets and favorable commodity costs in the current year

Diluted earnings per share was $2.17 for the year
ended December 31 2009 compared with diluted loss

per share of $1.23 the prior year
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During the fourth quarter of 2009 the Companys Board of Directors the Board declared DPS first

dividend of $0.15 per share payable in the first quarter of 2010 Subsequent to December 31 2009 the

Board declared another dividend of $0.15 per share payable in the second quarter of 2010

During the fourth quarter of 2009 the Board authorized the repurchase of up to $200 million of the

Companys outstanding common stock Subsequent to December 31 2009 the Board authorized the

repurchase of an additional $800 million of the Companys outstanding common stock for total of

$1 billion authorized

DPS agreed to license certain brands to PepsiCo as result of PepsiCos acquisitions of PBG and

PepsiAmericas Inc in February 2010 As part of the transaction DPS received one-time cash payment

of $900 million which will be recorded as deferred revenue in 2010 and recognized as net sales ratably over

the estimated 25-year life of the customer relationship

DPS completed the issuance of $850 million aggregate principal amount of senior unsecured notes

consisting of $400 million of 1.70% senior notes the 2011 Notes and $450 million of 2.35% senior

notes the 2012 Notes due December 21 2011 and December 21 2012 respectively Proceeds from the

issuance as well as funds from the revolving credit facility the Revolver were used to make optional

repayments of $1805 million which represented the remaining principal balance on the senior unsecured

term loan Term Loan for the year ended December 31 2009

Subsequent to December 31 2009 the Company made optional repayments of $405 million which

represented the outstanding principal balance on the Revolver as of December 31 2009

For the periods prior to May 2008 our consolidated financial statements have been prepared on carve-

out basis from Cadburys consolidated financial statements using historical results of operations assets and

liabilities attributable to Cadburys Americas Beverages business and including allocations of expenses from

Cadbury The historical Cadburys Americas Beverages information is our predecessor financial information We

eliminate from our financial results all intercompany transactions between entities included in the combination and

the intercompany transactions with our equity method investees On May 2008 we became an independent

company

References in the financial tables to percentage changes that are not meaningful are denoted by NM
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Year Ended December 31 2009 Compared to Year Ended December 31 2008

Consolidated Operations

The following table sets forth our consolidated results of operation for the years
ended December 31 2009 and

2008 dollars in millions

For the Year Ended December 31

2009 2008
Percentage

Dollars Percent Dollars Percent Change

Net sales 5531 100.0% 5710 100.0% 3.1%

Cost of sales 2234 40.4 2590 45.4 13.7

Gross profit
3297 59.6 3120 54.6 5.7

Selling general and administrative expenses
2135 38.6 2075 36.3 2.9

Depreciation and amortization 117 2.1 113 2.0 3.5

Impairment of goodwill and intangible assets 1039 18.2 NM

Restructuring costs
57 1.0 NM

Other operating income expense
40 0.7 0.1 NM

Income loss from operations 1085 19.6 168 3.0 745.8

Interest expense
243 4.4 257 4.5 5.4

Interest income 0.1 32 0.6 87.5

Other income net 22 0.4 18 0.3 22.2

Income loss before provision for income taxes and equity

in earnings of unconsolidated subsidiaries 868 15.7 375 6.6 331.5

Provision for income taxes 315 5.7 61 Li 616.4

Income loss before equity in earnings of unconsolidated

subsidiaries 553 10.0 314 5.5 276.1

Equity in earnings of unconsolidated subsidiaries net of

tax
NM

Net income loss 555 lftO% 312 5.5% 277.9%

Volume

Volume CS increased 3% for the year ended December 31 2009 compared with the year
ended Decem

ber 31 2008 CSDs increased 4% and NCBs increased 2% The absence of Hansen sales following the contract

termination settlement in the United States and Mexico negatively impacted both total volumes and CSD volumes

by 1% for the year ended December 31 2009 In CSDs Dr Pepper increased 2% led by the launch of the Cherry line

extensions and strength in Diet Dr Pepper 7UP Sunkist soda AW and Canada Dry collectively our Core

brands remained flat while Squirt decreased 8% Driven by expanded distribution the Crush brand grew 198%

which added an additional 48 million cases in 2009 in Beverage Concentrates and Latin America Beverages In

NCBs 14% growth in Hawaiian Punch and 8% growth in Motts were partially offset by declines of 11% in Snapple

and 1% in both Aguafiel and Clamato Aguafiel declined 1% reflecting price increases and more competitive

environment Snapple volumes declined primarily due to higher net pricing associated with the Snapple premium

product restage and the impact of continued slowdown in consumer spending on premium beverage products In

2009 we extended and repositioned our Snapple offerings to support the long term health of the brand

In North America volume increased 3% and in Mexico and the Caribbean volume increased 2%

Net Sales

Net sales decreased $179 million or 3% for the year
ended December 31 2009 compared with the year

ended

December 31 2008 The impact of the contract termination settlement with Hansen reduced net sales for the year

ended December 31 2009 by $218 million Additionally the impact of foreign currency reduced net sales by

approximately $77 million These decreases were partially offset by price increases and an increase in volumes

primarily driven by the expanded distribution of Crush
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Gross Profit

Gross profit increased $177 million or 6% for the year ended December 31 2009 compared with the year

ended December 31 2008 The increase is result of several factors including decrease in commodity costs the

impact of price increases and volume increases and the positive impact of the LIFO adjustment partially offset by

the impact of the Hansen termination and foreign currency Gross profit for the year ended December 31 2009

includes LIFO benefit of $10 million compared to LIFO expense of $20 million for the year ended December31

2008 LIFO is an inventory costing method that assumes the most recent goods manufactured are sold first which in

periods of rising prices results in an expense that eliminates inflationary profits from net income Gross margin was

59% and 55% for the years ended December 31 2009 and 2008 respectively

Income Loss from Operations

The $1253 million increase in income from operations for the year ended December 31 2009 compared with

the year ended December 31 2008 was primarily driven by the absence of impairment of goodwill and intangible

assets in 2009 an increase in gross profit reduction in restructuring costs and one-time gains of $62 million

primarily related to the termination of distribution agreements In October 2008 Hansen notified us that it was

terminating our agreements to distribute Monster Energy as well as other Hansens branded beverages in the

U.S effective November 10 2008 In December 2008 Hansen notified us that it was were terminating the

agreement to distribute Monster Energy drinks in Mexico effective January 26 2009

Our annual impairment analysis performed as of December 31 2009 resulted in no impairment charges for

2009 compared to non-cash impairment charges of $1039 million for 2008

The pre-tax impairment charges in 2008 consisted of $278 million related to the Snapple brand $581 million

of distribution rights and $180 million of goodwill related to the DSD reporting unit Deteriorating economic

market conditions in the fourth quarter of 2008 triggered higher discount rates as well as lower volume and growth

projections which drove these impairments Indicative of the economic and market conditions our average stock

price declined 19% in the fourth quarter as compared to the average stock price from May 2008 the date of our

separation from Cadbury through September 30 2008 The impairment of the distribution rights was attributed to

insufficient net economic returns above working capital fixed assets and assembled workforce

There were no restructuring costs for the year ended December 31 2009 Restructuring costs of $57 million for

the
year ended December 31 2008 were primarily due to plan announced in October 2007 intended to create

more efficient organization that resulted in the reduction of employees in the Companys corporate sales and supply

chain functions and the continued integration of DSD into our Packaged Beverages segment

Selling general and administrative SGA expenses
increased for 2009 primarily due to an increase in

compensation-related costs and an increase in advertising and marketing of $53 million partially offset by

decreased transportation and warehousing costs of $69 million driven by supply chain network optimization efforts

in addition to decrease in fuel costs and carrier rates In connection with our separation from Cadbury we incurred

transaction costs and other one time costs of $33 million for the
year ended December 31 2008

Interest Expense Interest Income and Other Income

Interest expense decreased $14 million compared with the year ago period Interest expense for the year ended

December 31 2009 reflects our capital structure as stand-alone company and principally relates to our Term Loan

facility and senior unsecured notes As the Term Loan was fully repaid prior to its maturity in December 2009
the Company recorded $30 million

expense from the write-off of deferred financing fees and $7 million expense

from the de-designation of cash flow hedge associated with the Term Loan in interest expense During the year

ended December 31 2008 we incurred $26 million related to our bridge loan facility including $21 million of

financing fees expensed when the bridge loan facility was terminated on April 30 2008 and additional interest

expense on debt balances with subsidiaries of Cadbury prior to our separation

The $28 million decrease in interest income was primarily due to the loss of interest income earned on note

receivable balances with subsidiaries of Cadbury prior to our separation
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Other income of $22 million in 2009 includes $6 million related to indemnity income associated with the Tax

Sharing and Indemnification Agreement Tax Indemnity Agreement with Cadbury and an additional $16 million

of one-time separation related items resulting from an audit settlement during the third quarter of 2009

Provision for Income Taxes

The effective tax rates for 2009 and 2008 were 36.3% and 16.3% respectively The 2009 tax rate is higher than

2008 primarily because the 2008 tax rate reflects that the tax benefit provided on the 2008 impairment charge is at

an effective rate lower than our statutory rate primarily due to limits on the tax benefit provided against goodwill

However the 2009 tax rate also includes reduced level of nonrecurring separation related costs benefits due to tax

planning and decreased state tax rates which reduced our deferred tax liabilities These benefits were partly offset

by additional tax expense related to change in Mexican tax law enacted in the fourth quarter

Results of Operations by Segment

We report our business in three segments Beverage Concentrates Packaged Beverages and Latin America

Beverages The key financial measures management uses to assess the performance of our segments are net sales

and SOP The following tables set forth net sales and SOP for our segments for 2009 and 2008 as well as the

adjustments necessary to reconcile our total segment results to our consolidated results presented in accordance

with U.S GAAP dollars in millions

For the Year Ended

December 31

2009 2008

Net sales

Beverage Concentrates 1063 983

Packaged Beverages
4111 4305

Latin America Beverages
357 422

Net sales 5531 5710

For the Year Ended

December 31

2009 2008

sop

Beverage Concentrates 683 622

Packaged Beverages
573 483

Latin America Beverages 54 86

Total SOP 1310 1191

Unallocated corporate costs 265 259

Impairment of goodwill and intangible assets 1039

Restructuring costs 57

Other operating income expense
40

Income loss from operations 1085 168

Interest expense net 239 225

Other income net 22 18

Income loss before provision for income taxes and equity in earnings of

unconsolidated subsidiaries 868 375
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Beverage Concentrates

The following table details our Beverage Concentrates segments net sales and SOP for 2009 and 2008 dollars

in millions

For the Year Ended

December 31 Amount
2009 2008 Change

Net sales 1063 983 80

SOP 683 622 61

Net sales for the year ended December 31 2009 increased $80 million compared with year ended Decem

ber 31 2008 due to 6% increase in volumes as well as concentrate price increases The expanded distribution of

Crush added an incremental $74 million to net sales for the year
ended December 31 2009 The increase in net sales

was partially offset by higher fountain food service discounts and coupon spending

SOP increased $61 million for the year ended December 31 2009 as compared with the year the ended

December 31 2008 primarily driven by the increase in net sales and favorable manufacturing and distribution costs

partially offset by increased marketing investments and higher personnel costs

Volume BCS increased 5% for the year ended December 31 2009 compared with the year
ended

December 31 2008 primarily driven by the expanded distribution of Crush which added an incremental 44 million

cases in 2009 Dr Pepper increased 2% led by the launch of the Cherry line extensions and strength in Diet Dr

Pepper The volume of our Core brands declined 1%

Packaged Beverages

The following table details our Packaged Beverages segments net sales and SOP for 2009 and 2008 dollars in

millions

For the Year Ended

December 31 Amount
2009 2008 Change

Net sales 4111 4305 194

SOP 573 483 90

Sales volumes increased less than 1% for the year ended December 31 2009 compared with the year
ended

December 31 2008 The absence of sales of Hansens products following the termination of that distribution

agreement during the fourth quarter of 2008 negatively impacted total volumes by approximately 1% Total CSD

volumes increased 1% led by increases in Dr Pepper whose volumes increased high single digits led by the launch of

the Cherry line extensions Volumes for our Core brands increased low single digits Total NCB volumes increased

1% due to shift to value products such as Hawaiian Punch which increased low double digits partially offset by

volume declines in the other NCB brands

Net sales decreased $194 million for the year ended December 31 2009 compared with the year ended

December31 2008 Hansens termination reduced net sales for the year ended December 31 2009 by $200 million

Additionally net sales were favorably impacted by volume and price/mix increases primarily in CSDs offset by

unfavorable impact of product mix

SOP increased $90 million for the year ended December31 2009 compared with the
year

ended December 31

2008 The increase was driven primarily due to lower commodity costs including packaging materials and

sweeteners and lower transportation and warehouse costs driven by supply chain network optimization efforts in

addition to decrease in fuel costs and carrier rates These increases in SOP were partially offset by increased

advertising and marketing costs and costs associated with information technology IT infrastructure upgrades

The Hansens termination reduced SOP by approximately $40 million
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Latin America Beverages

The following table details our Latin America Beverages segments net sales and SOP for 2009 and 2008

dollars in millions

For the Year Ended

December 31 Amount

2009 2008 Change

Net sales
357 422 65

soi 54 86 32

Sales volumes increased 2% for the year
ended December 31 2009 compared with the year ended Decem

ber 31 2008 The increase in volumes was driven by additional distribution routes gains in Crush with the

introduction of new flavors in 2.3 liter value offering which added an incremental million cases in 2009 and

gains in Peflafiel which benefited from new marketing campaign partially offset by declines in Squirt

Net sales decreased $65 million for the year ended December 31 2009 compared with the year ended

December 31 2008 primarily due to the impact of changes in foreign currency the termination of Hansens

distribution agreement early in the first quarter of 2009 and an unfavorable impact related to product mix partially

offset by increases in sales volumes The termination of the Hansen agreement reduced net sales by approximately

$18 million

SOP decreased $32 million for the year
ended December 31 2009 compared with the year ended December 31

2008 primarily due to the devaluation of the Mexican peso Hansens termination which had net impact of

$5 million shift to value products and an increase in costs associated with distribution route expansion partially

offset by increased sales volume

Accounting for the Separation from Cadbury

Upon separation effective May 2008 we became an independent company which established new

consolidated reporting structure For the periods prior to May 2008 our consolidated financial information has

been prepared on carve-out basis from Cadburys consolidated financial statements using the historical results

of operations assets and liabilities attributable to Cadburys Americas Beverages business and including allo

cations of expenses
from Cadbury The results may not be indicative of our future performance and may not reflect

our financial performance had we been an independent publicly-traded company during those prior periods
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Items Impacting the Consolidated Statements of Operations

The following transactions related to our separation from Cadbury were included in the Consolidated

Statements of Operations for the year ended December 31 2009 and 2008 in millions

2009 2008

Transaction costs and other one time separation costs1 33

Costs associated with the bridge loan facility2 24

Incremental tax benefit expense related to separation excluding indemnified

taxes 11

Impact of Cadbury tax election3

DPS incurred transaction costs and other one time separation costs of $33 million for the year ended

December 31 2008 These costs are included in SGA expenses in the statement of operations

The Company incurred $24 million of costs for the year ended December 31 2008 associated with the

$1.7 billion bridge loan facility which was entered into to reduce financing risks and facilitate Cadburys

separation of the Company Financing fees of $21 million which were expensed when the bridge loan facility

was terminated on April 30 2008 and $5 million of interest expense were included as component of interest

expense partially offset by $2 million in interest income while in escrow

The Company incurred charge to net income of $5 million $9 million tax charge offset by $4 million of

indemnity income caused by tax election made by Cadbury in December 2008

Items Impacting Income Taxes

The consolidated financial statements present the taxes of our stand alone business and contain certain taxes

transferred to us at separation in accordance with the Tax indemnity Agreement between us and Cadbury This

agreement provides for the transfer to us of taxes related to an entity that was part of Cadburys confectionery
business and therefore not part of our historical consolidated financial statements The consolidated financial

statements also reflect that the Tax Indemnity Agreement requires Cadbury to indemnify us for these taxes These

taxes and the associated indemnity may change over time as estimates of the amounts change Changes in estimates

will be reflected when facts change and those changes in estimate will be reflected in our statement of operations at

the time of the estimate change In addition pursuant to the terms of the Tax Indemnity Agreement if we breach

certain covenants or other obligations or we are involved in certain change-in-control transactions Cadbury may
not be required to indemnify us for any of these unrecognized tax benefits that are subsequently realized

Kraft acquired Cadbury on February 2010 and therefore assumes responsibility for Cadburys indemnity

obligations under the terms of the Tax Indemnity Agreement

Refer to Note 12 of the Notes to our Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for further information

regarding the tax impact of the separation
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Year Ended December 31 2008 Compared to Year Ended December 31 2007

Consolidated Operations

The following table sets forth our consolidated results of operation for the years
ended December 31 2008 and

2007 dollars in millions

For the Year Ended December 31

2008 2007
Percentage

Dollars Percent Dollars Percent Change

Net sales 5710 100.0% 5695 100.0% 0.3%

Cost of sales 2590 45.4 2564 45.0 1.0

Gross profit
3120 54.6 3131 55.0 0.4

Selling general and administrative expenses
2075 36.3 2018 35.5 2.8

Depreciation and amortization 113 2.0 98 1.7 15.3

Impairment of goodwill and intangible assets 1039 18.2 0.1 NM

Restructuring costs 57 1.0 76 1.3 25.0

Other operating expense income 0.1 71 1.2 NM

Loss income from operations 168 3.0 1004 17.6 NM

Interest expense
257 4.5 253 4.4 1.6

Interest income 32 0.6 64 1.1 50.0

Other income net 18 0.3 NM

Loss income before provision for income taxes

and equity in earnings of unconsolidated

subsidiaries 375 6.6 817 14.3 NM

Provision for income taxes 61 1.1 322 5.6 NM

Loss income before equity in earnings of

unconsolidated subsidiaries 314 5.5 495 8.7 NM

Equity in earnings of unconsolidated subsidiaries

netoftax _____

Net loss income 312 5.5% 497 8.7% NM

Volume

Volume BCS declined 2% for the year ended December 31 2008 as compared with the year ended

December 31 2007 CSDs declined 1% and NCBs declined 7% The absence of glaceau brand glaceau sales

following the termination of the distribution agreement in 2007 negatively impacted total volumes and NCB

volumes by 1% and 7% respectively In CSDs Dr Pepper declined 1% primarily due to continued declines in the

Soda Fountain Classics line Our Core brands declined 2% primarily related to 7% decline in 7UP as the brand

cycled the final stages of launch support for 7UP with 100% Natural Flavors and the re-launch of Diet 7UP partially

offset by 3% increase in Canada Dry due to the launch of Canada Dry Green Tea Ginger Ale In NCBs 9% growth

in Hawaiian Punch 6% growth in Clamato and 2% growth in Motts were more than offset by declines of 17% in

Aguafiel 7% in Snapple and the loss of glaceau distribution rights Aguafiel declined 17% reflecting price increases

and more competitive environment Our Snapple volumes were down 7% as the brand overlapped 5% growth in

the prior year
driven by aggressive promotional activity that we chose not to repeat in 2008 as well as the impact of

weakened retail environment on our premium products In North America volume declined 2% and in Mexico and

the Caribbean volume declined 4%
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Net Sales

Net sales increased $15 million for 2008 compared with 2007 primarily due to price increases and an increase

in concentrate sales as bottlers purchased more concentrate in advance of planned concentrate price increases

Concentrate price increases were effective in January 2009 compared with concentrate price increases which were

made in February 2008 These increases were partially offset by decline in sales volumes and an increase in

discounts paid to customers The termination of the glaceau distribution agreement on November 2007 and the

Hansen distribution agreement in the United States on November 10 2008 reduced 2008 net sales by $227 million

and $23 million respectively Net sales resulting from the acquisition of SeaBev in July 2007 added an incremental

$61 million to 2008 consolidated net sales

Gross Profit

Gross profit remained flat for 2008 compared with the prior year Increased pricing largely offset the decrease

in sales volumes increased customer discounts and increased commodity costs across our segments Gross profit

for the year ended December 31 2008 includes LIFO expense of $20 million compared to $6 million in 2007
LIFO is an inventory costing method that assumes the most recent goods manufactured are sold first which in

periods of rising prices results in an expense that eliminates inflationary profits from net income Gross margin was
55% for the years ended December 31 2008 and 2007

Loss Income from Operations

The $1172 million decrease in income from operations for 2008 compared with 2007 was primarily driven by

impairment charges of $1039 million in 2008 one time gain we recognized in 2007 of $71 million in connection

with the termination of the glaceau distribution agreement and higher SGA expenses in 2008 partially offset by
lower restructuring costs

Our annual impairment analysis performed as of December 31 2008 resulted in non-cash impairment charges

of $1039 million for 2008 The
pre-tax charges consisted of $278 million related to the Snapple brand $581 million

of distribution rights and $180 million of goodwill related to the DSD reporting unit Deteriorating economic and

market conditions in the fourth
quarter triggered higher discount rates as well as lower volume and growth

projections which drove these impairments Indicative of the economic and market conditions our average stock

price declined 19% in the fourth quarter of 2008 as compared to the
average stock price from May 2008 the date

of our separation from Cadbury through September 30 2008 The impairment of the distribution rights was
attributed to insufficient net economic returns above working capital fixed assets and assembled workforce

SGA
expenses increased for 2008 primarily due to separation related costs higher transportation costs and

increased payroll and payroll related costs In connection with our separation from Cadbury we incurred transaction

costs and other one time costs of $33 million for 2008 We incurred higher transportation costs principally due to an

increase of $22 million related to higher fuel prices These increases were partially offset by benefits from

restructuring initiatives announced in 2007 lower marketing costs and $12 million in lower stock-based com
pensation expense

Restructuring costs of $57 million and $76 million for 2008 and 2007 respectively were primarily due to

plan announced in October 2007 intended to create more efficient organization that resulted in the reduction of

employees in the Companys corporate sales and supply chain functions and the continued integration of DSD into

other operations of the Company Restructuring costs for 2007 were higher due to higher costs associated with the

organizational restructuring as well as additional costs recognized for the integration of technology facilities and the

closure of facility

The loss of the glaceau distribution agreement reduced 2008 income from operations by $40 million

excluding the one time gain from the payment we received on termination
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Interest Expense Interest Income and Other Income

Interest expense increased $4 million reflecting our capital structure as stand-alone company principally

relating to our Term Loan and unsecured notes Interest expense
for 2008 contained $26 million related to our

bridge loan facility including $21 million of financing fees expensed when the bridge loan facility was terminated

In 2008 we incurred $160 million less interest expense
related to debt owed to Cadbury and $19 million related to

third party debt settlement

The $32 million decrease in interest income was primarily due to the loss of interest income earned on note

receivable balances with subsidiaries of Cadbury partially offset as we earned interest income on the funds from the

bridge loan facility and other cash balances

Other income of $18 million in 2008 primarily related to indemnity income associated with the Tax Indemnity

Agreement with Cadbury

Provision for Income Taxes

The effective tax rates for 2008 and 2007 were 16.3% and 39.4% respectively The 2008 tax rate reflects that

the tax benefit provided on the 2008 impairment charge is at an effective rate lower than our statutory rate primarily

due to limits on the tax benefit provided against goodwill The 2008 tax benefit also reflects expense
of $19 million

related to items for which Cadbury is obligated to indemnify us for under the Tax Indemnity Agreement as well as

additional tax expense
of $16 million driven by separation transactions

Results of Operations by Segment

We report our business in three segments Beverage Concentrates Packaged Beverages and Latin America

Beverages The key financial measures management uses to assess the performance of our segments are net sales

and SOP The following tables set forth net sales and SOP for our segments for 2008 and 2007 as well as the

adjustments necessary to reconcile our total segment results to our consolidated results presented in accordance

with U.S GAAP dollars in millions

For the Year Ended

December 31

2008 2007

Net sales

Beverage Concentrates
983 984

Packaged Beverages
4305 4295

Latin America Beverages
422 416

Net sales
5710 5695
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For the Year Ended
December 31

2008 2007

Sop

Beverage Concentrates 622 608

Packaged Beverages 483 564

Latin America Beverages 86 96

Total SOP 1191 1268

Unallocated corporate costs 259 253

Impairment of goodwill and intangible assets 1039

Restructuring costs 57 76

Other operating expense income 71

Loss income from operations 168 1004

Interest expense net 225 189
Other income expense 18

Loss income before provision for income taxes and equity in earnings of

unconsolidated subsidiaries 375 817

Beverage Concentrates

The following table details our Beverage Concentrates segments net sales and SOP for 2008 and 2007 dollars

in millions

For the Year Ended
December 31 Amount

2008 2007 Change

Net sales 983 984

SOP 622 608 14

Net sales for 2008 decreased $1 million compared with 2007 primarily due to an increase in fountain food

service channel discounts This decrease was partially offset by price increases and favorable timing change of

concentrate sales as bottlers purchased more concentrate in advance of planned concentrate price increases

Concentrate price increases were effective in January 2009 compared with price increases which were effective in

February 2008

SOP increased $14 million for 2008 as compared with 2007 driven by lower personnel costs primarily due to

savings generated from restructuring initiatives and lower marketing costs

Volume BCS was flat in 2008 Dr Pepper volumes were flat as 1% gain in the fountain foodservice channel

offset declines in the Soda Fountain Classics line The Core brands were flat with declines in 7UP as the brand

cycled the final stages of launch support for 7UP with 100% Natural Flavors and the re-launch of Diet 7UP partially

offset by 3% increase in Canada Dry resulting from the launch of Canada Dry Green Tea Ginger Ale
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Packaged Beverages

The following table details our Packaged Beverages segments net sales and SOP for 2008 and 2007 dollars in

millions

For the Year Ended

December 31 Amount

2008 2007 Change

Net sales
4305 4295 10

so 483 564 81

Sales volume decreased by approximately 3% for 2008 compared to 2007 The termination of the glaceau

distribution agreement on November 2007 and the Hansen distribution agreement on November 10 2008 reduced

sales volume by 3% 2% decrease in CSD volume and 10% decrease in Snapple volume as we chose not to

repeat aggressive promotional activity used in 2007 and from the impact of weakened retail environment on our

premium products were offset by 15% increase in Hawaiian Punch volume sales from recently launched

products including Venom Energy and AW and Sunkist Ready-to-Drink Floats and 2% volume increases in both

Clamato and Motts

Net sales increased $10 million for 2008 compared with 2007 reflecting sales volume declines offset by price

increases primarily driven by the Motts brand The termination of the glaceau and Hansen agreements reduced

2008 net sales by $227 million and $23 million respectively The acquisition of SeaBev in July 2007 added an

incremental $79 million to our net sales in 2008

SOP decreased $81 million for 2008 compared with 2007 primarily due to higher commodity and component

costs higher distribution costs and increased wage and benefit costs These decreases were partially offset by the

growth in net sales combined with lower marketing costs as we cycled the introduction of Accelerade and savings

generated from restructuring initiatives The termination of the glaceau agreement reduced SOP by $40 million

excluding one time gain of $13 million from the payment we received on termination The termination of the

Hansen agreement reduced SOP by $3 million

During 2008 our Packaged Beverages segment generated approximately $197 million and $38 million in net

sales and operating profits respectively from sales of Hansen brands to third parties in the United States

Latin America Beverages

The following table details our Latin America Beverages segments net sales and SOP for 2008 and 2007

dollars in millions

For the Year Ended

December 31 Amount

2008 2007 Change

Net sales
422 416

oi 86 96 10

Sales volumes decreased 4% in 2008 compared with 2007 principally
driven by the performance of Aguafiel

and Peæafiel due to aggressive price competition

Net sales increased $6 million in 2008 compared with 2007 primarily due to price increases and favorable

channel and product mix partially
offset by decline in volumes

SOP decreased $10 million in 2008 due to an increase in raw material costs combined with higher distribution

and wage costs and volume declines partially offset by the increase in net sales and lower marketing costs Raw

material costs were negatively affected both by higher costs of packaging materials and the Mexican Peso

devaluation in the fourth quarter of 2008 An increase in distribution costs and wages resulted from additional

distribution routes added during the year
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In letter dated December 11 2008 we received formal notification from Hansen terminating our agreements

to distribute Monster Energy in Mexico effective January 26 2009 During 2008 our Latin America Beverages

segment generated approximately $19 million and $6 million in net sales and operating profits respectively from

sales of Hansen brands to third parties in Mexico

Accounting for the Separation from Cadbury

Upon separation effective May 2008 we became an independent company which established new
consolidated reporting structure For the periods prior to May 2008 our consolidated financial information has

been prepared on carve-out basis from Cadburys consolidated financial statements using the historical results

of operations assets and liabilities attributable to Cadburys Americas Beverages business and including allo

cations of expenses from Cadbury The results may not be indicative of our future performance and may not reflect

our financial performance had we been an independent publicly-traded company during those prior periods

Settlement of Related Party Balances

Upon our separation from Cadbury we settled debt and other balances with Cadbury eliminated Cadburys net

investment in us and purchased certain assets from Cadbury related to our business The following debt and other

balances were settled with Cadbury upon separation in millions

Related party receivable 11

Notes receivable from related parties 1375

Related party payable 70
Current portion of the long-term debt payable to related parties 140
Long-term debt payable to related parties 2909

Net cash settlement of related party balances 1733

Items Impacting the Statement of Operations and Income Taxes

Certain transactions related to our separation from Cadbury were included in the statement of operations for

the year ended December 31 2008 Additionally the consolidated financial statements present the taxes of our

stand alone business and contain certain taxes transferred to us at separation in accordance with the Tax Indemnity

Agreement agreed between us and Kraft which acquired Cadbury on February 2010 Refer to our Results of

Operations for the Year Ended December 31 2009 Compared to Year Ended December 31 2008 for further

information

Items Impacting Equity

In connection with our separation from Cadbury the following transactions were recorded as component of

Cadburys net investment in us in millions

Contributions Distributions

Legal restructuring to purchase Canada operations from Cadbury 894
Legal restructuring relating to Cadbury confectionery operations

including debt repayment 809
Legal restructuring relating to Mexico operations 520
Contributions from parent 318

Tax reserve provided under FIN 48 as part of separation net of

indemnity 19
Other 59

Total 259 2242
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Prior to May 2008 our total invested equity represented Cadburys interest in our recorded assets In

connection with the distribution of our stock to Cadbury plc shareholders on May 2008 Cadburys total invested

equity was reclassified to reflect the post-separation capital structure of $3 million par value of outstanding

common stock and contributed capital of $3133 million

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Trends and Uncertainties Affecting Liquidity

Customer and consumer demand for the Companys products may be impacted by recession or other economic

downturn in the United States Canada Mexico or the Caribbean which could result in reduction in our sales

volume Similarly disruptions in financial and credit markets may impact the Companys ability to manage normal

commercial relationships with its customers suppliers and creditors These disruptions could have negative

impact on the ability of our customers to timely pay their obligations to us thus reducing our cash flow or our

vendors to timely supply materials

The Company could also face increased counterparty risk for our cash investments and our hedge arrange

ments Declines in the securities and credit markets could also affect the Companys pension fund which in turn

could increase funding requirements

We believe that the following recent transactions and trends and uncertainties may impact liquidity

changes in economic factors could impact consumers purchasing power

we have substantial third party debt as of December 31 2009 and

we will continue to make capital expenditures to complete our new manufacturing capacity upgrade our

existing plants and distribution fleet of trucks replace and expand our cold drink equipment and make

investments in IT systems in order to improve operating efficiencies and lower costs

On February 26 2010 the Company received one-time cash payment of $900 million for licensing certain

brands to PepsiCo on completion of PepsiCos acquisition of PBG and PAS

Financing Arrangements

2009 Borrowings and Repayments

On November 20 2009 the Board authorized the Company to issue up to $1.5 billion of debt securities

through the Securities and Exchange Commission shelf registration process At December 31 2009 $650 million

remained authorized to be issued following the issuance described below

On December 21 2009 the Company completed the issuance of $850 million aggregate principal amount of

senior unsecured notes consisting of the 2011 and 2012 Notes due December 21 2011 and December 21 2012

respectively

On December 30 2009 the Company borrowed $405 million from the Revolver

On December 31 2009 the Company fully repaid the principal balance on the senior unsecured Term Loan

facility prior to its maturity

Subsequent to December 31 2009 the Company made optional repayments of $405 million which represented

the outstanding principal balance on the Revolver as of December 31 2009

2008 Borrowings and Repayments

On March 10 2008 the Company entered into arrangements with group of lenders to provide an aggregate of

$4.4 billion in senior financing The arrangements consisted of term loan facility revolving credit facility and

bridge loan facility
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On April 11 2008 these arrangements were amended and restated The amended and restated arrangements

consist of $2.7 billion senior unsecured credit agreement that provided $2.2 billion Term Loan facility and

$500 million revolving credit facility collectively the senior unsecured credit facility and 364-day bridge

credit agreement that provided $1.7 billion bridge loan facility

On May 2008 in connection with the Companys separation from Cadbury $3019 million was repaid to

Cadbury Prior to separation from Cadbury the Company had variety of debt agreements with other wholly-owned

subsidiaries of Cadbury that were unrelated to DPS business

During 2008 the Company completed the issuance of $1.7 billion aggregate principal amount of senior

unsecured notes consisting of $250 million
aggregate principal amount of 6.12% senior notes due May 2013 the

2013 Notes $1.2 billion aggregate principal amount of 6.82% senior notes due May 2018 the 2018 Notes
and $250 million aggregate principal amount of 7.45% senior notes due May 2038 the 2038 Notes

During 2008 the Company repaid the $1.7 billion bridge loan facility and made combined mandatory and

optional repayments toward the Term Loan principal totaling $395 million

The following is description of the senior unsecured credit facility and the senior unsecured notes The

summaries of the senior unsecured credit facility and the senior unsecured notes are qualified in their entirety by the

specific terms and provisions of the senior unsecured credit agreement and the indenture governing the senior

unsecured notes respectively copies of which are included as exhibits to this Annual Report on Form 10-K

Senior Unsecured Credit Facility

The Companys senior unsecured credit agreement provides senior unsecured financing of up to $2.7 billion

consisting of

the Term Loan in an aggregate principal amount of $2.2 billion with term of five years which was fully

repaid in December 2009 prior to its maturity and

the Revolver in an aggregate principal amount of $500 million with maturity in 2013 The balance of

principal borrowings under the Revolver was $405 million and $0 as of December 31 2009 and 2008
respectively Up to $75 million of the Revolver is available for the issuance of letters of credit of which

$41 million and $38 million was utilized as of December 31 2009 and 2008 respectively $54 million was

available for additional borrowings or letters of credit as of December 31 2009

Borrowings under the senior unsecured credit facility bear interest at floating rate per annum based upon the

London interbank offered rate for dollars LIBOR or the alternate base rate ABR in each case plus an

applicable margin which varies based upon the Companys debt ratings from 1.00% to 2.50% in the case of LIBOR
loans and 0.00% to 1.50% in the case of ABR loans The alternate base rate means the greater of JPMorgan
Chase Banks prime rate and the federal funds effective rate plus one half of 1% Interest is payable on the last

day of the interest period but not less than quarterly in the case of any LIBOR loan and on the last day of March
June September and December of each year in the case of any ABR loan The average interest rate for the years
ended December 31 2009 and 2008 was 4.9% for each year Interest expense was $129 million and $85 million

which included amortization of deferred financing costs of $16 million and $10 million for the
years ended

December 31 2009 and 2008 respectively Deferred financing costs of $30 million were expensed when the Term

Loan was terminated upon repayment in December 2009

The Company utilizes interest rate swaps to convert variable interest rates to fixed rates See Note 10 of the

Notes to our Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for further information regarding derivatives

An unused commitment fee is payable quarterly to the lenders on the unused portion of the commitments in

respect of the Revolver equal to 0.15% to 0.50% per annum depending upon the Companys debt ratings The

Company incurred $1 million in unused commitment fees in each year ended December 31 2009 and 2008

Additionally interest expense included $3 million and $2 million for amortization of deferred financing costs

associated with the Revolver for the
years ended December 31 2009 and 2008 respectively
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The Company was required to pay annual amortization in equal quarterly
installments on the aggregate

principal amount of the Term Loan equal to 10% or $220 million per year for installments due in the first and

second years following the initial date of funding ii 15% or $330 million per year
for installments due in the third

and fourth years following the initial date of funding and iii 50% or $1100 million for installments due in the

fifth year following the initial date of funding Principal amounts outstanding under the Revolver are due and

payable in full at maturity

All obligations under the senior unsecured credit facility are guaranteed by substantially all of the Companys

existing and future direct and indirect domestic subsidiaries

The senior unsecured credit facility contains customary negative covenants that among other things restrict

the Companys ability to incur debt at subsidiaries that are not guarantors incur liens merge or sell transfer lease

or otherwise dispose of all or substantially all assets make investments loans advances guarantees and

acquisitions enter into transactions with affiliates and enter into agreements restricting its ability to incur liens

or the ability of subsidiaries to make distributions These ovenants are subject to certain exceptions described in the

senior credit agreement In addition the senior unsecured credit facility requires the Company to comply with

maximum total leverage ratio covenant and minimum interest coverage
ratio covenant as defined in the senior

credit agreement The senior unsecured credit facility also contains certain usual and customary representations
and

warranties affirmative covenants and events of default As of December 31 2009 the Company was in compliance

with all financial covenant requirements

Senior Unsecured Notes

The 2011 and 2012 Notes

In December 2009 the Company completed the issuance of $850 million aggregate principal amount of senior

unsecured notes consisting of the 2011 and 2012 Notes The discount associated with the 2011 and 2012 Notes was

less than $1 million The weighted average
interest rate of the 2011 and 2012 Notes was 2.0% for the year ended

December 31 2009 The net proceeds from the sale of the debentures were used for repayment of existing

indebtedness under the Term Loan Interest on the 2011 and 2012 Notes is payable semi-annually on June 21 and

December 21 Interest expense was $1 million for the year
ended December 31 2009 including amortization of

deferred financing costs of less than $1 million

The Company utilizes interest rate swaps effective December 21 2009 to convert fixed interest rates to

variable rates See Note 10 of the Notes to our Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for further information

regarding derivatives

The indenture governing
the 2011 and 2012 Notes among other things limits the Companys ability to incur

indebtedness secured by principal properties to enter into certain sale and leaseback transactions and to enter into

certain mergers or transfers of substantially all of DPS assets The 2011 and 2012 Notes are guaranteed by

substantially all of the Companys existing and future direct and indirect domestic subsidiaries

The 2013 2018 and 2038 Notes

During 2008 the Company completed the issuance of $1700 million aggregate principal amount of senior

unsecured notes consisting of the 2013 2018 and 2038 Notes The weighted average interest rate of the 2013 2018

and 2038 Notes was 6.8% for the years ended December 31 2009 and 2008 Interest on the senior unsecured notes is

payable semi-annually on May and November and is subject to adjustment Interest expense was $117 million

and $78 million which included amortization of deferred financing costs of $1 million each for the years
ended

December 31 2009 and 2008 respectively

The indenture governing the senior unsecured notes among other things limits the Companys ability to incur

indebtedness secured by principal properties to enter into certain sale and lease back transactions and to enter into

certain mergers or transfers of substantially all of DPS assets The senior unsecured notes are guaranteed by

substantially all of the Companys existing and future direct and indirect domestic subsidiaries
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Bridge Loan Facility and Separation from Cadbury

The Companys bridge credit agreement provided senior unsecured bridge loan facility in an aggregate
principal amount of $1700 million with term of 364 days from the date the bridge loan facility is funded

On April 11 2008 DPS borrowed $1700 million under the bridge loan facility to reduce financing risks and
facilitate Cadburys separation of the Company All of the proceeds from the borrowings were placed into interest-

bearing collateral accounts On April 30 2008 borrowings under the bridge loan facility were released from the

collateral account containing such funds and returned to the lenders and the 364-day bridge loan facility was
terminated For the year ended December 31 2008 the Company incurred $24 million of costs associated with the

bridge loan facility Financing fees of $21 million which were expensed when the bridge loan facility was

terminated and $5 million of interest expense were included as component of interest expense These costs were

partially offset as the Company earned $2 million in interest income on the bridge loan while in escrow

On May 2008 upon the Companys separation from Cadbury the borrowings under the Term Loan

facility and the net proceeds of the senior unsecured notes were released to DPS from collateral accounts and escrow
accounts The Company used the funds to settle with Cadbury related

party debt and other balances eliminate

Cadburys net investment in the Company purchase certain assets from Cadbury related to DPS business and pay
fees and expenses related to the Companys credit facilities

Use of Proceeds

We used the funds from the Term Loan and the net proceeds of the 2013 2018 and 2038 Notes to settle with

Cadbury related party debt and other balances eliminate Cadburys net investment in us purchase certain assets

from Cadbury related to our business and pay fees and expenses related to our credit facilities We used the funds

from the 2011 and 2012 Notes to partially repay principal associated with the Term Loan

Debt Ratings

As of December 31 2009 our debt ratings were Baa3 with stable outlook from Moodys Investor Service and
BBB- with positive outlook from Standard Poors We are currently on positive watch by both rating agencies

These debt ratings impact the interest we pay on our financing arrangements downgrade of one or both of

our debt ratings could increase our interest expense and decrease the cash available to fund anticipated obligations

Cash Management

Prior to separation our cash was available for use and was regularly swept by Cadbury operations in the United
States at its discretion Cadbury also funded our operating and investing activities as needed We earned interest

income on certain related party balances Our interest income has been reduced due to the settlement of the related

party balances upon separation and accordingly we expect interest income for 2010 to be minimal

Post separation we fund our liquidity needs from cash flow from operations and amounts available under

financing arrangements

Capital Expenditures

Capital expenditures were $317 million $304 million and $230 million for 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively
Capital expenditures for all periods primarily consisted of expansion of our capabilities in existing facilities cold
drink equipment and IT investments for new systems The increase in expenditures for 2009 compared with 2008
was primarily related to costs of new manufacturing and distribution center in Victorville California The increase
in 2008 compared with 2007 was primarily related to early stage costs of new manufacturing and distribution

center in Victorville California We continue to expect to incur discretionary annual capital expenditures net of

proceeds from disposals in an amount equal to approximately 5% of our net sales which we expect to fund through
cash provided by operating activities
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Restructuring

We have implemented restructuring programs from time to time and have incurred costs that are designed to

improve operating effectiveness and lower costs These programs have included closure of manufacturing plants

reductions in force integration of back office operations and outsourcing of certain transactional activities We

recorded $57 million and $76 million of restructuring costs for 2008 and 2007 respectively There were no

significant restructuring costs in 2009 Refer to Note 13 of the Notes to our Audited Consolidated Financial

Statements for further information

Liquidity

Based on our current and anticipated level of operations we believe that our proceeds from operating cash

flows will be sufficient to meet our anticipated obligations for the next twelve months To the extent that our

operating cash flows are not sufficient to meet our liquidity needs we may utilize cash on hand or amounts available

under our Revolver

The following table summarizes our cash activity for 2009 2008 and 2007 in millions

For the Year Ended December 31

2009 2008 2007

Net cash provided by operating activities 865 709 603

Net cash used in provided by investing activities 251 1074 1087

Net cash used in provided by financing activities 554 1625 515

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Net cash provided by operating activities increased $156 million for the year ended December 31 2009

compared with the year
ended December 31 2008 The $867 million increase in net income included

$1039 million decrease in the non-cash impairment of goodwill and intangible assets $62 million increase

in the gain on the disposal of intangible assets primarily due to one-time gain recorded in 2009 upon the

termination of the Hansen distribution agreement and an increase of $344 million in deferred income taxes driven

by the impairment of intangible assets in 2008 Changes in working capital included an $80 million favorable

increase in accounts payable and accrued expenses
offset by decrease of $50 million in other non-current

liabilities Accounts payable and accrued expenses
increased primarily due to higher accruals for customer

promotion and employee compensation increased inventory purchases and improved cash management by paying

vendors in accordance with invoice terms Other non-current liabilities decreased primarily due to payments

associated with the Companys pension and postretirement employee benefit plans

Net cash provided by operating activities in 2008 was $709 million compared to $603 million in 2007 The

$809 million decrease in net income included $1033 million increase in the non-cash impairment of goodwill and

intangible assets an $83 million decrease in the gain on the disposal of assets due to one-time gain recorded in

2007 upon the termination of the glaceau distribution agreement an increase of $39 million in depreciation and

amortization expense driven by higher capital expenditures and the amortization of capitalized financing costs and

the impact of the write-off of $21 million of deferred financing costs related to our bridge loan facility These

amounts were partially offset by decrease of $296 million in deferred income taxes driven by the impairment of

intangible assets Changes in working capital included $71 million favorable decrease in inventory primarily due

to improved inventory management and lower sales volumes offset by an increase of $43 million in trade accounts

receivable and $43 million decrease in accounts payable and accrued expenses Trade accounts receivable

increased despite reduced collection times due to an increase in sales in December 2008 Accounts payable and

accrued expenses
decreased primarily due to lower inventory purchases as we focus on inventory management

Cash provided by operations was also impacted by our separation from Cadbury
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Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities

The decrease of $1325 million in cash provided by investing activities for the year ended December 31 2009

compared with the year ended December 31 2008 was primarily attributable to related party notes receivable due

to the separation from Cadbury during 2008 For 2008 cash provided by net repayments of related party notes

receivable of $1375 million for 2008 We increased capital expenditures by $13 million in the current year

primarily due to the build out of the new manufacturing and distribution center in Victorville California Capital

asset investments for both years primarily consisted of expansion of our capabilities in existing facilities

replacement of existing cold drink equipment IT investments for new systems and upgrades to the vehicle fleet

Additionally cash used in investing activities for 2009 included $68 million in proceeds primarily from the

termination of Hansens distributor agreement

The increase of $2161 million in cash provided by investing activities for the year ended December 31 2008

compared with the year ended December 31 2007 was primarily attributable to related party notes receivable due

to the separation from Cadbury For 2007 cash used in net issuances of related party notes receivable totaled

$929 million compared with cash provided by net repayments of related party notes receivable of $1375 million for

2008 We increased capital expenditures by $74 million in the current year primarily due to early stage costs of

new manufacturing and distribution center in Victorville California Capital asset investments for both years

primarily consisted of expansion of our capabilities in existing facilities replacement of existing cold drink

equipment IT investments for new systems and upgrades to the vehicle fleet Additionally cash used by investing

activities for 2007 included $98 million in proceeds from the disposal of assets primarily attributable to the

termination of the glaceau distribution agreement partially offset by net cash used in the acquisition of SeaBev

Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities

The decrease of $1071 million in cash used in financing activities for the year ended December 31 2009

compared with the year ended December 31 2008 was driven by payments of third party long-term debt partially

offset by the proceeds from senior unsecured notes and the Revolver

The following table summarizes the issuances and payments of third party and related party debt for 2009 and

2008 in millions

For the Year Ended

December 31

2009 2008

Issuances of Third Party Debt

Term Loan 2200

Revolver 405

Senior unsecured notes1 850 1700

Bridge loan facility 1700

Total issuances of third party debt 1255 5600

Payments on Third Party Debt

Term Loan 1805 395

Bridge loan facility 1700

Other payments

Total payments on third party debt 1809 2100

Net change in third party debt 554 3500

The carrying amount includes an adjustment of $8 million related to the change in the fair value of interest rate

swaps designated as fair value hedges on the 2011 and 2012 Notes See Note 10 to our Audited Consolidated

Financial Statements for further information regarding derivatives
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For the Year Ended

December 31

2009 2008

Issuances of related party debt 1615

Payments on related party debt 4664

Net change in related party debt 3049

The increase of $2140 million in cash used in financing activities for the year ended December 31 2008

compared with the year ended December 31 2007 was driven by the change in Cadburys investment as part of our

separation from Cadbury and payments of third party long-term debt This increase was partially offset by the

issuances of third party long-term debt

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents were $280 million as of December 31 2009 an increase of $66 million from

$214 million as of December 31 2008 The increase was primarily due to our overall improvement in our operating

activities during 2009

Our cash is used to fund working capital requirements scheduled debt and interest payments capital

expenditures income tax obligations and in future years will be used for dividend payments and repurchases

of our common stock Cash available in our foreign operations may not be immediately available for these purposes

Foreign cash balances constitute approximately 32% of our total cash position as of December 31 2009

Dividends

On November 20 2009 the Companys Board declared our first dividend of $0.15 per share on outstanding

common stock payable January 2010 to shareholders of record at the close of business on December 21 2009

On February 2010 the Companys Board declared dividend of $0.15 per
share on the common stock of the

Company payable on April 2010 to the stockholders of record at the close of business on March 22 2010

Common Stock Repurchases

On November 20 2009 the Board authorized the repurchase of up to $200 million of the Companys

outstanding common stock over the next three years Subsequent to the Boards authorization we did not

repurchase any
of our common stock during the remainder of 2009 Subsequent to December 31 2009 the Board

authorized the repurchase of an additional $800 million of the Companys outstanding common stock for total of

$1 billion authorized
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Contractual Commitments and Obligations

We enter into various contractual obligations that impact or could impact our liquidity The following table

summarizes our contractual obligations and contingencies at December 31 2009 in millions Based on our current

and anticipated level of operations we believe that our proceeds from operating cash flows will be sufficient to meet

our anticipated obligations To the extent that our operating cash flows are not sufficient to meet our liquidity needs

we may utilize amounts available under our Revolver Refer to Notes and 15 of the Notes to our Audited

Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information regarding the items described in this table

Payments Due in Year

After

Total 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2014

Senior unsecured notes 2550 400 450 250 1450

Revolver7 405 405

Capital leases1 16

Interest payments27 1399 144 158 157 115 101 724

Operating leases3 363 72 64 50 44 32 101

Purchase obligations4 629 356 109 70 58 17 19

Other long-term liabilities5 201 16 17 18 20 20 110

Payable to Kraft6 127 15 84

Total 5690 606 758 756 903 179 2488

Amounts represent capitalized lease obligations net of interest Interest in respect of capital leases is included

under the caption Interest payments on this table

Amounts represent our estimated interest payments based on projected interest rates for floating rate debt

the impact of interest rate swaps which convert variable interest rates to fixed rates specified interest

rates for fixed rate debt capital lease amortization schedules and debt amortization schedules

Amounts represent minimum rental commitment under non-cancelable operating leases

Amounts represent payments under agreements to purchase goods or services that are legally binding and that

specify all significant terms including capital obligations and long-term contractual obligations

Amounts represent estimated pension and postretirement benefit payments for U.S and non-U.S defined

benefit plans

Additional amounts payable to Kraft of approximately $3 million are excluded from the table above Due to

uncertainty regarding the timing of payments associated with these liabilities we are unable to make

reasonable estimate of the amount and period in which these liabilities might be paid

Subsequent to December 31 2009 the Company made optional repayments of $405 million which represented

the outstanding principal balance on the Revolver as of December 31 2009 Interest payments associated with

the Revolver assumed repayment of the principal balance in 2013 at its maturity As such $58 million of interest

payments should be subsequently excluded

In accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America U.S GAAP
we had $534 million of unrecognized tax benefits related interest and penalties as of December 31 2009 classified

as long-term liability The table above does not reflect any payments related to tax reserves if it is not possible to

make reasonable estimate of the amount or timing of the payment
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Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

There are no off-balance sheet arrangements that have or are reasonably likely to have current or future

material effect on our results of operations financial condition liquidity capital expenditures or capital resources

Other Matters

Agreement with PepsiCo Inc

On December 2009 DPS agreed to license certain brands to PepsiCo Inc PepsiCo on closing of

PepsiCos proposed acquisitions of PBG and PAS

Under the new licensing agreements PepsiCo will distribute Dr Pepper Crush and Schweppes in the

U.S territories where these brands are currently distributed by PBG and PAS The same will apply for Dr Pepper

Crush Schweppes Vernors and Sussex in Canada and Squirt and Canada Dry in Mexico

Under the agreements DPS will receive one-time cash payment of $900 million The new agreement will

have an initial period of twenty years with automatic twenty year
renewal periods and will require PepsiCo to meet

certain performance conditions The payment will be recorded as deferred revenue which will be recognized as net

sales ratably over the estimated 25-year life of the customer relationship

Additionally in U.S territories where it has distribution footprint DPS will begin distributing certain owned

and licensed brands including Sunkist soda Squirt Vernors Canada Dry and Hawaiian Punch that were previously

distributed by PBG and PAS

On February 26 2010 the Company completed the licensing of those brands to PepsiCo following PepsiCos

acquisitions of PBG and PAS

Critical Accounting Estimates

The process
of preparing our consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S GAAP requires the use

of estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets liabilities revenue and expenses Critical

accounting estimates are both fundamental to the portrayal of companys financial condition and results and

require difficult subjective or complex estimates and assessments These estimates and judgments are based on

historical experience future expectations and other factors and assumptions we believe to be reasonable under the

circumstances The most significant estimates and judgments are reviewed on an ongoing basis and revised when

necessary Actual amounts may differ from these estimates and judgments We have identified the policies

described below as our critical accounting estimates See Note of the Notes to our Audited Consolidated Financial

Statements for discussion of these and other accounting policies

Revenue Recognition

We recognize sales revenue when all of the following have occurred delivery persuasive evidence of an

agreement exists pricing is fixed or determinable and collection is reasonably assured Delivery is not

considered to have occurred until the title and the risk of loss
passes to the customer according to the terms of the

contract between the customer and us The timing of revenue recognition is largely dependent on contract terms For

sales to customers that are designated in the contract as free-on-board destination revenue is recognized when the

product is delivered to and accepted at the customers delivery site Net sales are reported net of costs associated

with customer marketing programs and incentives as described below as well as sales taxes and other similartaxes

Customer Marketing Programs and Incentives

The Company offers variety of incentives and discounts to bottlers customers and consumers through

various programs to support the distribution of its products These incentives and discounts include cash discounts

price allowances volume based rebates product placement fees and other financial support for items such as trade

promotions displays new products consumer incentives and advertising assistance These incentives and

discounts are reflected as reduction of gross sales to arrive at net sales The aggregate deductions from
gross

sales recorded in relation to these programs were approximately $3419 million $3057 million and $3159 million
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in 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively During 2009 the Company upgraded its SAP platform in DSD As part of the

upgrade DPS harmonized its gross
list price structure across locations The impact of the change increased gross

sales and related discounts by equal amounts on customer invoices Net sales were not affected The amounts of

trade spend are larger in our Packaged Beverages segment than those related to other parts of our business Accruals

are established for the expected payout based on contractual terms volume-based metrics and/or historical trends

and require management judgment with respect to estimating customer participation and performance levels

Goodwill and Other Indefinite Lived Intangible Assets

In accordance with U.S GAAP we classify intangible assets into three categories intangible assets with

definite lives subject to amortization intangible assets with indefinite lives not subject to amortization and

goodwill The majority of our intangible asset balance is made up of brands which we have determined to have

indefinite useful lives In arriving at the conclusion that brand has an indefinite useful life management reviews

factors such as size diversification and market share of each brand Management expects to acquire hold and

support brands for an indefinite period through consumer marketing and promotional support We also consider

factors such as our ability to continue to protect the legal rights that arise from these brand names indefinitely or the

absence of any regulatory economic or competitive factors that could truncate the life of the brand name If the

criteria are not met to assign an indefinite life the brand is amortized over its expected useful life

We conduct tests for impairment in accordance with U.S GAAP For intangible assets with definite lives we

conduct tests for impairment if conditions indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable For goodwill and

intangible assets with indefinite lives we conduct tests for impairment annually as of December 31 or more

frequently if events or circumstances indicate the carrying amount may not be recoverable We use present value

and other valuation techniques to make this assessment If the carrying amount of goodwill or an intangible asset

exceeds its fair value an impairment loss is recognized in an amount equal to that excess For purposes of

impairment testing we assign goodwill to the reporting unit that benefits from the synergies arising from each

business combination and also assign indefinite lived intangible assets to our reporting units We define reporting

units as Beverage Concentrates Latin America Beverages and Packaged Beverages two reporting units

DSD and WD

The impairment test for indefinite lived intangible assets encompasses calculating fair value of an indefinite

lived intangible asset and comparing the fair value to its carrying value If the canying value exceeds the estimated

fair value impairment is recorded The impairment tests for goodwill include comparing fair value of the

respective reporting unit with its carrying value including goodwill and considering any indefinite lived intangible

asset impairment charges Step If the carrying value exceeds the estimated fair value impairment is indicated

and second step Step analysis must be performed

The tests for impairment include significant judgment in estimating the fair value of intangible assets primarily

by analyzing forecasts of future revenues and profit performance Fair value is based on what the intangible asset

would be worth to third party market participant Discount rates are based on weighted average cost of equity and

cost of debt adjusted with various risk premiums These assumptions could be negatively impacted by various of

the risks discussed in Risk Factors in this Annual Report on Form 10-K

For our annual impairment analysis performed as of December 31 2009 and 2008 methodologies used to

determine the fair values of the assets included combination of the income based approach and market based

approach as well as an overall consideration of market capitalization and our enterprise value Managements

estimates which fall under Level are based on historical and projected operating performance recent market

transactions and current industry trading multiples

As of December 31 2009 the results of the Step analysis indicated that the estimated fair value of our

indefinite lived intangible assets and goodwill substantially exceeded their carrying values and therefore are not

impaired

The results of the Step analyses performed as of December 31 2008 indicated there was potential

impairment of goodwill in the DSD reporting unit as the book value exceeded the estimated fair value As result

Step of the goodwill impairment test was performed for the reporting unit The implied fair value of goodwill
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determined in the Step analysis was determined by allocating the fair value of the reporting unit to all the assets

and liabilities of the applicable reporting unit including any unrecognized intangible assets and related deferred

taxes as if the reporting unit had been acquired in business combination As result of the Step analysis we

impaired the entire DSD reporting units goodwill

The Step analysis in 2008 resulted in non-cash charges of $1039 million which are reported in the line item

impairment of goodwill and intangible assets in our consolidated statement of operations summary of the

impairment charges for 2008 is provided below in millions

For the Year Ended December 31 2008

Impairment Income Tax Impact on Net

Charge Benefit Income

Snapple brand1 278 112 166

Distribution rights2 581 220 361

Goodwill3 180 11 169

Total 1039 343 696

Included within the WD reporting unit

Includes the DSD reporting units distribution rights brand franchise rights and bottler agreements which

convey certain rights to DPS including the rights to manufacture distribute and sell products of the licensor

within specified territories

Includes all goodwill recorded in the DSD reporting unit which related to our bottler acquisitions in 2006 and

2007

The following table summarizes the critical assumptions that were used in estimating fair value for our annual

impairment tests performed as of December 31 2008

Estimated
average operating income growth 2009 to 2018 3.2%

Projected long-term operating income growth1 2.5%

Weighted average discount rate2 8.9%

Capital charge for distribution rights3 2.1%

Represents the operating income growth rate used to determine terminal value

Represents our targeted weighted average discount rate of 7.0% plus the impact of specific reporting unit risk

premiums to account for the estimated additional uncertainty associated with our future cash flows The risk

premium primarily reflects the uncertainty related to the continued impact of the challenging marketplace

and difficult macroeconomic conditions the volatility related to key input costs and the consumer

customer competitor and supplier reaction to our marketplace pricing actions Factors inherent in determining

our weighted average discount rate are the volatility of our common stock expected interest costs on

debt and debt market conditions and the amounts and relationships of targeted debt and equity capital

Represents charge as percent of revenues to the estimated future cash flows attributable to our distribution

rights for the estimated required economic returns on investments in property plant and equipment net

working capital customer relationships and assembled workforce

For the DSD reporting units goodwill keeping the residual operating income growth rate constant but

changing the discount rate downward by 0.50% would indicate less of an impairment charge of approximately

$60 million Keeping the discount rate constant and increasing the residual operating income growth rate by 0.50%

would indicate less of an impairment charge of approximately $10 million An increase of 0.50% in the estimated

operating income growth rate would reduce the goodwill impairment charge by approximately $75 million

For the Snapple brand keeping the residual operating income growth rate constant but changing the discount

rate by 0.50% would result in $45 million to $50 million change in the impairment charge Keeping the discount

rate constant but changing the residual operating income growth rate by 0.50% would result in $30 million to

$35 million change in the impairment charge of the Snapple brand change of 0.25% in the estimated operating

income growth rate would change the impairment charge by approximately $25 million
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change in the critical assumptions detailed above would not result in change to the impairment charge

related to distribution rights

The results of our annual impairment tests indicated that the fair value of our indefinite lived intangible assets

and goodwill not discussed above exceeded their carrying values and therefore were not impaired

Based on triggering events in the second and third quarters of 2008 we performed interim impairment analyses

of the Snapple Brand and the DSD reporting units goodwill and concluded there was no impairment as of June 30

and September 30 2008 respectively However deteriorating economic and market conditions in the fourth quarter

triggered higher discount rates as well as lower volume and growth projections which drove the impairments of the

DSD reporting units goodwill Snapple brand and the DSD reporting units distribution rights recorded in the fourth

quarter Indicative of the economic and market conditions our average stock price declined 19% in the fourth

quarter as compared to the average stock price from May 2008 the date of our separation from Cadbury through

September 30 2008 The impairment of the distribution rights was attributed to insufficient net economic returns

above working capital fixed assets and assembled workforce

Definite Lived Intangible Assets

Definite lived intangible assets are those assets deemed by the management to have determinable finite useful

lives Identifiable intangible assets with finite lives are amortized on straight-line basis over their estimated useful

lives as follows

Type of Intangible Asset
Useful Life

Brands to 15 years

Bottler agreements
to 15 years

Customer relationships and contracts to 10 years

Stock-Based Compensation

We account for our stock-based compensation plans under U.S GAAF which requires the recognition of

compensation expense in our Consolidated Statements of Operations related to the fair value of employee share-

based awards Determining the amount of expense for stock-based compensation as well as the associated impact to

our balance sheets and statements of cash flows requires us to develop estimates of the fair value of stock-based

compensation expense The most significant factors of that expense
that require estimates or projections include the

expected volatility expected lives and estimated forfeiture rates of stock-based awards As we lack meaningful set

of historical data upon which to develop valuation assumptions we have elected to develop certain valuation

assumptions based on information disclosed by similarly-situated companies including multi-national consumer

goods companies of similar market capitalization and large food and beverage industry companies which have

experienced an initial public offering since June 2001

In accordance with U.S GAAP we recognize the cost of all unvested employee stock options on straight-line

attribution basis over their respective vesting periods net of estimated forfeitures Prior to our separation from

Cadbury we participated in certain employee share plans that contained inflation indexed earnings growth

performance conditions These plans were accounted for under the liability method of U.S GAAP In accordance

with U.S GAAP liability was recorded on the balance sheet until and in calculating the income statement charge

for share awards the fair value of each award was remeasured at each reporting date until awards vested We no

longer participate in employee share plans that contain inflation indexed earnings growth performance conditions

Pension and Postretirement Benefits

We have several pension and postretirement plans covering employees who satisfy age
and length of service

requirements There are eleven stand-alone non-contributory defined benefit pension plans and six stand-alone

postretirement plans Depending on the plan pension and postretirement benefits are based on combination of

factors which may include salary age and years of service
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Pension expense has been determined in accordance with the principles of U.S GAAR Our policy is to fund

pension plans in accordance with the requirements of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act Employee

benefit plan obligations and expenses included in our Consolidated Financial Statements are determined from

actuarial analyses based on plan assumptions employee demographic data years of service compensation benefits

and claims paid and employer contributions

The
expense related to the postretirement plans has been determined in accordance with U.S GAAR We

accrue the cost of these benefits during the years that employees render service to us in accordance with U.S GAAR

The calculation of pension and postretirement plan obligations and related expenses is dependent on several

assumptions used to estimate the present value of the benefits earned while the employee is eligible to participate in

the plans The key assumptions we use in determining the plan obligations and related expenses include the

interest rate used to calculate the present value of the plan liabilities employee turnover retirement age and

mortality and the expected return on plan assets Our assumptions reflect our historical experience and our best

judgment regarding future performance Due to the significant judgment required our assumptions could have

material impact on the measurement of our pension and postretirement obligations and expenses Refer to Note 15

of the Notes to our Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for further information

The effect of 1% increase or decrease in the weighted-average discount rate used to determine the pension

benefit obligations for U.S plans would change the benefit obligation as of December 31 2009 by approximately

$24 million and $26 million respectively The effect of 1% increase or decrease in the weighted-average

assumptions used to determine the net periodic pension costs would change the costs for the year ended

December 31 2009 by approximately $3 million each

Risk Management Programs

We retain selected levels of property casualty workers compensation health and other business risks Many
of these risks are covered under conventional insurance programs with high deductibles or self-insured retentions

Accrued liabilities related to the retained casualty and health risks are calculated based on loss experience and

development factors which contemplate number of variables including claim history and expected trends These

loss development factors are established in consultation with external insurance brokers and actuaries At

December 31 2009 and 2008 we had accrued liabilities related to the retained risks of $68 million and $60 million

respectively including both current and long-term liabilities Prior to our separation from Cadbury we participated

in insurance programs placed by Cadbury Prior to and upon separation Cadbury retained the risk and accrued

liabilities for the
exposures insured under these insurance programs

We believe the use of actuarial methods to estimate our future losses provides consistent and effective way to

measure our self-insured liabilities However the estimation of our liability is judgmental and uncertain given the

nature of claims involved and length of time until their ultimate cost is known The final settlement amount of

claims can differ materially from our estimate as result of changes in factors such as the frequency and severity of

accidents medical cost inflation legislative actions uncertainty around jury verdicts and awards and other factors

outside of our control

Income Taxes

Income taxes are computed and reported on separate return basis and accounted for using the asset and

liability approach in accordance with U.S GAAP This method involves determining the temporary differences

between combined assets and liabilities recognized for financial reporting and the corresponding combined

amounts recognized for tax purposes and computing the tax-related carryforwards at the enacted tax rates expected

to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled

The resulting amounts are deferred tax assets or liabilities and the net changes represent the deferred tax expense or

benefit for the year The total of taxes currently payable per the tax return and the deferred tax expense or benefit

represents the income tax expense or benefit for the year for financial reporting purposes
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We periodically assess the likelihood of realizing our deferred tax assets based on the amount of deferred tax

assets that we believe is more likely than not to be realized We base our judgment of the recoverability of our

deferred tax asset primarily on historical earnings our estimate of current and expected future earnings prudent and

feasible tax planning strategies and current and future ownership changes

As of December 31 2009 and 2008 undistributed earnings considered to be permanently reinvested in

non-U.S subsidiaries totaled approximately $115 million and $124 million respectively Deferred income taxes

have not been provided on this income as the Company believes these earnings to be permanently reinvested It is

not practicable to estimate the amount of additional tax that might be payable on these undistnbuted foreign

earnings

Our effective income tax rate may fluctuate on quarterly basis due to various factors including but not

limited to total earnings and the mix of earnings by jurisdiction the timing of changes in tax laws and the amount

of tax provided for uncertain tax positions

Effect of Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Refer to Note of the Notes to our Audited Consolidated Financial Statements in Item Financial

Statements and Supplementary Data of this Annual Report on Form 10-K for discussion of recent accounting

standards and pronouncements

ITEM 7A QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

We are exposed to market risks arising from changes in market rates and prices including inflation

movements in foreign currency exchange rates interest rates and commodity prices The Company does not

enter into derivatives or other financial instruments for trading purposes

Foreign Exchange Risk

The majority of our net sales expenses and capital purchases are transacted in United States dollars However

we do have some exposure with respect to foreign exchange rate fluctuations Our primary exposure to foreign

exchange rates is the Canadian dollar and Mexican peso against the U.S dollar Exchange rate gains or losses

related to foreign currency transactions are recognized as transaction gains or losses in our income statement as

incurred We use derivative instruments such as foreign exchange forward contracts to manage our exposure to

changes in foreign exchange rates As of December 31 2009 the impact to net income of 10% change in exchange

rates is estimated to be approximately $14 million

Interest Rate Risk

We centrally manage our debt portfolio and monitor our mix of fixed-rate and variable rate debt

We are subject to floating interest rate risk with respect to amounts borrowed under our unsecured Revolver

We incurred $405 million of debt with floating interest rates under this facility change in the estimated interest

rate on the outstanding balance of borrowings under the unsecured Revolver up or down by 1% will increase or

decrease our earnings before provision for income taxes by approximately $4 million respectively on an annual

basis We will also have interest rate exposure for any additional amounts we may borrow in the future under the

Revolver

Interest Rate Fair Value Hedges

DPS enters into interest rate swaps to convert fixed-rate long-term debt to floating-rate debt These swaps are

accounted for as fair value hedges under U.S GAAR These fair value hedges qualify for the short-cut method of

recognition therefore no portion of these swaps is treated as ineffective

54



In December 2009 the Company entered into two interest rate swaps having an aggregate notional amount of

$850 million and durations ranging from two to three
years

in order to convert fixed-rate long-term debt to floating

rate debt These swaps were entered into at the inception of the 2011 and 2012 Notes See Notes and 10 of the

Notes to our Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for further information

As result of these interest rate swaps the Company pays an average floating rate which fluctuates semi

annually based on LIBOR The
average floating rate to be paid by the Company as of December 31 2009 was less

than 1.0% The
average

fixed rate to be received by the Company as of December 31 2009 was 2.0%

Interest Rate Economic Hedge

The Company had an interest rate swap originally designated as cash flow hedge effective December 31

2009 with duration of 12 months and $750 million notional amount that amortizes at the rate of $100 million

every quarter and converts variable interest rates to fixed rates of 3.73% As of December 31 2009 the cash flow

hedging was discontinued but the interest rate swap had not been terminated Borrowings under the Revolver have

similar terms to the term loan In this case there exists natural hedging relationship in which changes in the fair

value of the instruments act as an economic offset to changes in the fair value of the underlying items Changes in

the fair value of these instruments are recorded as interest expense throughout the term of the derivative instrument

and are reported in the same line item as the hedged transaction

Commodity Risks

We are subject to market risks with respect to commodities because our ability to recover increased costs

through higher pricing may be limited by the competitive environment in which we operate Our principal

commodities risks relate to our purchases of aluminum corn for high fructose corn syrup natural gas for use in

processing and packaging PET and fuel

We utilize commodities forward contracts and supplier pricing agreements to hedge the risk of adverse

movements in commodity prices for limited time periods for certain commodities The fair market value of these

contracts as of December 31 2009 was an asset of $10 million

As of December 31 2009 the impact to net income of 10% change in market prices of these commodities is

estimated to be approximately $22 million

55



ITEM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

Audited Financial Statements

Reports of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 57

Consolidated Statements of Operations for the years ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007 59

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31 2009 and 2008 60

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007 61

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders Equity and Other Comprehensive Income Loss

for the years ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007 62

Notes to Audited Consolidated Financial Statements
63

56



REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of

Dr Pepper Snapple Group Inc

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Dr Pepper Snapple Group Inc and

subsidiaries the Company as of December 31 2009 and 2008 and the related consolidated statements of

operations stockholders equity and other comprehensive income loss and cash flows for each of the three years

in the period ended December 31 2009 These financial statements are the responsibility of the Companys

management Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board

United States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about

whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement An audit includes examining on test basis

evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements An audit also includes assessing the

accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management as well as evaluating the overall

financial statement presentation We believe that our audits provide reasonable basis for our opinion

In our opinion such consolidated financial statements present fairly in all material respects the financial

position of Dr Pepper Snapple Group Inc and subsidiaries at December 31 2009 and 2008 and the results of their

operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31 2009 in conformity

with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America

As discussed in the notes the consolidated financial statements of the Company include allocation of certain

general corporate overhead costs through May 2008 from Cadbury Schweppes plc These costs may not be

reflective of the actual level of costs which would have been incurred had the Company operated as separate entity

apart from Cadbury Schweppes plc

As discussed in the notes to the consolidated financial statements the Company changed its method of

accounting for uncertainties in income taxes as of January 2007

We have also audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board

United States the Companys internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2009 based the criteria

established in Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of

the Treadway Cornniission and our report dated February 26 2010 expressed an unqualified opinion on the

Companys internal control over financial reporting

/s Deloitte Touche LLP

Dallas Texas

February 26 2010
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of

Dr Pepper Snapple Group Inc

We have audited the internal control over financial reporting of Dr Pepper Snapple Group Inc the

Company as of December 31 2009 based on criteria established in Internal Control Integrated Framework

issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission The Companys management

is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the

effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting included in the accompanying Managements Annual

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting appearing under Item 9A Our responsibility is to express an

opinion on the Companys internal control over financial reporting based on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board

United States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about

whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects Our audit

included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting assessing the risk that material

weakness exists testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the

assessed risk and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances We believe

that our audit provides reasonable basis for our opinion

companys internal control over financial reporting is process designed by or under the supervision of the

companys principal executive and principal financial officers or persons performing similar functions and

effected by the companys board of directors management and other personnel to provide reasonable assurance

regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes
in

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles companys internal control over financial reporting

includes those policies and procedures that pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail

accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company provide reasonable

assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance

with generally accepted accounting principles and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made

only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company and provide reasonable

assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition use or disposition of the companys

assets that could have material effect on the financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal control over financial reporting including the possibility of

collusion or improper management override of controls material misstatements due to error or fraud may not be

prevented or detected on timely basis Also projections of any
evaluation of the effectiveness of the internal

control over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the controls may become inadequate

because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate

In our opinion the Company maintained in all material respects effective internal control over financial

reporting as of December 31 2009 based on the criteria established in Internal Control Integrated Framework

issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission

We have also audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board

United States the consolidated financial statements as of and for the
year

ended December 31 2009 of the

Company and our report dated February 26 2010 expressed an unqualified opinion on those financial statements

and included explanatory paragraphs regarding the allocation of certain general corporate overhead costs through

May 2008 from Cadbury Schweppes plc and the Companys change of its method of accounting for uncertainties

in income taxes as of January 2007

Is Deloitte Touche LLP

Dallas Texas

February 26 2010
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DR PEPPER SNAPPLE GROUP INC

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

For the Years Ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007

For the Year Ended December 31

2009 2008 2007

In millions except per share data

Net sales 5531 5710 5695

Cost of sales 2234 2590 2564

Gross profit 3297 3120 3131

Selling general and administrative expenses 2135 2075 2018

Depreciation and amortization 117 113 98

Impairment of goodwill and intangible assets 1039

Restructuring costs 57 76

Other operating income expense
40 71

Income loss from operations 1085 168 1004

Interest expense
243 257 253

Interest income 32 64

Other income net 22 18

Income loss before provision for income taxes and equity in earnings of

unconsolidated subsidiaries 868 375 817

Provision for income taxes 315 61 322

Income loss before equity in earnings of unconsolidated subsidiaries 553 314 495

Equity in earnings of unconsolidated subsidiaries net of tax

Net income loss 555 312 497

Earnings loss per common share

Basic
2.18 1.23 1.96

Diluted 2.17 1.23 1.96

Weighted average common shares outstanding

Basic 254.2 254.0 253.7

Diluted 255.2 254.0 253.7

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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DR PEPPER SNAPPLE GROUP INC

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

As of December 31 2009 and 2008

December 31 December 31
2009 2008

In millions except share and per

share data

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 280 214

Accounts receivable

Trade net 540 532

Other 32 51

Inventories 262 263

Deferred tax assets 53 93

Prepaid expenses
and other current assets 112 84

Total current assets 1279 1237

Property plant and equipment net 1109 990

Investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries 12

Goodwill 2983 2983

Other intangible assets net 2702 2712

Other non-current assets 543 564

Non-current deferred tax assets 151 140

Total assets 8776 8638

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY

Current liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 850 796

Income taxes payable

Total current liabilities 854 801

Long-term obligations 2960 3522

Non-current deferred tax liabilities 1038 981

Other non-current liabilities 737 727

Total liabilities 5589 6031

Commitments and contingencies

Stockholders equity

Preferred stock $01 par value 15000000 shares authorized no shares issued

Common stock $01 par value 800000000 shares authorized 254109047 and

253685733 shares issued and outstanding for 2009 and 2008 respectively

Additional paid-in capital 3156 3140

Retained earnings deficit 87 430
Accumulated other comprehensive loss 59 106

Total stockholders equity 3187 2607

Total liabilities and stockholders equity 8776 8638

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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DR PEPPER SNAPPLE GROUP INC

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the Years Ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007

For the Year Ended

December 31

2009 2008 2007

In millions

Operating activities

Net income loss 555 312 497

Adjustments to reconcile net income loss to net cash provided by operations

Depreciation expense
167 141 120

Amortization expense
40 54 49

Amortization of deferred financing costs 17 13

Write-off of deferred loan costs 30 21

Impairment of goodwill and intangible assets 1039

Provision for doubtful accounts 11

Employee stock-based expense
19 21

Deferred income taxes 103 241 55

Loss gain on disposal of property and intangible assets 39 12 71
Unrealized gain loss on derivatives 18
Other net 10

Changes in assets and liabilities

Trade and other accounts receivable

Related party receivable 11 57
Inventories 57 14
Other current assets 23 20
Other non-current assets 35
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 80 48
Related party payable 70 12

Income taxes payable
48 10

Other non-current liabilities 50 10
Net cash provided by operating activities 865 709 603

Investing activities

Acquisition of subsidiaries net of cash 30
Purchase of investments and intangible assets

Proceeds from disposals of intangible assets 69 98

Purchases of property plant and equipment 317 304 230
Proceeds from disposals of property plant and equipment

Issuances of related party notes receivables 165 1937
Repayment of related party notes receivables 1540 1008

Net cash used in provided by investing activities 251 1074 1087
Financing activities

Proceeds from issuance of related party long-term debt 1615 2845

Proceeds from senior unsecured notes 850 1700

Proceeds from bridge loan facility 1700

Proceeds from stock options exercised

Proceeds from senior unsecured credit facility 405 2200

Repayment of senior unsecured credit facility 1805 395

Repayment of related party long-term debt 4664 3455
Repayment of bridge loan facility 1700
Deferred financing charges paid 106
Cash distributions to Cadbury 2065 213

Change in Cadburys net investment 94 1334

Other net _______

Net cash used in provided by financing activities 554 1625 515

Cash and cash equivalents net change from

Operating investing and financing activities 60 158 31

Currency translation 11
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period

214 67 35

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 280 214 67

See Note 19 for supplemental cash flow disclosures

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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DR PEPPER SNAPPLE GROUP INC

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY
AND

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME LOSS
For the Years Ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007

Accumulated

Additional Retained Other
Common Stock Issued

Paid-In Earnings Cadburys Net Comprehensive Comprehensive

Shares Amount Capital Deficit Investment Income Loss Total Equity Income Loss

In millions

Balance as of December 31

2007 5001 20 5021 516

Net loss 430 118 312 312

Contributions from Cadbury 259 259

Distributions to Cadbury 2242 2242

Separation from Cadbury on

May 2008 and issuance

of common stock upon

distribution 253.7 3133 3136
Stock-based compensation

expense including tax

benefit

Net change in pension liability

net of tax benefit of $30 43 43 43
Adoption of pension

measurement date provision

under U.S GAAP net of tax

benefit of $1

Cash flow hedges net of tax

benefits of $12 20 20 20
Foreign currency translation

adjustment 61 61 61

Balance as of December 31

2008 253.7 3140 430 106 2607 436
Shares issued under employee

stock-based compensation

plans other 0.4

Net income 555 555 555

Dividends declared 38 38
Stock Options exercised and

Stock-based compensation

expense net of tax of $4 16 16

Net change in pension liability

net of tax of $3

Cash flow hedges net of tax

of$11 18 18 18

Foreign currency translation

adjustment
22 22 22

Balance as of December 31

2009 254.1 3156 87 59 3187 602

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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DR PEPPER SNAPPLE GROUP INC

NOTES TO AUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Business and Basis of Presentation

References in this Annual Report on Form 10-K to we our us DPS or the Company refer to Dr

Pepper Snapple Group Inc and all entities included in our Audited Consolidated Financial Statements Cadbury plc

and Cadbury Schweppes plc are hereafter collectively referred to as Cadbury unless otherwise indicated Kraft

Foods Inc which acquired Cadbury on February 2010 is hereafter referred to as Kraft

This Annual Report on Form 10-K refers to some of DPS owned or licensed trademarks trade names and

service marks which are referred to as the Companys brands All of the product names included in this Annual

Report on Form 10-K are either DPS registered trademarks or those of the Companys licensors

Nature of Operations

DPS is leading integrated brand owner manufacturer and distributor of non-alcoholic beverages in the

United States Canada and Mexico with diverse portfolio of flavored non-cola carbonated soft drinks CSDs
and non-carbonated beverages NCBs including ready-to-drink teas juices juice drinks and mixers The

Companys brand portfolio includes popular CSD brands such as Dr Pepper Sunkist soda 7UP AW Canada Dry

Crush Squirt Peflafiel Schweppes and Venom Energy and NCB brands such as Snapple Motts Hawaiian Punch

Clamato Roses and Mr Mrs mixers

Formation of the Company and Separation from Cadbury

The Company was formed on October 24 2007 and did not have any operations prior to ownership of

Cadburys beverage business in the United States Canada Mexico and the Caribbean the Americas Beverages

business

On May 2008 Cadbury separated the Americas Beverages business from its global confectionery business

by contributing the subsidiaries that operated its Americas Beverages business to DPS In return for the transfer of

the Americas Beverages business DPS distributed its common stock to Cadbury plc shareholders As of the date of

distribution total of 800 million shares of common stock par value $0.01 per share and 15 million shares of

preferred stock all of which shares of preferred stock are undesignated were authorized On the date of distribution

253.7 million shares of common stock were issued and outstanding and no shares of preferred stock were issued On

May 2008 DPS became an independent publicly-traded company listed on the New York Stock Exchange under

the symbol DPS

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting

principles generally accepted in the United States of America U.S GAAP for consolidated financial infor

mation and in accordance with the instructions to Form 10-K and Article 3A of Regulation S-X In the opinion of

management all adjustments consisting principally of normal recurring adjustments considered necessary
for

fair presentation have been included The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S GAAP

requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial

statements and the accompanying notes Actual results could differ from these estimates

Upon separation effective May 2008 DPS became an independent company which established new

consolidated reporting structure For the periods prior to May 2008 the consolidated financial statements have

been prepared on carve-out basis from Cadburys consolidated financial statements using historical results of

operations assets and liabilities attributable to Cadburys Americas Beverages business and including allocations of

expenses
from Cadbury The historical Cadburys Americas Beverages information is the Companys predecessor

financial information The Company eliminates from its financial results all intercompany transactions between

entities included in the combination and the intercompany transactions with its equity method investees
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DR PEPPER SNAPPLE GROUP INC

NOTES TO AUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

The consolidated financial statements may not be indicative of the Companys future performance and may not

reflect what its consolidated results of operations financial position and cash flows would have been had the

Company operated as an independent company during all of the periods presented To the extent that an asset

liability revenue or expense is directly associated with the Company it is reflected in the accompanying

consolidated financial statements

Prior to the May 2008 separation Cadbury provided certain corporate functions to the Company and costs

associated with these functions were allocated to the Company These functions included corporate communi

cations regulatory human resources and benefit management treasury investor relations corporate controller

internal audit Sarbanes Oxley compliance information technology corporate and legal compliance and commu

nity affairs The costs of such services were allocated to the Company based on the most relevant allocation method

to the service provided primarily based on relative percentage of revenue or headcount Management believes such

allocations were reasonable however they may not be indicative of the actual expense that would have been

incurred had the Company been operating as an independent company for all of the periods presented The charges

for these functions are included primarily in selling general and administrative expenses in the Consolidated

Statements of Operations

Prior to the May 2008 separation the Companys total invested equity represented Cadburys interest in the

recorded net assets of the Company The net investment balance represented the cumulative net investment by

Cadbury in the Company through May 2008 including any prior net income or loss attributed to the Company

Certain transactions between the Company and other related parties within the Cadbury group including allocated

expenses were also included in Cadburys net investment

The Company has evaluated subsequent events through the date of issuance of our Audited Consolidated

Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies

Use of Estimates

The process
of preparing financial statements in conformity with U.S GAAP requires the use of estimates and

judgments that affect the reported amount of assets liabilities revenue and expenses These estimates and

judgments are based on historical experience future expectations and other factors and assumptions the Company

believes to be reasonable under the circumstances These estimates and judgments are reviewed on an ongoing basis

and are revised when necessary Actual amounts may differ from these estimates Changes in estimates are recorded

in the period of change

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash and investments in short-term highly liquid securities with original

maturities of three months or less

The Company is exposed to potential risks associated with its cash and cash equivalents DPS places its cash

and cash equivalents with high credit quality financial institutions Deposits with these financial institutions may

exceed the amount of insurance provided however these deposits typically are redeemable upon demand and

therefore the Company believes the financial risks associated with these financial instruments are minimal
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DR PEPPER SNAPPLE GROUP INC

NOTES TO AUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Trade accounts receivable are recorded at the invoiced amount and do not bear interest The Company

determines the required allowance for doubtful collections using information such as its customer credit history and

financial condition industry and market segment information economic trends and conditions and credit reports

Allowances can be affected by changes in the industry customer credit issues or customer bankruptcies Account

balances are charged against the allowance when it is determined that the receivable will not be recovered

Activity in the allowance for doubtful accounts was as follows in millions

2009 2008 2007

Balance beginning of the year
13 20 14

Net charge to costs and expenses
11

Write-offs and adjustments 12

Balance end of the year
$7 $13 $20

The Company is exposed to potential credit risks associated with its accounts receivable DPS performs

ongoing credit evaluations of its customers and generally does not require collateral on its accounts receivable The

Company has not experienced significant credit related losses to date No single customer accounted for 10% or

more of the Companys trade accounts receivable for any period presented

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market value Cost is determined for inventories of the Companys

subsidiaries in the United States substantially by the last-in first-out LIFO valuation method and for inventories

of the Companys international subsidiaries by the first-in first-out FIFO valuation method The costs of

finished goods inventories include raw materials direct labor and indirect production and overhead costs Reserves

for excess and obsolete inventories are based on an assessment of slow-moving and obsolete inventories

determined by historical usage and demand Excess and obsolete inventory reserves were $9 million and $7 million

as of December 31 2009 and 2008 respectively Refer to Note for further information

Property Plant and Equipment

Property plant and equipment is stated at cost plus capitalized interest on borrowings during the actual

construction period of major capital projects net of accumulated depreciation Significant improvements which

substantially extend the useful lives of assets are capitalized The costs of major rebuilds and replacements of plant

and equipment are capitalized and expenditures for repairs and maintenance which do not improve or extend the life

of the assets are expensed as incurred When property plant and equipment is sold or retired the costs and the

related accumulated depreciation are removed from the accounts and any net gain or loss is recorded in other

operating expense income in the Consolidated Statements of Operations Refer to Note for further information

For financial reporting purposes depreciation is computed on the straight-line method over the estimated

useful asset lives as follows

Type of Asset Useful Life

Buildings and improvements 40 years

Machinery and equipment 10 years

Vehicles years

Cold drink equipment to years

Computer software to years
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Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the assets or the lease

term Estimated useful lives are periodically reviewed and when warranted are updated

The Company periodically reviews long-lived assets for impairment whenever events or changes in circum

stances indicate that their carrying amount may not be recoverable In order to assess recoverability DPS compares

the estimated undiscounted future pre-tax cash flows from the use of the asset or group of assets as defined to the

carrying amount of such assets Measurement of an impairment loss is based on the excess of the carrying amount of

the asset or group of assets over the long-lived assets fair value As of December 31 2009 no analysis was

warranted

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

In accordance with U.S GAAP the Company classifies intangible assets into three categories intangible

assets with definite lives subject to amortization intangible assets with indefinite lives not subject to

amortization and goodwill The majority of the Companys intangible asset balance is made up of brands

which the Company has determined to have indefinite useful lives In arriving at the conclusion that brand has an

indefinite useful life management reviews factors such as size diversification and market share of each brand

Management expects to acquire hold and support brands for an indefinite period through consumer marketing and

promotional support The Company also considers factors such as its ability to continue to protect the legal rights

that arise from these brand names indefinitely or the absence of any regulatory economic or competitive factors that

could truncate the life of the brand name If the criteria are not met to assign an indefinite life the brand is amortized

over its expected useful life

Identifiable intangible assets deemed by the Company to have determinable finite useful lives are amortized on

straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives as follows

Type of Intangible Asset Useful Life

Brands to 15 years

Bottler agreements to 15 years

Customer relationships and contracts to 10 years

DPS conducts tests for impairment in accordance with U.S GAAP For intangible assets with definite lives

tests for impairment must be performed if conditions exist that indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable

For goodwill and indefinite lived intangible assets the Company conducts tests for impairment annually as of

December 31 or more frequently if events or circumstances indicate the carrying amount may not be recoverable

We use present value and other valuation techniques to make this assessment

The tests for impairment include significantjudgment in estimating the fair value of intangible assets primarily

by analyzing forecasts of future revenues and profit performance Fair value is based on what the intangible asset

would be worth to third party market participant Discount rates are based on weighted average cost of equity and

cost of debt adjusted with various risk premiums These assumptions could be negatively impacted by the various

risks discussed in Risk Factors in this Annual Report on Form 10-K Managements estimates which fall under

Level are based on historical and projected operating performance recent market transactions and current

industry trading multiples Impairment charges are recorded in the line item impairment of goodwill and intangible

assets in the Consolidated Statements of Operations Refer to Note for additional information

Other Assets

The Company provides support to certain customers to cover various programs and initiatives to increase net

sales including contributions to customers or vendors for cold drink equipment used to market and sell the

Companys products These programs and initiatives generally directly benefit the Company over period of time

Accordingly costs of these programs and initiatives are recorded in prepaid expenses and other current assets and
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other non-current assets in the Consolidated Balance Sheets The costs for these programs are amortized over the

period to be directly benefited based upon methodology consistent with the Companys contractual rights under

these arrangements

The long-term portion of these programs and initiatives recorded in the Consolidated Balance Sheets was

$84 million and $83 million net of accumulated amortization as of December 31 2009 and 2008 respectively The

amortization charge for the cost of contributions to customers or vendors for cold drink equipment was $8 million

$8 million and $9 million for 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively and was recorded in selling general and

administrative expenses in the Consolidated Statements of Operations The amortization charge for the cost of other

programs and incentives was $10 million $14 million and $10 million for 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively and

was recorded as deduction from gross sales

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying amounts reflected in the Consolidated Balance Sheets of cash and cash equivalents accounts

receivable net and accounts payable and accrued expenses approximate their fair values due to their short-term

nature The fair value of long term debt as of December 31 2009 and 2008 is based on quoted market prices for

publicly traded securities

Effective January 2008 the Company began estimating fair values of financial instruments measured at fair

value in the financial statements on recurring basis to ensure they are calculated based on market rates to settle the

instruments These values represent the estimated amounts DPS would pay or receive to terminate agreements

taking into consideration current market rates and creditworthiness Refer to Note 14 for additional information

Pension and Postretirement Benefits

The Company has U.S and foreign pension and postretirement benefit plans which provide benefits to

defined group of employees who satisfy age and length of service requirements at the discretion of the Company As

of December 31 2009 the Company had eleven stand-alone non-contributory defined benefit plans and six stand

alone postretirement
health care plans Depending on the plan pension and postretirement benefits are based on

combination of factors which may include salary age and years of service

Pension expense has been determined in accordance with the principles of U.S GAAP The Companys policy

is to fund pension plans in accordance with the requirements of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act

Employee benefit plan obligations and expenses included in the Consolidated Financial Statements are determined

from actuarial analyses based on plan assumptions employee demographic data years
of service compensation

benefits and claims paid and employer contributions

The expense
related to the postretirement plans has been determined in accordance with U.S GAAP and the

Company accrues the cost of these benefits during the years that employees render service Refer to Note 15 for

additional information

Risk Management Programs

The Company retains selected levels of property casualty workers compensation health and other business

risks Many of these risks are covered under conventional insurance programs with high deductibles or self-insured

retentions Accrued liabilities related to the retained casualty and health risks are calculated based on loss

experience and development factors which contemplate number of variables including claim history and expected

trends These loss development factors are established in consultation with external insurance brokers and actuaries

At December 31 2009 and 2008 the Company had accrued liabilities related to the retained risks of $68 million and

$60 million respectively including both current and long-term
liabilities Prior to the separation from Cadbury

DPS participated in insurance programs placed by Cadbury Prior to and upon separation Cadbury retained the risk

and accrued liabilities for the exposures
insured under these insurance programs
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Income Taxes

Income taxes are accounted for using the asset and liability approach under U.S GAAR This method involves

determining the temporary differences between combined assets and liabilities recognized for financial reporting

and the corresponding combined amounts recognized for tax purposes and computing the tax-related carryforwards

at the enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are

expected to be recovered or settled The resulting amounts are deferred tax assets or liabilities and the net changes

represent the deferred tax expense or benefit for the year The total of taxes currently payable per the tax return and

the deferred tax expense or benefit represents the income tax expense or benefit for the year for financial reporting

purposes

The Company periodically assesses the likelihood of realizing its deferred tax assets based on the amount of

deferred tax assets that the Company believes is more likely than not to be realized The Company bases its

judgment of the recoverability of its deferred tax asset primarily on historical earnings its estimate of current and

expected future earnings prudent and feasible tax planning strategies and current and future ownership changes

Refer to Note 12 for additional information

As of December 31 2009 and 2008 undistributed earnings considered to be permanently reinvested in

non-U.S subsidiaries totaled approximately $115 million and $124 million respectively Deferred income taxes

have not been provided on this income as the Company believes these earnings to be permanently reinvested It is

not practicable to estimate the amount of additional tax that might be payable on these undistributed foreign

earnings

DPS effective income tax rate may fluctuate on quarterly basis due to various factors including but not

limited to total earnings and the mix of earnings by jurisdiction the timing of changes in tax laws and the amount

of tax provided for uncertain tax positions

Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes sales revenue when all of the following have occurred delivery persuasive

evidence of an agreement exists pricing is fixed or determinable and collection is reasonably assured

Delivery is not considered to have occurred until the title and the risk of loss passes to the customer according to the

terms of the contract between the Company and the customer The timing of revenue recognition is largely

dependent on contract terms For sales to other customers that are designated in the contract as free-on-board

destination revenue is recognized when the product is delivered to and accepted at the customers delivery site Net

sales are reported net of costs associated with customer marketing programs and incentives as described below as

well as sales taxes and other similar taxes

Customer Marketing Programs and Incentives

The Company offers variety of incentives and discounts to bottlers customers and consumers through

various programs to support the distribution of its products These incentives and discounts include cash discounts

price allowances volume based rebates product placement fees and other financial support for items such as trade

promotions displays new products consumer incentives and advertising assistance These incentives and

discounts are reflected as reduction of gross sales to arrive at net sales The aggregate deductions from gross

sales recorded in relation to these programs were approximately $3419 million $3057 million and $3159 million

in 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively During 2009 the Company upgraded its SAP platform in the Direct Store

Delivery system DSD As part of the upgrade DPS harmonized its
gross

list price structure across locations

The impact of the change increased gross sales and related discounts by equal amounts on customer invoices Net

sales to the customers were not affected The amounts of trade spend are larger in the Packaged Beverages segment
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than those related to other parts of our business Accruals are established for the expected payout based on

contractual terms volume-based metrics and/or historical trends and require management judgment with respect to

estimating customer participation and performance levels

Transportation and Warehousing Costs

The Company incurred $706 million $775 million and $736 million of transportation and warehousing costs

in 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively These amounts which primarily relate to shipping and handling costs are

recorded in selling general and administrative expenses in the Consolidated Statements of Operations

Advertising and Marketing Expense

Advertising and marketing costs are expensed as incurred and amounted to approximately $409 million

$356 million and $387 million for 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively These expenses are recorded in selling

general and administrative expenses in the Consolidated Statements of Operations

Research and Development

Research and development costs are expensed when incurred and amounted to $15 million and $17 million for

2009 and 2008 respectively Research and development costs totaled $14 million for 2007 net of allocations to

Cadbury Additionally the Company incurred packaging engineering costs of $7 million $4 million and $5 million

for 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively These expenses are recorded in selling general and administrative expenses

in the Consolidated Statements of Operations

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company accounts for its stock-based compensation plans in accordance with U.S GAAP which requires

the recognition of compensation expense in the Consolidated Statements of Operations related to the fair value of

employee share-based awards

The Company recognizes the cost of all unvested employee stock options on straight-line attribution basis

over their respective vesting periods net of estimated forfeitures Prior to the separation from Cadbury the

Company participated in certain employee share plans that contained inflation indexed earnings growth perfor

mance conditions These plans were accounted for under the liability method set forth under U.S GAAP As such

liability was recorded on the balance sheet and in calculating the income statement charge for share awards the fair

value of each award was remeasured at each reporting date until awards vested

The stock-based compensation plans in which the Companys employees participate are described further in

Note 16

Restructuring Costs

The Company periodically
records facility closing and reorganization charges when facility for closure or

other reorganization opportunity
has been identified closure plan has been developed and the affected employees

notified all in accordance with U.S GAAP Refer to Note 13 for additional information

Foreign Currency Translation

The functional currency of the Companys operations outside the United States is generally the local currency

of the country where the operations are located The balance sheets of operations outside the United States are

translated into U.S Dollars at the end of year rates The results of operations for the fiscal year are translated into

U.S Dollars at an annual average rate calculated using month end exchange rates
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The following table sets forth exchange rate information for the periods and currencies indicated

Mexican Peso to U.S Dollar Exchange Rate End of Year Rates Annual Average Rates

2009 13.07 13.61

2008 13.67 11.07

2007 10.91 10.91

Canadian Dollar to U.S Dollar Exchange Rate End of Year Rates Annual Average Rates

2009 1.05 1.15

2008 1.22 1.06

2007 1.00 1.07

Differences on exchange arising from the translation of opening balance sheets of these entities to the rate

ruling at the end of the financial year are recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income The exchange

differences arising from the translation of foreign results from the average rate to the closing rate are also

recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income Such translation differences are recognized as income or

expense in the period in which the Company disposes of the operations

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the approximate rate of exchange at the transaction date

Assets and liabilities resulting from these transactions are translated at the rate of exchange in effect at the balance

sheet date All such differences are recorded in results of operations and amounted to $19 million $11 million and

less than $1 million in 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively

Recently Issued Accounting Standards

In June 2009 the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standard

No 167 Amendments to FASB Interpretation No 46R SFAS 167 The new standard addresses among other

things the application of certain key provisions of U.S GAAP related to variable interest entities including those in

which the accounting and disclosures under U.S GAAP do not always provide timely and useful information about

an enterprises involvement in variable interest entity SFAS 167 is effective for the annual reporting period that

begins after November 15 2009 and for all interim periods subsequent to adoption The Company will provide the

required disclosures beginning with the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ending December 31
2010 Based on the initial evaluation the Company does not anticipate material impact to the Companys financial

position results of operations or cash flows as result of this change

In January 2010 the FASB issued Accounting Standard Update ASU No 20 10-06 Improving Disclosures

about Fair Value Measurements ASU No 20 10-06 The new standard addresses among other things guidance

regarding disclosure of the different classes of assets and liabilities valuation techniques and inputs used activity in

Level fair value measurements and the transfers between levels ASU No 2010-06 is effective for the annual

reporting period beginning after December 15 2009 The Company will provide the required disclosures beginning

with the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ending December 31 2010 Based on the initial

evaluation the Company does not anticipate material impact to the Companys financial position results of

operations or cash flows as result of this change

Recently Adopted Accounting Standards

In accordance with U.S GAAP the following provisions which had no material impact on the Companys
financial position results of operations or cash flows were effective as of January 2009

The portion of the fair value update to U.S GAAP deferred by the FASB in February 2008 for all non
financial assets and non-financial liabilities except those that are recognized or disclosed at fair value in the

financial statements on recurring basis at least annually
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The establishment of accounting and reporting standards for the noncontrolling interest in subsidiary and

the deconsolidation of subsidiary including disclosure requirements that clearly identify and distinguish

between the controlling and noncontrolling interests and that separate the disclosure of income attributable

to the controlling and noncontrolling interests

The change in the factors that should be considered in developing assumptions about renewal or extension

used in estimating the useful life of recognized intangible asset with finite life under U.S GAAP The

update is intended to improve the consistency between the useful life of recognized intangible asset and the

period of expected cash flows used to measure the fair value of the asset The measurement provisions of this

update applied only to intangible assets acquired after January 2009

The change in the disclosure requirements for derivative instruments and hedging activities requiring

enhanced disclosures about how and why an entity uses derivative instruments how derivative instruments

and related hedged items are accounted for and how derivative instruments and related hedged items affect

an entitys financial position financial performance and cash flows The enhanced disclosure requirements

are included within Note 10

The change in accounting for business acquisitions including the impact on financial statements both on the

acquisition date and in subsequent periods The Company will apply the guidance on all future business

combinations subsequent to January 2009

In accordance with U.S GAAP and effective June 30 2009 the Company adopted the following provisions

which had no material impact on the Companys financial position results of operations or cash flows

The establishment of general standards regarding the accounting for and disclosure of events that occur after

the balance sheet date but before financial statements are issued or are available to be issued The additional

disclosures are included within the section Basis of Presentation in Note

The change in the disclosure requirements about the fair value of financial instruments in interim financial

statements as well as in annual financial statements The additional disclosures are included within Note 14

In accordance with U.S GAAP and effective December 31 2009 the Company adopted the following

provision which had no material impact on the Companys financial position results of operations or cash flows

The change in the disclosure requirements which require enhanced annual disclosures about the plan assets

of companys defined benefit pension and other postretirement plans intended to provide users of financial

statements with greater understanding of how investment allocation decisions are made including the

factors that are pertinent to an understanding of investment policies and strategies the major categories

of plan assets the inputs and valuation techniques used to measure the fair value of plan assets including

those using the net asset value per share to estimate the fair value of an alternative investment the effect

of fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs Level on changes in plan assets for the

period and significant concentrations of risk within plan assets The additional disclosures are included

within Note 15

Accounting for the Separation from Cadbury

Upon separation effective May 2008 DPS became an independent company which established new

consolidated reporting structure For the periods prior to May 2008 the Companys consolidated financial

information has been prepared on carve-out basis from Cadburys consolidated financial statements using the

historical results of operations assets and liabilities attributable to Cadburys Americas Beverages business and

including allocations of expenses
from Cadbury The results may not be indicative of the Companys future

performance and may not reflect DPS financial performance had DPS been an independent publicly-traded

company during those prior periods
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In connection with the separation from Cadbury the Company entered into Separation and Distribution

Agreement Transition Services Agreement Tax Sharing and Indemnification Agreement Tax Indemnity

Agreement and Employee Matters Agreement with Cadbury each dated as of May 2008

Settlement of Related Party Balances

Upon the Companys separation from Cadbury the Company settled debt and other balances with Cadbury

eliminated Cadburys net investment in the Company and purchased certain assets from Cadbury related to DPS
business The following debt and other balances were settled with Cadbury upon separation on May 2008 in

millions

Related party receivable 11

Notes receivable from related parties 1375

Related party payable 70
Current portion of the long-term debt payable to related parties 140

Long-term debt payable to related parties 2909

Net cash settlement of related party balances 1733

Items Impacting the Consolidated Statements of Operations

The following transactions related to the Companys separation from Cadbury were included in the Consol

idated Statements of Operations for the year ended December 31 2009 and 2008 in millions

2009 2008

Transaction costs and other one time separation costsl 33

Costs associated with the bridge loan facility2 24

Incremental tax benefit expense related to separation excluding indemnified

taxes 11

Impact of Cadbury tax election3

DPS incurred transaction costs and other one time separation costs of $33 million for the year ended

December 31 2008 These costs are included in selling general and administrative expenses in the Consol

idated Statement of Operations

The Company incurred $24 million of costs for the year ended December 31 2008 associated with the

$1.7 billion bridge loan facility which was entered into to reduce financing risks and facilitate Cadburys

separation of the Company Financing fees of $21 million which were expensed when the bridge loan facility

was terminated on April 30 2008 and $5 million of interest expense were included as component of interest

expense partially offset by $2 million in interest income while in escrow

The Company incurred charge to net income of $5 million $9 million tax charge offset by $4 million of

indemnity income caused by tax election made by Cadbury in December 2008

Items Impacting Income Taxes

The consolidated financial statements present the taxes of the Companys stand-alone business and contain

certain taxes transferred to DPS at separation in accordance with the Tax Indemnity Agreement agreed between

Cadbury and DPS This agreement provides for the transfer to DPS of taxes related to an entity that was part of

Cadburys confectionery business and therefore not part of DPS historical consolidated financial statements The

consolidated financial statements also reflect that the Tax Indemnity Agreement requires Cadbury to indemnify

DPS for these taxes These taxes and the associated indemnity may change over time as estimates of the amounts

change Changes in estimates will be reflected when facts change and those changes in estimate will be reflected in
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the Companys Consolidated Statement of Operations at the time of the estimate change In addition pursuant to the

terms of the Tax Indemnity Agreement if DPS breaches certain covenants or other obligations or DPS is involved in

certain change-in-control transactions Cadbury may not be required to indemnify the Company for any of these

unrecognized tax benefits that are subsequently realized See Note 12 for further information regarding the tax

impact of the separation

Items Impacting Equity

In connection with the Companys separation from Cadbury the following transactions were recorded as

component of Cadburys net investment in DPS as of May 2008 in millions

Contributions Distributions

Legal restructuring to purchase Canada operations from Cadbury 894

Legal restructuring relating to Cadbury confectionery operations

including debt repayment 809

Legal restructuring relating to Mexico operations 520

Contributions from parent
318

Tax reserve provided under FIN 48 as part of separation net of

indemnity
19

Other 59 ________

Total
259 2242

Prior to the May 2008 separation date the Companys total invested equity represented Cadburys interest

in the recorded assets of DPS In connection with the distribution of DPS stock to Cadbury plc shareholders on

May 2008 Cadburys total invested equity was reclassified to reflect the post-separation capital structure of

$3 million par
value of outstanding common stock and contributed capital of $3133 million

Inventories

Inventories as of December 31 2009 and 2008 consisted of the following in millions

December 31 December 31
2009 2008

Raw materials
105 78

Work in process

Finished goods
193 231

Inventories at FIFO cost
302 313

Reduction to LIFO cost 40 50

Inventories
262 263
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Property Plant and Equipment

Net property plant and equipment consisted of the following as of December 31 2009 and 2008 in millions

December 31 December 31
2009 2008

Land 90 84

Buildings and improvements 341 272

Machinery and equipment 995 911

Cold drink equipment 201 157

Software 136 111

Construction in progress 135 141

Gross property plant and equipment 1898 1676

Less accumulated depreciation and amortization 789 686

Net property plant and equipment 1109 990

Land buildings and improvements included $22 million and $23 million of assets at cost under capital lease as

of December 31 2009 and 2008 respectively and machinery and equipment included $1 million of assets at cost

under capital lease as of December 31 2009 and 2008 The net book value of assets under capital lease was

$16 million and $19 million as of December 31 2009 and 2008 respectively

Depreciation expense amounted to $167 million $141 million and $120 million in 2009 2008 and 2007

respectively Depreciation expense was comprised of $67 million $53 million and $53 million in cost of sales and

$100 million $88 million and $67 million in depreciation and amortization on the Consolidated Statements of

Operations in 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively The depreciation expense above also includes the charge to

income resulting from amortization of assets recorded under capital leases

Capitalized interest was $8 million $8 million and $6 million during 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively

Investments in Unconsolidated Subsidiaries

The Company has an investment in 50% owned Mexican joint venture which gives it the ability to exercise

significant influence over operating and financial policies of the investee The joint venture investment represents

noncontrolling ownership interest and is accounted for under the equity method of accounting The carrying value

of the investment was $9 million and $12 million as of December 31 2009 and 2008 respectively The Companys
equity investment does not have readily determinable fair value as the joint venture is not publicly traded The

Companys proportionate share of the net income resulting from its investment in the joint venture is reported under

the line item captioned equity in earnings of unconsolidated subsidiaries net of tax in the Consolidated Statements

of Operations During the fourth quarter of 2009 the Company received $5 million from the joint venture as its

share of dividends declared by the Board of Directors of the Mexican joint venture The dividends received were

recorded as reduction of the Companys investment in the joint venture consistent with the equity method of

accounting

Additionally the Company maintains certain investments accounted for under the cost method of accounting

that have zero cost basis in companies that it does not control and for which it does not have the ability to exercise

significant influence over operating and financial policies
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Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Changes in the carrying amount of goodwill for the years ended December 31 2009 and 2008 by reporting

unit are as follows in millions

Beverage WD Reporting DSD Reporting Latin America

Concentrates Unit3 Unit3 Beverages Total

Balance as of December 31 2007

Goodwill 1731 1220 195 37 3183

Accumulated impairment losses

1731 1220 195 37 3183

Acquisitions1

Impairment2 180 180

Other changes 12

Balance as of December 31 2008

Goodwill 1733 1220 180 30 3163

Accumulated impairment losses 180 180

1733 1220 30 2983

Other changes

Balance as of December 31 2009

Goodwill 1732 1220 180 31 3163

Accumulated impairment losses 180 180

1732 1220 31 2983

The Company acquired Southeast-Atlantic Beverage Corporation SeaBev on July 11 2007 The Company

completed its fair value assessment of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed of this acquisition during the

first quarter 2008 resulting in $1 million increase in the DSD reporting units goodwill During the second

quarter
of 2008 the Company made tax election related to the SeaBev acquisition which resulted in decrease

of $9 million to the DSD reporting units goodwill

DPS annual impairment analysis performed as of December 31 2008 resulted in non-cash impairment

charges of $180 million for the year ended December 31 2008 which are reported in the line item impairment

of goodwill and intangible assets in the Companys Consolidated Statements of Operations

The Packaged Beverages segment is comprised of two reporting units DSD and the Warehouse Direct System

WD
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The net carrying amounts of intangible assets other than goodwill as of December 31 2009 and 2008 are as

follows in millions

December 31 2009 December 31 2008

Gross Accumulated Net Gross Accumulated Net
Amount Amortization Amount Amount Amortization Amount

Intangible assets with indefinite

lives

Brands1 2652 2652 2647 2647

Bottler agreements2

Distributor rights2

Intangible assets with finite lives

Brands 29 22 29 21
Customer relationships 76 45 31 76 33 43

Bottler agreements2 21 17 24 14 10

Distributor rights _______

Total 2788 86 2702 2782 70 2712

In 2009 intangible brands with indefinite lives increased due to $5 million change in foreign currency

In 2009 the Company sold indefinite lived bottler agreements and acquired indefinite lived distribution rights

as well as terminated finite-lived agreement to distribute third partys branded beverages The Company
recorded one-time gains of $62 million in 2009 as component of other operating income in the audited

Consolidated Statement of Operations

As of December 31 2009 the weighted average useful lives of intangible assets with finite lives were 10
years

years and years for brands customer relationships and bottler agreements respectively Amortization
expense

for intangible assets was $17 million $28 million and $30 million for the years ended December 31 2009 2008 and

2007 respectively

Amortization expense of these intangible assets over the next five years is expected to be the following in

millions

2010 17

2011

2012

2013

2014

In 2007 following the termination of the Companys distribution agreements for glaceau products DPS

received payment of approximately $92 million and recognized net gain of $71 million after the write-off of

associated assets

In accordance with U.S GAAP the Company conducts impairment tests of goodwill and indefinite lived

intangible assets annually as of December 31 or more frequently if circumstances indicate that the carrying amount

of an asset may not be recoverable For purposes of impairment testing DPS assigns goodwill to the reporting unit

that benefits from the synergies arising from each business combination and also assigns indefinite lived intangible

assets to its reporting units The Company defines reporting units as Beverage Concentrates Latin America

Beverages and Packaged Beverages two reporting units DSD and WD
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The impairment test for indefinite lived intangible assets encompasses calculating fair value of an indefinite

lived intangible asset and comparing the fair value to its carrying value If the carrying value exceeds the estimated

fair value impairment is recorded The impairment tests for goodwill include comparing fair value of the

respective reporting unit with its carrying value including goodwill and considering any indefinite lived intangible

asset impairment charges Step If the carrying value exceeds the estimated fair value impairment is indicated

and second step analysis Step must be performed

Fair value is measured based on what each intangible asset or reporting unit would be worth to third party

market participant For our annual impairment analysis performed as of December 31 2009 and 2008 method

ologies used to determine the fair values of the assets included combination of the income based approach and

market based approach as well as an overall consideration of market capitalization and our enterprise value

Managements estimates which fall under Level are based on historical and projected operating performance

recent market transactions and current industry trading multiples Discount rates were based on weighted average

cost of equity and cost of debt and were adjusted with various risk premiums

As of December 31 2009 the results of the Step analysis indicated that the estimated fair value of our

indefinite lived intangible assets and goodwill substantially exceeded their carrying values and therefore are not

impaired

2008 Impairment of Goodwill and Intangible Assets

The results of the Step analysis performed as of December 31 2008 indicated there was potential

impairment of goodwill in the DSD reporting unit as the book value exceeded the estimated fair value As result

Step of the goodwill impairment test was performed for the reporting unit The implied fair value of goodwill

determined in the Step analysis was determined by allocating the fair value of the reporting unit to all the assets

and liabilities of the applicable reporting unit including any unrecognized intangible assets and related deferred

taxes as if the reporting unit had been acquired in business combination As result of the Step analysis the

Company impaired the entire DSD reporting units goodwill

DPS annual impairment analysis performed as of December 31 2008 resulted in non-cash charges of

$1039 million for the year ended December 31 2008 which are reported in the line item impairment of goodwill

and intangible assets in the Consolidated Statements of Operations summary of the impairment charges is

provided below in millions

For the Year Ended December 31 2008

Impairment Income Tax Impact on

Charge Benefit Net Income

Snapple brandl 278 112 166

Distribution rights2 581 220 361

Goodwill3 180 11 169

Total 1039 343 696

Included within the WD reporting unit

Includes the DSD reporting units distribution rights brand franchise rights and bottler agreements which

convey certain rights to DPS including the rights to manufacture distribute and sell products of the licensor

within specified territories

Includes all goodwill recorded in the DSD reporting unit which related to our bottler acquisitions in 2006 and

2007
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The following table summarizes the critical assumptions that were used in estimating fair value for DPS
annual impairment tests of goodwill and intangible assets performed as of December 31 2008

Estimated average operating income growth 2009 to 2018 3.2%

Projected long-term operating income growth1 2.5%

Weighted average discount rate2 8.9%

Capital charge for distribution rights3 2.1%

Represents the operating income growth rate used to determine terminal value

Represents the Companys targeted weighted average
discount rate of 7.0% plus the impact of specific

reporting unit risk premiums to account for the estimated additional uncertainty associated with DPS future

cash flows The risk premium primarily reflects the uncertainty related to the continued impact of the

challenging marketplace and difficult macroeconomic conditions the volatility related to key input costs

and the consumer customer competitor and supplier reaction to the Companys marketplace pricing

actions Factors inherent in determining DPS weighted average discount rate are the volatility of DPS

common stock expected interest costs on debt and debt market conditions and the amounts and

relationships of targeted debt and equity capital

Represents charge as percent of revenues to the estimated future cash flows attributable to the Companys

distribution rights for the estimated required economic returns on investments in property plant and equip

ment net working capital customer relationships and assembled workforce

Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses

Accounts payable and accrued expenses
consisted of the following as of December 31 2009 and 2008 in

millions

December 31 December 31
2009 2008

Trade accounts payable 252 234

Customer rebates 209 177

Accrued compensation 126 86

Insurance reserves 68 59

Third party interest accrual and interest rate swap liability 24 58

Other current liabilities 171 182

Accounts payable and accrued expenses
850 796
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Long-term Obligations

The following table summarizes the Companys long-term debt obligations as of December 31 2009 and 2008

in millions

December 31 December 31
2009 2008

Senior unsecured notes 2542 1700

Revolving credit facility
405

Senior unsecured term loan facility 1805

Less current portion

Subtotal 2947 3505

Long-term capital lease obligations 13 17

Long-term obligations 2960 3522

The carrying amount includes an adjustment of $8 million related to the change in the fair value of interest rate

swaps designated as fair value hedges on the 2011 and 2012 Notes See Note 10 for further information

regarding derivatives

2009 Borrowings and Repayments

On November 20 2009 the Board of Directors the Board authorized the Company to issue up to

$1500 million of debt securities through the Securities and Exchange Commission shelf registration process At

December 31 2009 $650 million remained authorized to be issued following the issuance described below

On December 21 2009 the Company completed the issuance of $850 million aggregate principal amount of

senior unsecured notes consisting of $400 million of 1.70% senior notes the 2011 Notes and $450 million of

2.35% senior notes the 2012 Notes due December 21 2011 and December 21 2012 respectively

On December 30 2009 the Company borrowed $405 million from the revolving credit faility the

Revolver

On December 31 2009 the Company fully repaid the senior unsecured term loan facility the Term Loan

prior to its maturity

Subsequent to December31 2009 the Company made optional repayments of $405 million which represented

the outstanding principal balance on the Revolver as of December 31 2009

2008 Borrowings and Repayments

On March 10 2008 the Company entered into arrangements with group of lenders to provide an aggregate of

$4400 million in senior financing The arrangements consisted of the term loan facility revolving credit facility

and bridge loan facility

On April 11 2008 these arrangements were amended and restated The amended and restated arrangements

consist of $2700 million senior unsecured credit agreement that provided the $2200 million Term Loan facility

and the $500 million Revolver collectively the senior unsecured credit facility and 364-day bridge credit

agreement that provided $1700 million bridge loan facility

On May 2008 in connection with the Companys separation from Cadbury $3019 million was repaid to

Cadbury Prior to separation from Cadbury the Company had variety of debt agreements with other wholly-owned

subsidiaries of Cadbury that were unrelated to DPS business
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During 2008 the Company completed the issuance of $1700 million aggregate principal amount of senior

unsecured notes consisting of $250 million aggregate principal amount of 6.12% senior notes due May 2013 the

2013 Notes $1200 million aggregate principal amount of 6.82% senior notes due May 2018 the 2018

Notes and $250 million aggregate principal amount of 7.45% senior notes due May 2038 the 2038 Notes

During 2008 the Company repaid the $1700 million bridge loan facility and made combined mandatory and

optional repayments toward the Term Loan principal totaling $395 million

The following is description of the senior unsecured credit facility and the senior unsecured notes The

summaries of the senior unsecured credit facility and the senior unsecured notes are qualified in their entirety by the

specific terms and provisions of the senior unsecured credit agreement and the indenture governing the senior

unsecured notes respectively copies of which are included as exhibits to this Annual Report on Form 10-K

Senior Unsecured Credit Facility

The Companys senior unsecured credit agreement provides senior unsecured financing of up to $2700 mil

lion consisting of

the Term Loan facility in an aggregate principal amount of $2200 million with term of five years which

was fully repaid in December 2009 prior to its maturity and

the Revolver in an aggregate principal amount of $500 million with maturity in 2013 The balance of

principal borrowings under the Revolver was $405 million and $0 as of December 31 2009 and 2008

respectively Up to $75 million of the Revolver is available for the issuance of letters of credit of which

$41 million and $38 million was utilized as of December 31 2009 and 2008 respectively $54 million was

available for additional borrowings or letters of credit as of December 31 2009

Borrowings under the senior unsecured credit facility bear interest at floating rate per annum based upon the

London interbank offered rate for dollars LIBOR or the alternate base rate ABR in each case plus an

applicable margin which varies based upon the Companys debt ratings from 1.00% to 2.50% in the case of LIBOR

loans and 0.00% to 1.50% in the case of ABR loans The alternate base rate means the greater of JPMorgan

Chase Banks prime rate and the federal funds effective rate plus one half of 1% Interest is payable on the last

day of the interest period but not less than quarterly in the case of
any

LIBOR loan and on the last day of March

June September and December of each year in the case of
any ABR loan The

average
interest rate for the years

ended December 31 2009 and 2008 was 4.9% for each year Interest
expense was $129 million and $85 million

which included amortization of deferred financing costs of $16 million and $10 million for the years ended

December 31 2009 and 2008 respectively Deferred financing costs of $30 million were expensed when the Term

Loan was terminated upon repayment in December 2009

The Company utilizes interest rate swaps to convert variable interest rates to fixed rates See Note 10 for further

information regarding derivatives

An unused commitment fee is payable quarterly to the lenders on the unused portion of the commitments in

respect of the Revolver equal to 0.15% to 0.50%
per annum depending upon the Companys debt ratings The

Company incurred $1 million in unused commitment fees in each year ended December 31 2009 and 2008

Additionally interest
expense

included $3 million and $2 million for amortization of deferred financing costs

associated with the Revolver for the
years

ended December 31 2009 and 2008 respectively

The Company was required to pay annual amortization in equal quarterly installments on the aggregate

principal amount of the Term Loan equal to 10% or $220 million per year for installments due in the first and

second years following the initial date of funding ii15% or $330 million per year for installments due in the third

and fourth years following the initial date of funding and iii 50% or $1100 million for installments due in the

fifth year following the initial date of funding Principal amounts outstanding under the Revolver are due and

payable in full at maturity
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All obligations under the senior unsecured credit facility are guaranteed by substantially all of the Companys

existing and future direct and indirect domestic subsidiaries

The senior unsecured credit facility contains customary negative covenants that among other things restrict

the Companys ability to incur debt at subsidiaries that are not guarantors incur liens merge or sell transfer lease

or otherwise dispose of all or substantially all assets make investments loans advances guarantees and

acquisitions enter into transactions with affiliates and enter into agreements restricting its ability to incur liens

or the ability of subsidiaries to make distributions These covenants are subject to certain exceptions described in the

senior credit agreement In addition the senior unsecured credit facility requires the Company to comply with

maximum total leverage ratio covenant and minimum interest coverage ratio covenant as defined in the senior

credit agreement The senior unsecured credit facility also contains certain usual and customary representations and

warranties affirmative covenants and events of default As of December 31 2009 the Company was in compliance

with all financial covenant requirements

Senior Unsecured Notes

The 2011 and 2012 Notes

In December 2009 the Company completed the issuance of $850 million aggregate principal amount of senior

unsecured notes consisting of the 2011 and 2012 Notes The discount associated with the 2011 and 2012 Notes was

less than $1 million The weighted average
interest rate of the 2011 and 2012 Notes was 2.0% for the year ended

December 31 2009 The net proceeds from the sale of the debentures were used for repayment of existing

indebtedness under the Term Loan Interest on the 2011 and 2012 Notes is payable semi-annually on June 21 and

December 21 Interest expense was $1 million for the year ended December 31 2009 including amortization of

deferred financing costs of less than $1 million

The Company utilizes interest rate swaps designated as fair value hedges effective December 21 2009 to

convert fixed interest rates to variable rates See Note 10 for further information regarding derivatives

The indenture governing the 2011 and 2012 Notes among other things limits the Companys ability to incur

indebtedness secured by principal properties to enter into certain sale and leaseback transactions and to enter into

certain mergers or transfers of substantially all of DPS assets The 2011 and 2012 Notes are guaranteed by

substantially all of the Companys existing and future direct and indirect domestic subsidiaries As of December 31

2009 the Company was in compliance with all financial covenant requirements

The 2013 2018 and 2038 Notes

During 2008 the Company completed the issuance of $1700 million aggregate principal amount of senior

unsecured notes consisting of the 2013 2018 and 2038 Notes The weighted average interest rate of the 2013 2018

and 2038 Notes was 6.8% for both years ended December 31 2009 and 2008 Interest on the senior unsecured notes

is payable semi-annually on May and November and is subject to adjustment Interest expense was $117 million

and $78 million which included amortization of deferred financing costs of $1 million each for the years ended

December 31 2009 and 2008 respectively

The indenture governing the senior unsecured notes among other things limits the Companys ability to incur

indebtedness secured by principal properties to enter into certain sale and lease back transactions and to enter into

certain mergers or transfers of substantially all of DPS assets The senior unsecured notes are guaranteed by

substantially all of the Companys existing and future direct and indirect domestic subsidiaries As of December 31

2009 the Company was in compliance with all covenant requirements
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Bridge Loan Facility and Separation from Cadbury

The Companys bridge credit agreement provided senior unsecured bridge loan facility in an aggregate

principal amount of $1700 million with term of 364 days from the date the bridge loan facility is funded

On April 11 2008 DPS borrowed $1700 million under the bridge loan facility to reduce financing risks and

facilitate Cadburys separation of the Company All of the proceeds from the borrowings were placed into interest-

bearing collateral accounts On April 30 2008 borrowings under the bridge loan facility were released from the

collateral account containing such funds and returned to the lenders and the 364-day bridge loan facility was

terminated For the year ended December 31 2008 the Company incurred $24 million of costs associated with the

bridge loan facility Financing fees of $21 million which were expensed when the bridge loan facility was

terminated and $5 million of interest
expense were included as component of interest expense These costs were

partially offset as the Company earned $2 million in interest income on the bridge loan while in escrow

On May 2008 upon the Companys separation from Cadbury the borrowings under the term loan facility

and the net proceeds of the senior unsecured notes were released to DPS from collateral accounts and escrow

accounts The Company used the funds to settle with Cadbury related party debt and other balances eliminate

Cadburys net investment in the Company purchase certain assets from Cadbury related to DPS business and pay

fees and expenses related to the Companys credit facilities

Capital Lease Obligations

Long-term capital lease obligations totaled $13 million and $17 million as of December 31 2009 and 2008

respectively Current obligations related to the Companys capital leases were $3 million and $2 million as of

December 31 2009 and 2008 respectively and were included as component of accounts payable and accrued

expenses

Long-Term Debt Maturities

As of December 31 2009 the aggregate amounts of required principal payments on long-term obligations

excluding capital leases are as follows in millions

2010

2011 400

2012 450

2013 655

2014

Thereafter 1450

10 Derivatives

DPS is exposed to market risks arising from adverse changes in

interest rates

foreign exchange rates and

commodity prices affecting the cost of raw materials

The Company manages these risks through variety of strategies including the use of interest rate swaps

foreign exchange forward contracts commodity futures contracts and supplier pricing agreements DPS does not

hold or issue derivative financial instruments for trading or speculative purposes
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The Company formally designates and accounts for certain interest rate swaps and foreign exchange forward

contracts that meet established accounting criteria under U.S GAAP as either fair value or cash flow hedges For

derivative instruments that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges the effective portion of the gain or loss on

the derivative instruments is recorded net of applicable taxes in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss

AOCL component of Stockholders Equity in the Consolidated Balance Sheets When net income is affected

by the variability of the underlying transaction the applicable offsetting amount of the gain or loss from the

derivative instruments deferred in AOCL is reclassified to net income and is reported as component of the

Consolidated Statements of Operations For derivative instruments that are designated and qualify as fair value

hedges the effective change in the fair value of these instruments as well as the offsetting gain or loss on the hedged

item attributable to the hedged risk are recognized immediately in current-period earnings For derivatives that are

not designated or de-designated as hedging instrument the gain or loss on the instruments is recognized in

earnings in the period of change

Certain interest rate swap agreements qualify for the shortcut method of accounting for hedges under

U.S GAAP Under the shortcut method the hedges are assumed to be perfectly effective and no ineffectiveness is

recorded in earnings For all other designated hedges DPS assesses hedge effectiveness and measures hedge

ineffectiveness at least quarterly throughout the designated period Changes in the fair value of the derivative

instruments that do not effectively offset changes in the fair value of the underlying hedged item or the variability in

the cash flows of the forecasted transaction throughout the designated hedge period are recorded in earnings each

period

If fair value or cash flow hedges were to cease to qualify for hedge accounting or were terminated it would

continue to be carried on the balance sheet at fair value until settled but hedge accounting would be discontinued

prospectively If the underlying hedged transaction ceases to exist any associated amounts reported in AOCL are

reclassified to earnings at that time

Interest Rates

Cash Flow Hedges

During 2008 and 2009 DPS utilized interest rate swaps designated as cash flow hedges to manage its exposure

to volatility in floating interest rates on borrowings under its Term Loan that effectively converted variable

interest rates to fixed rates The intent of entering into these interest rate swaps is to provide predictability in the

Companys overall cost structure

During the third quarter of 2008 the Company entered into interest rate swaps effective September 30 2008

with notional amounts of $500 million and $1.2 billion respectively The interest rate swap with the notional

amount of $500 million matured in March 2009 During the year ended December 31 2009 DPS maintained the

other interest rate swaps with an aggregate notional amount of $1.2 billion which matured in December 2009

In February 2009 the Company entered into an interest rate swap effective December 31 2009 with duration

of 12 months and $750 million notional amount that amortized at the rate of $100 million every quarter As the

Term Loan was fully repaid in December 2009 the Company de-designated the cash flow hedge as this interest

rate swap no longer qualified for hedge accounting treatment and terminated $345 million of the original notional

amount of the interest rate swap As the underlying forecasted hedged transaction ceased to exist with the

repayment of Term Loan losses of $7 million related to the interest rate swap that were accumulated in AOCL

were immediately recognized into earnings as interest
expense

in December 2009 There were no other cash flow

hedges discontinued during the
year

ended December 31 2009 and the Company did not discontinue any cash flow

hedge relationships during the
year

ended December 31 2008

As of December 31 2009 the remaining $405 million in notional amount of the interest rate swap had not been

terminated and is utilized in the interest rate risk management strategy around the Revolver
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Economic Hedge

As discussed above as of December 31 2009 the remaining $405 million in notional amount of the interest

rate swap is used to economically hedge the volatility in floating interest rate associated with borrowings under the

Revolver Borrowings under the Revolver have similar terms to the Term Loan The interest rate swap is not

designated as hedging instrument and effectively converts variable interest rates on the Revolver to fixed rates

Any change in the fair value of the interest rate swap will be recorded as interest expense going forward in the period

of change

Fair Value Hedges

The Company is also exposed to the risk of changes in the fair value of certain fixed-rate debt attributable to

changes in interest rates and manages these risks through the use of receive-fixed pay-variable interest rate swaps

In December 2009 the Company entered into two interest rate swaps having an aggregate notional amount of

$850 million and durations ranging from two to three years in order to convert fixed-rate long-term debt to floating

rate debt These swaps were entered into at the inception of the 2011 and 2012 Notes See Note for further

information

These swaps are accounted for as fair value hedges under U.S GAAP and qualify for the shortcut method of

accounting for hedges As of December 31 2009 the carrying value of the 2011 and 2012 Notes were adjusted by

$8 million to reflect the change in fair value of the Companys interest rate swap agreements See Note for further

information

Foreign Exchange

The Companys Canadian business purchases its inventory through transactions denominated and settled in

U.S Dollars currency different from the functional currency of the Canadian business These inventory purchases

are subject to exposure from movements in exchange rates The Company uses foreign exchange forward contracts

designated as cash flow hedges to manage operational exposures resulting from changes in these foreign currency

exchange rates The intent of the foreign exchange contracts is to provide predictability in the Companys overall

cost structure These foreign exchange contracts carried at fair value have maturities between one and 24 months

As of December 31 2009 the Company had outstanding foreign exchange forward contracts with notional amounts

of $85 million There were no foreign exchange forward contracts in place for the year ended December 31 2008

that qualified for hedge accounting under U.S GAAP

Commodities

DPS centrally manages the exposure to volatility in the prices of certain commodities used in its production

process through futures contracts and supplier pricing agreements The intent of these contracts and agreements is to

provide predictability in the Companys overall cost structure The Company enters into futures contracts that

economically hedge certain of its risks although hedge accounting under U.S GAAP may not apply In these cases

there exists natural hedging relationship in which changes in the fair value of the instruments act as an economic

offset to changes in the fair value of the underlying items Changes in the fair value of these instruments are recorded

in net income throughout the term of the derivative instrument and are reported in the same line item of the

Consolidated Statements of Operations as the hedged transaction Gains and losses are recognized as component

of unallocated corporate costs until the Companys operating segments are affected by the completion of the

underlying transaction at which time the gain or loss is reflected as component of the respective segments

operating profit SOP
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The following table summarizes the location of the fair value of the Companys derivative instruments within

the Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31 2009 and 2008 in millions

December 31 December 31
Balance Sheet Location 2009 2008

Assets

Derivative instruments designated as

hedging instruments under U.S
GAAP
Interest rate swap contracts Prepaid expenses and other current assets

Foreign exchange forward

contracts1 Other non-current assets

Derivative instruments not designated as

hedging instruments under U.S
GAAP

Commodity futures Prepaid expenses and other current assets

Commodity futures Other non-current assets

Total assets $16

Liabilities

Derivative instruments designated as

hedging instruments under U.S
GAAP
Interest rate swap contracts Accounts payable and accrued expenses 32

Foreign exchange forward contracts Accounts payable and accrued expenses

Interest rate swap contracts Other non-current liabilities 14

Derivative instruments not designated as

hedging instruments under U.S
GAAP
Interest rate swap contract Accounts payable and accrued expenses

Commodity futures2 Accounts payable and accrued expenses

Total liabilities $19 $40

The fair value of foreign exchange forward contracts recorded under Other non-current assets was less than

$1 million as of December 31 2009 There were no foreign exchange forward contracts recorded under Other

non-current assets as of December 31 2008

The fair value of commodity futures recorded under Accounts payable and accrued expenses was less than

$1 million as of December 31 2009
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The following table presents the impact of derivative instruments designated as cash flow hedging instruments

under U.S GAAP to the Consolidated Statements of Operations and Other Comprehensive Income OCI for the

year ended December 31 2009 in millions

Amount of Loss Gain Location of Loss Gain

Amount of Loss Gain Reclassified from AOCL Reclassified from AOCL

Recognized in OCI into Net Income into Net Income

For the year ended

December 31 2009

Interest rate swap contracts 14 46 Interest expense

Foreign exchange forward

contracts
Cost of sales

Total 20 49

The total hedge ineffectiveness recognized in net income was $1 million for the year ended December 31

2009 During the next 12 months the Company expects to reclassify net losses of $3 million from AOCL into net

income

The interest rate swap agreements designated as fair value hedges qualify for the shortcut method and no

ineffectiveness is recorded in earnings

The following table presents
the impact of derivative instruments not designated as hedging instruments under

U.S GAAP to the Consolidated Statements of Operations for the year ended December 31 2009 in millions

Amount of Gain Loss Location of Gain Loss

Recognized in Income Recognized in Income

For the year ended

December 31 2009

Commodity futures
Cost of sales

Commodity futures Selling general and administrative

Interest rate swap1
Interest expense

Total2

The interest rate swap that was utilized to economically hedge the volatility in floating interest rates associated

with borrowings under the Revolver did not generate gains or losses during 2009

The total loss recognized for the year
ended December 31 2009 includes realized $11 million loss which

represents contracts that settled during the year ended December 31 2009 and an unrealized $18 million gain

which represents the change in fair value of outstanding contracts

See Note 14 or more information on the valuation of derivative instruments The Company has exposure to

credit losses from derivative instruments in an asset position in the event of nonperformance by the counterparties to

the agreements Historically DPS has not experienced
credit losses as result of counterparty nonperformance The

Company selects and periodically reviews counterparties based on credit ratings limits its exposure to single

counterparty under defined guidelines and monitors the market position of the programs at least on quarterly

basis
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11 Other Non-Current Assets and Other Non-Current Liabilities

Other non-current assets consisted of the following as of December 31 2009 and 2008 in millions

December 31 December 31
2009 2008

$402 $386

23 66

84 83

34 29

$543 $564

Other non-current liabilities consisted of the following as of December 31 2009 and 2008 in millions

December 31 December 31
2009 2008

115 112

534 515

49 89

39 11

$737 $727

12 Income Taxes

Income loss before provision for income taxes and equity in earnings of unconsolidated subsidiaries was as

follows in millions

2009
_______ _______

U.S 784

Non-U.S 84 _____ _____

Total 868 _____ _____

Long-term receivables from Kraft

Deferred financing costs net

Customer incentive programs

Other

Other non-current assets

Long-term payables due to Kraft

Liabilities for unrecognized tax benefits related interest and penalties

Long-term pension and postretirement liability

Other

Other non-current liabilities

For the Year Ended

December 31

______
2008 2007

534 650

_____
159 167

_____
375 817
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The provision for income taxes attributable to continuing operations has the following components in

millions

For the Year Ended December 31

2009 2008 2007

Current

Federal
194 111 199

State
22 43 33

Non-U.S 12 37 41

Total current provision
228 191 273

Deferred

Federal
71 223 29

State 36

Non-U.S 17 16

Total deferred provision
87 252 49

Total provision for income taxes 315 61 322

In 20092008 and 2007 the reported amount of income tax expense is different from the amount of income tax

expense
that would result from applying the federal statutory rate due principally to state taxes tax reserves and the

deduction for domestic production activity Additionally with respect to 2008 the most significant difference is the

impairment of goodwill and intangible assets

The following is reconciliation of income taxes computed at the U.S federal statutory tax rate to the income

taxes reported in the Consolidated Statements of Operations in millions

For the Year Ended December 31

2009 2008 2007

Statutory federal income tax of 35% 304 131 287

State income taxes net 30 26

Impact of non-U.S operations
14

Impact of impairments
53

Indemnified taxes1 17 19 27

Other2 22 16

Total provision for income taxes 315 61 322

Effective tax rate
36.3% 16.3% 39.4%

Amounts represent tax expense
recorded by the Company for which Kraft is obligated to indemnify DPS under

the Tax Indemnity Agreement

Included in other items is $5 million and $16 million of non-indemnified tax benefit expense the Company

recorded in the years ended December 31 2009 and 2008 respectively driven by separation related trans

actions There was no non-indemnified tax expense driven by separation related transactions for the year
ended

December 31 2007

Deferred income taxes reflect the tax consequences on future years of temporary differences between the tax

basis of assets and liabilities and their financial reporting basis using enacted tax rates in effect for the year in which

the temporary
differences are expected to reverse

88



DR PEPPER SNAPPLE GROUP INC

NOTES TO AUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

Deferred tax assets liabilities as determined under U.S GAAP were comprised of the following as of

December 31 2009 and 2008 in millions

December 31 December 31
2009 2008

Deferred income tax assets

Pension and postretirement benefits 19 36

Accrued liabilities 54 56

Compensation 15 27

Other 81 85

169 204

Deferred income tax liabilities

Intangible assets 842 816
Fixed assets 120 115
Other 23

985 931

Valuation allowance 18 21
Net deferred income tax liability 834 748

The Companys Canadian deferred tax assets included separation related balance of $147 million that was

offset by liability due to Cadbury of $126 million driven by the Tax Indemnity Agreement Anticipated legislation

in Canada could result in future partial write down of tax assets which would be offset to some extent by partial

write down of the liability due to Cadbury

As of December 31 2009 the Company had $15 million in tax effected credit carryforwards and net operating

loss carryforwards Net operating loss and credit carryforwards of $1 million expire in the next five years while the

remainder expire in greater than five years

The Company had deferred tax valuation allowance of $18 million and $21 million as of December 31 2009

and 2008 respectively The valuation allowance is primarily related to foreign operation and was established as

part of the separation transaction

Undistributed earnings considered to be permanently reinvested in non-U.S subsidiaries totaled approxi

mately $115 million and $124 million as of December31 2009 and 2008 respectively Deferred income taxes have

not been provided on this income as the Company believes these earnings to be permanently reinvested It is not

practicable to estimate the amount of additional tax that might be payable on these undistributed foreign earnings

The Company files income tax returns for U.S federal purposes and various state jurisdictions The Company
also files income tax returns in various foreign jurisdictions principally Canada and Mexico The U.S and most

state income tax returns for years prior to 2006 are considered closed to examination by applicable tax authorities

In the third quarter of 2009 the Internal Revenue Service IRS concluded its audit of our 2003-2005 federal

income tax returns Federal income tax returns for 2006 2007 and 2008 are currently under examination by the IRS

Canadian income tax returns are open for audit for tax years 2008 and forward and Mexican income tax returns are

open for tax years 2000 and forward

Under the Tax Indemnity Agreement Cadbury agreed to indemnify DPS for net unrecognized tax benefits and

other tax related items of $402 million This balance increased by $16 million during 2009 and was offset by

indemnity income recorded as component of other income in the Consolidated Statements of Operations In
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addition pursuant to the terms of the Tax Indemnity Agreement if DPS breaches certain covenants or other

obligations or DPS is involved in certain change-in-control transactions Cadbury may not be required to indemnify

the Company

Kraft acquired Cadbury on February 2010 and therefore assumes responsibility for Cadburys indemnity

obligations under the terms of the Tax Indemnity Agreement

The following is reconciliation of the changes in the gross
balance of unrecognized tax benefits from

January 2007 to December 31 2009 in millions

Balance as of January 2007 70

Tax position taken in current period

Gross increases
30

Tax position taken in prior periods

Gross increases
11

Gross decreases

Settlements with taxing authorities cash paid

Balance as of December 31 2007 98

Tax position taken in current period

Gross increases
396

Tax position taken in prior periods

Gross increases 23

Gross decreases 27

Lapse of applicable statute of limitations

Balance as of December 31 2008 483

Tax position taken in current period

Gross increases

Tax position taken in prior periods

Gross increases 21

Gross decreases 14

Settlements

Lapse of applicable statute of limitations

Balance as of December 31 2009 483

The gross
balance of unrecognized tax benefits of $483 million excluded $49 million of offsetting state tax

benefits and timing adjustments Depending on how associated issues are resolved the net unrecognized tax

benefits of $434 million if recognized may reduce the effective income tax rate It is reasonably possible that the

unrecognized tax benefits will be impacted by the resolution of some matters audited by various taxing authorities

within the next twelve months but reasonable estimate of such impact can not be made at this time

The Company accrues interest and penalties on its uncertain tax positions as component of its provision for

income taxes The amount of interest and penalties recognized in the Consolidated Statements of Operations for

uncertain tax positions was $19 million and $18 million and $2 million for 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively The

Company had total of $51 million and $33 million accrued for interest and penalties for its uncertain tax positions

reported as part of other non-current liabilities as of December 31 2009 and 2008 respectively
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13 Restructuring Costs

The Company implements restructuring programs from time to time and incurs costs that are designed to

improve operating effectiveness and lower costs When the Company implements these programs it incurs various

charges including severance and other employment related costs

The Company did not incur any significant restructuring charges during the year
ended December 31 2009

Restructuring charges incurred during the years ended December 31 2008 and 2007 were as follows in millions

For the Year Ended

December 31

2008 2007

Organizational restructuring
39 32

Integration of the DSD system
10 21

Integration of technology facilities

Facility Closure

Process outsourcing

Corporate restructuring

Other

Total restructuring charges 57 76

The Company does not expect to incur significant additional non-recurring charges over the next 12 months

with respect to the restructuring items listed above

Restructuring liabilities are included in accounts payable and accrued expenses on the Consolidated Balance

Sheets Restructuring liabilities as of December 31 2009 2008 and 2007 along with charges to expense cash

payments and non-cash charges for those years were as follows in millions

Workforce

Reduction External Closure

Costs Consulting Costs Other Total

Balance as of December 31 2006

2007 Charges to expense 47 10 14 76

2007 Cash payments 22 13 12 52

Non-cash items

Balance as of December 31 2007 29 30

2008 Charges to expense
30 23 57

2008 Cash payments 37 15 57
Non-cash items 16 22

Balance as of December 31 2008

2009 Charges to expense

2009 Cash payments

Non-cash items

Balance as of December 31 2009
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Organizational Restructuring

The Company initiated restructuring program in the fourth quarter of 2007 intended to create more efficient

organization which resulted in the reduction of employees in the Companys corporate sales and supply chain

functions The Company did not incur any restructuring charges related to the organizational restructuring during

the year
ended December 31 2009 The table below summarizes the charges for the years

ended December 31 2008

and 2007 and the cumulative costs to date by operating segment in millions The Company does not expect to incur

additional charges related to the organizational restructuring

Costs For the

Year Ended

December 31 Cumulative

2008 2007 Costs to Date

Beverage Concentrates 19 15 34

Packaged Beverages 10 19

Latin America Beverages

Corporate 10 16

Total $39 $32 $71

Integration of the DSD System

In conjunction with the integration of the DSD system with the other operations of the Company the Company

began the standardization of
processes

in 2006 The Company did not incur any restructuring charges related to the

integration of the DSD system during the
year

ended December 31 2009 The table below summarizes the charges

for the years ended December 31 2008 and 2007 and the cumulative costs to date by operating segment in

millions The Company does not expect to incur additional restructuring charges related to the integration of the

bottling group

Costs For the

Year Ended

December 31 Cumulative

2008 2007 Costs to Date

Packaged Beverages 12 26

Beverage Concentrates 17

Corporate

Total $10 $21 $49

Integration of Technology Facilities

In 2007 the Company began program to integrate its technology facilities The Company did not incur any

charges for the integration of technology facilities during the year ended December 31 2009 Charges for the

integration of technology facilities were $7 million for the year ended December 31 2008 and $4 million for the

year ended December 31 2007 The Company has incurred $11 million to date and does not expect to incur

additional charges related to the integration of technology facilities

Facility Closure

The Company closed facility related to the Packaged Beverages segments operations in 2007 The Company

did not incur any charges related to the closure of the facility during the year ended December 31 2009 Charges

were $1 million and $6 million for the years ended December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively The Company has

incurred $7 million to date and does not expect to incur additional charges related to the closure of the facility
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Process Outsourcing

In 2007 the Company incurred $6 million in costs related to restructuring actions to outsource the activities of

Latin America Beverages warehousing and distribution processes The Company does not expect to incur

significant additional charges related to this program

Corporate Resfructuring

In 2005 and 2006 the Company initiated corporate organizational restructuring programs Charges for these

restructuring programs were $3 million for the year ended December 31 2007 The Company does not expect to

incur significant additional charges related to these programs

14 Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Effective January 2008 the Company adopted an update to U.S GAAP which defined fair value as the price

that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer liability in an orderly transaction between market

participants at the measurement date U.S GAAP provides framework for measuring fair value and establishes

three-level hierarchy for fair value measurements based upon the transparency of inputs to the valuation of an asset

or liability The three-level hierarchy for disclosure of fair value measurements is as follows

Level Quoted market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level Observable inputs such as quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets quoted

prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active and model-derived valuations in

which all significant inputs and significant value drivers are observable in active markets

Level Valuations with one or more unobservable significant inputs that reflect the reporting entitys own

assumptions

The following table presents the fair value hierarchy for those assets and liabilities measured at fair value on

recurring basis as of December 31 2009 in millions

Fair Value Measurements at Reporting Date Using

Quoted Prices in Significant Other Significant

Active Markets for Observable Unobservable

Identical Assets Inputs Inputs

Level Level Level

Cash and cash equivalents 280

Commodity futures 10

Interest rate swaps

Total assets 280 16

Interest rate swaps 17

Foreign exchange forward contracts

Total liabilities 19

93



DR PEPPER SNAPPLE GROUP INC

NOTES TO AUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

The estimated fair values of other financial liabilities not measured at fair value on recurring basis at

December 31 2009 and 2008 are as follows in millions

December 31 2009 December 31 2008

Carrying Amount Fair Value Carrying Amount Fair Value

Long term debt 2011 Notes1 396 400

Long term debt 2012 Notes1 446 451

Long term debt 2013 Notes 250 273 250 248

Long term debt2018 Notes 1200 1349 1200 1184

Long term debt 2038 Notes 250 291 250 249

Long term debt Revolving credit

facility
405 405

Long term debt Senior unsecured

term loan facility 1805 1606

The carrying amount includes an adjustment of $8 million related to the change in the fair value of interest rate

swaps designated as fair value hedges on the 2011 and 2012 Notes See Note 10 for further information

regarding derivatives

Capital leases have been excluded from the calculation of fair value for both 2009 and 2008

The fair value of long term debt as of December 31 2009 and 2008 was estimated based on quoted market

prices for publicly traded securities The difference between the fair value and the carrying value represents the

theoretical net premium or discount that would be paid or received to retire all debt at such date

15 Employee Benefit Plans

Pension and Postretirement Plans

Overview

The Company has U.S and foreign pension and postretirement benefit plans which provide benefits to

defined group of employees at the discretion of the Company As of December 31 2009 the Company had eleven

stand-alone non-contributory defined benefit plans and six stand-alone postretirement health care plans Each plan

has measurement date of December 31 To participate in the defined benefit plans eligible employees must have

been employed by the Company for at least one year The postretirement benefits are limited to qualified expenses

and are subject to deductibles co-payment provisions and lifetime maximum amounts on coverage Employee

benefit plan obligations and expenses included in our Audited Consolidated Financial Statements are determined

from actuarial analyses based on plan assumptions employee demographic data including years of service and

compensation benefits and claims paid and employer contributions Additionally the Company participates in

various multi-employer defined benefit plans

Prior to the separation from Cadbury certain employees of the Company participated in five defined benefit

plans and one postretirement health care plan sponsored by Cadbury Effective January 2008 the Company

separated these commingled plans which historically contained participants of both the Company and other

Cadbury global companies into separate single employer plans sponsored by DPS As result the Company re

measured the projected benefit obligation of the separated pension plans and recorded the assumed liabilities and

assets based on the number of participants associated with DPS The separation of the commingled plans into stand

alone plans resulted in an increase of approximately $71 million to other non-current liabilities and decrease of

approximately $66 million to AOCL component of stockholders equity
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In 2008 DPS Compensation Committee approved the suspension of two of the Companys principal defined

benefit pension plans which are cash balance plans The cash balance plans maintain individual recordkeeping

accounts for each participant and are credited with interest credits The interest credit is updated annually and equals

the 12-month average
of one year U.S Treasury Bill rates plus 1% with required minimum rate of 5% Effective

December 31 2008 participants in the plans will not earn additional benefits for future services or salary increases

However effective January 2009 current participants are eligible for an enhanced defined contribution the

EDC within DPS Savings Incentive Plan the SIP

During the fourth quarter of 2009 the Company recorded pension settlement loss of approximately

$3 million due to lump-sum distributions that occurred during 2009 The Company recorded approximately

$17 million in 2008 related to pension plan settlements that resulted from the organizational restructuring program

initiated in the fourth quarter of 2007 Additionally the Company recorded pension curtailment gain of less than

$1 million for the year ended December 31 2008

U.S GAAP Changes

On December 31 2009 the Company adopted the enhanced disclosure requirement related to employers

disclosures about pensions and other postretirement benefits as required by U.S GAAP This requirement includes

enhanced disclosures about the plan assets of companys defined benefit pension and other postretirement plans

intended to provide users of financial statements with greater understanding of how investment allocation

decisions are made including the factors that are pertinent to an understanding of investment policies and strategies

the major categories of plan assets the inputs and valuation techniques used to measure the fair value of plan

assets the effect of fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs Level on changes in plan

assets for the period and significant concentrations of credit risk within plan assets The adoption of the

guidance is disclosure related only and did not impact the Companys results of operations or financial position The

plans do not currently hold any assets that are Level and there are no significant concentrations of credit risk

within the plan assets Refer to Note 14 for description of the fair value hierarchy levels and

Effective December 31 2009 the Company also adopted the U.S GAAP guidance on how companies should

estimate the fair value of certain alternative investments and allows companies to use Net Asset Value NAV as

practical expedient in determining fair value Approximately $98 million of pension plan assets and postretirement

benefit plan assets reflected were valued using NAV as of December 31 2009

On January 2008 the Company adopted the measurement date provisions under U.S GAAP which requires

that assumptions used to measure the Companys annual pension and postretirement medical expenses be

determined as of the balance sheet date and all plan assets and liabilities be reported as of that date On January

2008 the Company elected the transition method under which DPS re-measured the defined benefit pension and

postretirement plan assets and obligations as of January 2008 the first day of the 2008 year for plans that

previously had measurement date other than December 31 As result of implementing the measurement date

provision the Company recorded charge of less than $1 million to Retained Earnings and an increase of

approximately $2 million $3 million gross net of $1 million tax benefit to AOCL
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The total pension and postretirement defined benefit costs recorded in the Companys Consolidated State

ments of Operations for the
years

ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007 were as follows in millions

For the Year Ended
December 31

2009 2008 2007

Net Periodic Benefit Costs1

Pension plans2 11 31

Postretirement benefit plans

Multi-employer plans
26

Total $22 $37 $26

Effective January 2008 the Company separated commingled pension and postretirement plans which

contained participants of both the Company and other Cadbury companies into separate stand alone plans

sponsored by DPS The net periodic benefit costs associated with these plans for the year
ended December 31

2007 are reflected as multi-employer plan expense in the table above

During the fourth quarter of 2009 the Company recorded pension settlement loss of approximately $3 million

due to lump-sum distributions that occurred during 2009 The Company recorded approximately $17 million in

2008 related to pension plan settlements that resulted from the organizational restructuring program initiated in

the fourth quarter of 2007 Additionally the Company recorded pension curtailment gain of less than

$1 million for the year ended December 31 2008
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Effective January 2008 the Company separated commingled pension and postretirement pians which

contained participants of both the Company and other Cadbury companies into separate stand alone plans

sponsored by DPS As result the Company re-measured the projected benefit obligation

In accordance with U.S GAAP the Company elected the transition method under which DPS re-measured the

plan obligations and plan assets as of January 2008 the first day of the 2008 year for plans that previously

had measurement date other than December 31

The following tables set forth amounts recognized in the Companys financial statements and the plans funded

status for the years ended December 31 2009 and 2008 in millions

Postretirement

Pension Plans Benefit Plans

2009 2008 2009 2008

Projected Benefit Obligations

As of beginning of year
230 66 25

Impact from the separation of commingled plans into stand alone

plans1 254 17

Impact of changing measurement date2

Service cost 11

Interest cost 15 19

Actuarial gain/loss 24 27
Benefits paid

Currency exchange adjustments

Curtailments 35
Settlements 12 45

As of end of year
253 230 24 25

Fair Value of Plan Assets

As of beginning of year
162 70

Impact from the separation of commingled plans into stand alone

plansl 194

Impact of changing measurement date2

Actual return of plan assets 37 67
Employer contribution 43 26

Plan participants contributions

Benefits paid

Currency exchange adjustments

Settlements 12 45

As of end of year
223 162

Funded status of plan net amount recognized 30 68 19 21

Funded status overfunded

Funded status underfunded 32 70 19 21
Net amount recognized consists of

Non-current assets

Current liabilities

Non-current liabilities 31 69 18 20

Net amount recognized 30 68 19 21
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The accumulated benefit obligations for the defined benefit pension plans were $252 million and $230 million

at December 31 2009 and 2008 respectively The pension plan assets and the projected benefit obligations of DPS

U.S plans represent approximately 94% and 93% of the total plan assets and the total projected benefit obligation

respectively of all plans combined The following table summarizes key pension plan information regarding plans

whose accumulated benefit obligations exceed the fair value of their respective plan assets in millions

2009 2008

Aggregate projected benefit obligation 253 228

Aggregate accumulated benefit obligation 252 228

Aggregate fair value of plan assets 223 158

The following table summarizes the components of the net periodic benefit cost and changes in plan assets and

benefit obligations recognized in OCT for the stand alone U.S and foreign plans for the years ended December 31

2009 2008 and 2007 in millions

Benefit Plans

Pension Plans Postretirement

For the Year Ended December 31

2009 2008 2007 2009 2008 2007

Net Periodic Benefit Costs1

Service cost 11

Interest cost 15 19

Expected return on assets 13 19
Amortization of actuarial loss

Amortization of prior service cost

Curtailment gain

Settlement loss 17

Net periodic benefit costs $11 31 $3
Changes Recognized in OCI1
Curtailment effects 34
Settlements 16
Current year actuarial gain/loss 60

Recognition of actuarial loss

Recognition of prior service cost _____

Total recognized in OCT

Effective January 2008 the Company separated commingled pension and post retirement plans which

contained participants of both the Company and other Cadbury companies into separate stand alone plans

sponsored by DPS The net periodic benefit costs associated with these plans prior to the separation are detailed

below as component of multi-employer plan costs for 2007

The estimated net actuarial loss and prior service cost for the defined benefit plans that will be amortized from

AOCL into periodic benefit cost in 2010 are approximately $9 million and less than $1 million respectively
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The following table summarizes amounts included in AOCL for the plans as of December 31 2009 and 2008

in millions

Postretirement

Pension Plans Benefit Plans

2009 2008 2009 2008

Prior service cost gains

Net losses 64 71

Amounts in AOCL 65 72

The following table summarizes the contributions made to the Companys pension and other postretirement

benefit plans for the years ended December 31 2009 and 2008 as well as the projected contributions for the year

ending December 31 2010 in millions

Projected Actual

2010 2009 2008

Pension plans
12 43 26

Postretirement benefit plans

Total 14 $45 $28

The following table summarizes the expected future benefit payments cash activity for the Companys pension

and postretirement
benefit plans in the future in millions

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015-2019

Pension plans
14 15 16 18 18 102

Postretirement benefit plans

Actuarial Assumptions

The Companys 2009 pension expense for U.S plans was calculated based upon number of actuarial

assumptions including discount rate retirement age compensation rate increases expected long-term rate of return

on plan assets for pension benefits and the healthcare cost trend rate related to its postretirement medical plans

These assumptions are determined by management

The discount rate that was utilized for determining the Companys 2009 projected benefit obligations and

projected 2010 net periodic benefit cost for U.S plans was selected based upon an interest rate yield curve The

yield curve is constructed based on the yields of over 400 high-quality non-callable corporate bonds with maturities

between zero and 30
years as of December 31 2009 The population of bonds utilized to calculate the discount rate

includes those having an average yield between the 40th and 90th percentiles Projected cash flows from the

U.S plans are then matched to spot rates along that yield curve in order to determine their present value and single

equivalent discount rate is calculated that produces the same present value as the spot rates

For the year ended December 31 2009 the expected long-term rate of return on U.S pension fund assets held

by the Companys pension trusts was determined based on several factors including the impact of active portfolio

management and projected long-term returns of broad equity and bond indices The plans historical returns were

also considered The expected long-term rate of return on the assets in the plans was based on an asset allocation

assumption of approximately 35% with equity managers with expected long-term rates of return of approximately

8.5% and approximately 65% with fixed income managers with an expected long-term rate of return of

approximately 5.50%
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The following table summarizes the weighted-average assumptions used to determine benefit obligations at

the plan measurement dates for U.S plans

Postretirement

Pension Plans Benefit Plans

2009 2008 2009 2008

Weighted-average discount rate 5.90% 6.50% 5.90% 6.50%

Rate of increase in compensation levels 3.50% 3.50% N/A N/A

The following table summarizes the weighted average
actuarial assumptions used to determine the net periodic

benefit costs for U.S plans for the years ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007

Postretirement

Pension Plans Benefit Plans

2009 2008 2007 2009 2008 2007

Weighted-average discount rate 6.50% 6.00% 5.90% 6.50% 6.00% 5.90%

Expected long-term rate of return on assets 7.30% 7.30% 7.30% 7.30% 7.30% N/A

Rate of increase in compensation levels 3.50% 3.50% N/A N/A N/A N/A

The following table summarizes the weighted-average assumptions used to determine benefit obligations at

the plan measurement dates for foreign plans

Postretirement

Pension Plans Benefit Plans

2009 2008 2009 2008

Weighted-average discount rate 6.52% 6.98% 5.50% 6.25%

Rate of increase in compensation levels 3.85% 3.90% N/A N/A

The following table summarizes the weighted average actuarial assumptions used to determine the net periodic

benefit costs for foreign plans for the years ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007

Postretirement

Pension Plans Benefit Plans

2009 2008 2007 2009 2008 2007

Weighted-average discount rate 6.99% 7.14% 6.06% 6.25% 5.25% 5.25%

Expected long-term rate of return on assets 7.62% 7.66% 7.56% N/A N/A N/A

Rate of increase in compensation levels 4.06% 4.23% 3.8 1% N/A N/A 3.50%

The following table summarizes the health care cost trend rate assumptions used to determine the postre

tirement benefit obligation for U.S plans

Health care cost trend rate assumed for 2010 Initial Rate 9.00%

Rate to which the cost trend rate is assumed to decline Ultimate Rate 5.00%

Year that the rate reaches the ultimate trend rate 2016

The effect of 1% increase or decrease in health care trend rates on the U.S and foreign postretirement benefit

plans would change the benefit obligation at the end of the year and the service cost plus interest cost by less than

$1 million

100



DR PEPPER SNAPPLE GROUP INC

NOTES TO AUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

The pension assets of DPS U.S plans represent approximately 93% of the total pension plan assets The asset

allocation for the U.S defined benefit pension plans for December 31 2009 and 2008 are as follows

Target
Actual

Asset Category
2010 2009 2008

Equity securities
35% 50% 49%

Fixed income __% O/7o

Total
100% 100% 100%

Investment Policy and Strategy

DPS has established formal investment policies for the assets associated with defined benefit plans The

Companys investment policy and strategy are mandated by the Companys Investment Committee The overriding

investment objective is to provide for the availability of funds for pension obligations as they become due to

maintain an overall level of financial asset adequacy and to maximize long-term investment return consistent with

reasonable level of risk DPS pension plan investment strategy
includes the use of actively-managed securities The

Investment Committee periodically reviews investment performance both by investment manager and asset class as

well as overall market conditions with consideration of the long-term investment objectives None of the plan assets

are invested directly in equity or debt instruments issued by DPS It is possible that insignificant indirect

investments exist through its equity holdings The equity and fixed income investments under DPS sponsored

pension plan assets are currently well diversified across all areas of the equity market and consist of both corporate

and U.S government bonds The pension plans do not currently invest directly in any derivative investments

The Plans asset allocation policy is reviewed at least annually Factors considered when determining the

appropriate asset allocation include changes in plan liabilities an evaluation of market conditions tolerance for risk

and cash requirements for benefit payments The investment policy contains allowable ranges in asset mix as

outlined in the table below

Asset Category
Target Range

Equity securities

U.S Large Cap equities
25% 40%

U.S Small-Mid Cap equities
4% 12%

International securities
15% 25%

U.S fixed income 30% 50%

Based on the increase in funded status and reduction in plan liabilities during 2009 as compared to 2008 the

Investment Committee changed the target asset allocation to approximately 35% equity securities and 65% fixed

income securities in order to protect the existing assets and generate guaranteed return sufficient to meet the

aforementioned investment objectives
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Fair Value of Plan Assets

The following table presents the major categories of plan assets and the respective fair value hierarchy for the

pension plan assets as of December 31 2009 in millions

Fair Value Measurements at December 31 2009

Quoted Prices in Significant Significant

Active Markets for Observable Unobservable

Identical Assets Inputs Inputs

Total Level Level Level

In millions

Cash and cash equivalents

Equity securities

U.S Large-Cap equities3 51 51

U.S Small-Cap equities 14 14

International equities3 42 42

Fixed income securities2

U.S Treasuries

U.S Municipal bonds

Corporate bonds 80 80

International bonds3 25 20

Total 223 125 98

Equity securities are comprised of common stock and actively managed U.S index funds and Europe

Australia Far East EAFE index funds Investments in common stocks are valued using quoted market prices

multiplied by the number of shares held

Fixed income securities are comprised of U.S Treasuries U.S Municipal bonds investment grade U.S and

non-U.S fixed income securities which are valued using broker quote in an active market actively managed

fixed income investment vehicles are valued at NAy

The NAV is based on the fair value of the underlying assets owned by the equity index fund or fixed income

investment vehicle
per share multiplied by the number of units held as of the measurement date and are

classified as Level assets
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The following table presents the major categories of plan assets and the respective fair value hierarchy for the

postretirement benefit plan assets as of December 31 2009 in millions

Fair Value Measurements at December 31 2009

Quoted Prices in Significant Significant

Active Markets for Observable Unobservable

Identical Assets Inputs Inputs

Total Level Level Level

in millions

Equity securities

U.S Large-Cap equities2

International equities2

Fixed income securities3

Corporate bonds

International bonds

Total

Equity securities are comprised of common stock and actively managed U.S index funds and Europe

Australia Far East EAFE index funds Investments in common stocks are valued using quoted market prices

multiplied by the number of shares held

Fixed income securities are comprised of U.S Treasuries U.S Municipal bonds investment grade U.S and

non-U.S fixed income securities which are valued using broker quote in an active market and actively

managed fixed income investment vehicles which are valued at NAy

The NAY is based on the fair value of the underlying assets owned by the equity index fund or fixed income

investment vehicle
per

share multiplied by the number of units held as of the measurement date and are

classified as Level assets

Multi-employer Plans

Cadbury

Prior to the separation from Cadbury certain employees of the Company participated in defined benefit plans

and postretirement health care plans sponsored by Cadbury Effective January 2008 the Company separated these

conmiingled plans which historically contained participants of both the Company and other Cadbury global

companies into stand alone plans sponsored by DPS These plans were accounted for as multi-employer plans prior

to 2008 The following table summarizes the components of net periodic benefit cost related to the U.S multi-

employer plans sponsored by Cadbury recognized in the Consolidated Statements of Operations for 2007 in

millions

Postretirement

Pension Plans Benefit Plans

2007 2007

Service cost
13

Interest cost
17

Expected return on assets 13

Recognition of actuarial gain

Net periodic benefit costs 22

Each individual component and the total periodic benefit cost for the foreign multi-employer plans sponsored

by Cadbury were less than $1 million for 2007
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The contributions paid into the U.S and foreign multi-employer plans on the Companys behalf by Cadbury

were $30 million for 2007

Other Plans

The Company participates in number of trustee-managed multi-employer defined benefit pension plans for

employees under certain collective bargaining agreements Contributions paid into the multi-employer plans are

expensed as incurred and were approximately $8 million $4 million and $3 million for the
years

ended

December 31 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively

During the third quarter of 2009 trustee-approved mass withdrawal under one multi-employer plan was

triggered and the trustee estimated the unfunded vested liability for the Company As result of this action the

Company recognized additional expense of approximately $3 million for the year ended December 31 2009

Defined Contribution Plans

The Company sponsors the SIP which is qualified 401k Retirement Plan that covers substantially all

U.S.-based employees who meet certain eligibility requirements This plan permits both pre-tax and after-tax

contributions which are subject to limitations imposed by Internal Revenue Code the Code regulations The

Company matches employees contributions up to specified levels

The Company also sponsors supplemental savings plan the SSP which is nonqualified defined

contribution plan for employees who are actively enrolled in the SIP and whose after-tax contributions under the

SIP are limited by the Code compensation limitations

Additionally current participants in the SIP and SSP are eligible for an enhanced defined contribution which

vests after three years of service with the Company The EDC was adopted by the Company during the fourth

quarter of 2006 and contributions began accruing for plan participants effective January 2008 after one-year

waiting period for participant entry into the plan The Company made contributions of $12 million to the EDC

during 2009

The Companys employer matching contributions to the SIP and SSP plans were approximately $14 million in

2009 $13 million in 2008 and $12 million in 2007

16 Stock-Based Compensation

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company accounts for stock-based compensation under the fair value method of accounting as required

by U.S GAAP Compensation cost is based on the grant-date fair value which is estimated using the Black-Scholes

option pricing model for stock options The fair value of restricted stock units is determined based on the number of

units granted and the grant date price of common stock Stock-based compensation expense is recognized ratably

less estimated forfeitures over the vesting period in the Consolidated Statements of Operations related to the fair

value of employee share-based awards and recognition of compensation cost over the service period
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The components of stock-based compensation expense for the years ended December 31 2009 2008 and

2007 are presented below in millions

For the Year Ended December 31

2009 2008 2007

Plans sponsored by Cadbury 21

DPS stock options and restricted stock units 19

Total stock-based compensation expense
19 21

Income tax benefit recognized in the income statement

Net stock-based compensation expense
$12 $7 $13

Description of Stock-Based Compensation Plans

Omnibus Stock Incentive Plan of 2009

During 2009 the Company adopted the Onmibus Stock Incentive Plan of 2009 the 2009 Stock Plan under

which employees consultants and non-employee directors may be granted stock options stock appreciation rights

stock awards or restricted stock units RSUs This plan provides for the issuance of up to 20000000 shares of

the Companys common stock Subsequent to adoption the Companys Compensation Committee granted RSUs

which vest after three years.
Each RSU is to be settled for one share of the Companys common stock on the

respective vesting date of the RSU No other types of stock-based awards have been granted under the 2009 Stock

Plan Approximately 20000000 shares of the Companys common stock were available for future grant at

December 31 2009

Omnibus Stock Incentive Plan of 2008

In connection with the separation from Cadbury on May 2008 Cadbury Schweppes Limited the

Companys sole stockholder approved the Companys Omnibus Stock Incentive Plan of 2008 the 2008 Stock

Plan and authorized up to 9000000 shares of the Companys common stock to be issued under the Stock Plan

Subsequent to May 2008 the Compensation Committee granted under the 2008 Stock Plan options to

purchase shares of the Companys common stock which vest ratably over three years commencing with the first

anniversary date of the option grant and RSUs with the substantial portion of RSUs vesting over three year

period Each RSU is to be settled for one share of the Companys common stock on the respective vesting date of the

RSU The stock options issued under the 2008 Stock Plan have maximum option term of 10 years

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

In connection with the separation from Cadbury on May 2008 Cadbury Schweppes Limited the

Companys sole stockholder approved the Companys Employee Stock Purchase Plan ESPP and authorized

up to 2250000 shares of the Companys common stock to be issued under the ESPP No ESPP has been

implemented and no shares have been issued under that plan

Stock Options

Because the Company lacks meaningful set of historical data upon which to develop valuation assumptions

DPS has elected to develop certain valuation assumptions based on information disclosed by similarly-situated

companies including multi-national consumer goods companies of similar market capitalization

The tables below summarize information about the Companys stock options granted during the years
ended

December 31 2009 and 2008
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The fair value of each stock option is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes optionpricing

model with the weighted average assumptions as detailed below

For the Year Ended

December 31

2009 2008

Fair value of options at grant date 3.57 7.37

Risk free interest rate 2.23% 3.27%

Expected term of options 6.1 years 5.8 years

Dividend yield1

Expected volatility 21.46% 22.26%

During the fourth quarter of 2009 the Company declared dividend Dividend yield will be included as

valuation assumption for future stock based compensation awards

summary of DPS stock option activity for the years ended December 31 2009 is as follows

Weighted Average
Stock Options Exercise Price

Number outstanding at January 2009 1159619 25.30

Granted 1242494 13.48

Exercised 37292 22.64

Forfeited or expired 186610 20.96

Outstanding at December 31 2009 2178211 18.97

Exercisable at December 31 2009 337819 25.29

The total intrinsic value of stock options exercised was less than $1 million for the year ended December 31
2009 There were no stock options exercised during the year ended December 31 2008

The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding as of December 31 2009 in

millions except per share and share data

Weighted Average

Remaining
Number Contractual Term

Range of Exercise Prices Per Share Outstanding years Aggregate Intrinsic Value

$13.48 $25.36 2178211 8.79 20

The following table summarizes information about stock options exercisable as of December 31 2009 in

millions except per
share and share data

Weighted Average

Remaining
Number Contractual Term

Range of Exercise Prices Per Share Exercisable years Aggregate Intrinsic Value

$20.76 $25.36 337819 8.36
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summary of the status of the Companys nonvested options as of December 31 2009 and changes during the

year
ended December 31 2009 is presented below

Weighted-Average
Stock Options Grant-Date Fair Value

Nonvested at January 2009 1159619 7.36

Granted 1242494 3.57

Vested 375111 7.28

Forfeited or expired 186610 5.97

Nonvested at December 31 2009 1840392 4.96

As of December 31 2009 there was $6 million of unrecognized compensation costs related to the nonvested

stock options granted under the Plan That cost is expected to be recognized over weighted-average period of

1.74 years

Restricted Stock Units

The tables below summarize information about the restricted stock units granted during the year ended

December 31 2009 The fair value of restricted stock units is determined based on the number of units granted and

the grant date price of common stock

summary of the Companys restricted stock activity for the year ended December 31 2009 is as follows

Weighted Average
Restricted Stock Units Grant-Date Fair Value

Number outstanding at January 2009 1028609 24.83

Granted 1909601 13.78

Vested and released 81056 24.96

Forfeited or expired 168603 18.12

Outstanding at December 31 2009 2688551 17.43

The following table summarizes information about restricted stock units outstanding as of December 31 2009

in millions except per share and share data

Weighted Average
Number Remaining

Range of Grant-Date Fair Values Per Share Outstanding Contractual Term years Aggregate Intrinsic Value

$13.48 $25.36 2688551 1.91 76

As of December 31 2009 there was $29 million of unrecognized compensation costs related to nonvested

restricted stock units granted under the Plan That cost is expected to be recognized over weighted-average period

of 1.87 years

Modifications of Share-Based Awards

On October 26 2009 the Companys Compensation Committee approved letter agreement between the

Company and an officer of the Company regarding his early retirement and separation from the Company Under

the terms of the letter agreement the vesting of portion of the officers remaining unvested stock options and

restricted stock units granted under the 2008 Stock Plan will accelerate and fully vest on March 31 2010 subject to

performance conditions There was no incremental compensation cost associated with the modification
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During the fourth quarter of 2009 DPS Compensation Committee approved modification to amend all

outstanding individual RSU agreements as of November 19 2009 to allow for individual RSU awards to participate

in dividends in the event of dividend declaration which affected approximately 600 employees As result of the

modification the Company recorded an additional $1 million in stock-based compensation expense during the

fourth quarter of 2009 with an additional $2 million to be recognized prospectively over the weighted average

remaining term of those individual RSU awards

Converted Legacy Plan

Prior to the Companys separation from Cadbury certain of its employees participated in stock-based

compensation plans sponsored by Cadbury These plans provided employees with stock or options to purchase

stock in Cadbury The expense incurred by Cadbury for stock or stock options granted to DPS employees has been

reflected in the Companys Consolidated Statements of Operations in selling general and administrative expenses

The interests of the Companys employees in certain Cadbury benefit plans were converted into one of three

Company plans which were approved by the Companys sole stockholder on May 2008 As result of this

conversion the participants in these three plans are fully vested in and will receive shares of common stock of the

Company on designated future dates Pursuant to U.S GAAP this conversion qualified as modification of an

existing award and resulted in the recognition of one-time incremental stock-based compensation expense of less

than $1 million which was recorded during the year ended December 31 2008

As of December 31 2009 the aggregate number of shares of the Companys common stock that are to be

distributed under these plans is approximately 200000 shares These fully vested options are not included under the

stock option activity detailed above

There was no stock-based compensation expense for the year
ended December 31 2009 related to the

converted legacy plan The stock-based compensation expense recognized by the Company as result of the

converted legacy plans was $1 million and $13 million in 2008 and 2007 respectively

Stock-Based Compensation Plans Prior to Separation from Cadlnuy

Prior to separation from Cadbury certain of the Companys employees participated in stock-based compen

sation plans sponsored by Cadbury These plans provided employees with stock or options to purchase stock in

Cadbury Schweppes Given that the Companys employees directly benefit from participation in these plans the

expense
incurred by Cadbury for options granted to DPS employees has been reflected in the Companys

Consolidated Statements of Operations in selling general and administrative expenses for the periods prior to

separation Upon separation DPS sponsors its own stock-based compensation plans and accordingly the

Companys consolidated financial statements will not be impacted by the Cadbury sponsored plans in future

periods

The Company recognized the cost of all unvested employee stock-based compensation plans sponsored by

Cadbury on straight-line attribution basis over the respective vesting periods net of estimated forfeitures Certain

of the plans sponsored by Cadbury contained inflation indexed earnings growth performance conditions

U.S GAAP requires plans with such performance criteria to be accounted for under the liability method in which

liability is recorded on the balance sheet In addition in calculating the income statement charge for share awards

under the liability method the fair value of each award must be re-measured at each reporting date until vesting

calculated by estimating the number of awards expected to vest for each plan adjusted over the vesting period

The outstanding value of options recognized using the equity method has been reflected in Cadburys net

investment component of stockholders equity while the options utilizing the liability method have been reflected

in accounts payable and accrued expenses
and other non-current liabilities on the Consolidated Balance Sheet The

Company did not receive cash in any year as result of option exercises under share-based payment arrangements

Actual tax benefits realized for the tax deductions from option exercises were $10 million for 2007 The total
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intrinsic value of options exercised during the year was $24 million for 2007 An expense was recognized for the fair

value at the date of grant of the estimated number of shares to be awarded to settle the awards over the vesting period

of each scheme

The Company presents the tax benefits of deductions from the exercise of stock options as financing cash

inflows in the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Awards under the plans were settled by Cadbury through either repurchases of publicly available shares or

awards under the Bonus Share Retention Plan BSRP and the Long Term Incentive Plan LTIP were satisfied

by the transfer of shares to participants by the trustees of the Cadbury Schweppes Employee Trust the Employee

Trust The Employee Trust was general discretionary trust whose beneficiaries included employees and former

employees of Cadbury and their dependents

Prior to separation the Company had number of share option plans that were available to certain senior

executives including the LTIP and the BSRP

Cadbury had an International Share Award Plan ISAP which was used to reward exceptional performance

of employees Following the decision to cease granting discretionary options other than in exceptional circum

stances the ISAP was used to grant conditional awards to employees who previously received discretionary

options Awards under this plan are classified as liabilities until vested

Share Award Fair Values

The fair value was measured using the valuation technique that was considered to be the most appropriate to

value each class of award these included Binomial models Black-Scholes calculations and Monte Carlo

simulations These valuations took into account factors such as nontransferability exercise restrictions and

behavioral considerations Key assumptions are detailed below

2007

BSRP LTIP ISAP

Expected volatility N/A 15% N/A

Expected life years years years

Risk-free rate 5.5% N/A 4.9% to 5.8%

Expected dividend yield 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% to 3.0%

Fair value
per

award of share price at

date of grant 185.5% 92.8% UEPS 91.8% to 99.3%

45.1% TSR

Expectations of meeting performance

criteria 40% 70% 100%

Expected volatility was determined by calculating the historical volatility of Cadburys share price over the

previous three years The expected life used in the model has been adjusted based on Cadburys best estimate for

the effects of nontransferability exercise restrictions and behavioral considerations The risk-free rates used reflect

the implied yield on zero coupon bonds issued in the UK with periods which match the expected term of the awards

valued The expected dividend yield was estimated using the historical dividend yield of Cadbury
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17 Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings loss per share BPS is computed by dividing net income loss by the weighted average

number of common shares outstanding for the period Diluted BPS reflects the assumed conversion of all dilutive

securities The following table sets forth the computation of basic EPS utilizing the net income loss for the

respective period and the Companys basic shares outstanding in millions except per share data

For the Year Ended December 31

2009 2008 2007

Basic EPS

Net income loss 555 312 497

Weighted average common shares outstanding1 254.2 254.0 253.7

Earnings loss per common sharebasic 2.18 1.23 1.96

The following table presents the computation of diluted EPS dollars in millions except per share amounts

For the Year Ended December 31

2009 2008 2007

Diluted EPS

Net income loss 555 312 497

Weighted average common shares outstanding1 254.2 254.0 253.7

Effect of dilutive securities

Stock options and RSUs2 1.0
______ ______

Weighted average common shares outstanding and common stock

equivalents
255.2 254.0 253.7

Earnings loss per common sharediluted 2.17 1.23 1.96

For all periods prior to May 2008 the date DPS distributed the common stock of DPS to Cadbury plc

shareholders the same number of shares is being used for diluted BPS as for basic EPS as no common stock of

DPS was previously outstanding and no DPS equity awards were outstanding for the prior periods Subsequent

to May 2008 the number of basic shares includes approximately 500000 shares related to former Cadbury

benefit plans converted to DPS shares on daily volume weighted average See Note 16 for further information

regarding the Companys stock-based compensation plans

Anti-dilutive stock options and RSUs totaling 1.1 million shares were excluded from the diluted weighted

average shares outstanding for the year
ended December 31 2009 Anti-dilutive weighted average options and

RSUs totaling 0.8 million shares were excluded from the diluted weighted average shares outstanding for the

year ended December 31 2008 DPS had no anti-dilutive options and RSUs for the year ended December 31

2007
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18 Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss Income

The Companys accumulated balances shown net of tax for each classification of AOCL as of December 31

2009 2008 and 2007 are as follows in millions

December 31

2009 2008 2007

Net foreign currency translation adjustment 12 34 27

Net pension and postretirement medical benefit plansl 45 52
Net cash flow hedges 20

Accumulated other comprehensive loss income 59 106 20

The 2008 activity included $2 million loss net of tax as result of changing the measurement date for DPS
defined benefit pension plans from September 30 to December 31 under U.S GAAP
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19 Supplemental Cash Flow Information

The following table details supplemental cash flow disclosures of non-cash investing and financing activities

and other supplemental cash flow disclosures for the years ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007 in millions

For the Year Ended

December 31

2009 2008 2007

Supplemental cash flow disclosures of non-cash investing and

financing activities

Settlement related to separation from Cadbury1 150

Purchase accounting adjustment related to prior year acquisitions 15

Capital expenditures included in accounts payable
39 48

Transfer of property plant and equipment for note receivable

Transfers of property plant and equipment to Cadbury 15

Transfers of operating assets and liabilities to Cadbury 22

Reduction in long-term debt from Cadbury
263

Related entities acquisition payments 17

Note payable related to acquisition
35

Assumption of debt related to acquisition payments by Cadbury 35

Transfer of related party receivable to Cadbury 16

Liabilities expected to be reimbursed by Cadbury 27

Reclassifications for tax transactions 90

Supplemental cash flow disclosures

Interest paid
152 143 257

Income taxes paid
233 120 34

The following detail represents the initial non-cash financing and investing activities in connection with the

Companys separation from Cadbury for the year
ended December 31 2008 in millions

Tax reserve provided under FIN 48 as part of separation 386

Tax indemnification by Cadbury
334

Deferred tax asset setup for Canada operations
177

Transfer of legal entities to Cadbury for Canada operations 165

Liability to Cadbury related to Canada operations 132

Transfers of pension obligation
71

Settlement of operating liabilities due to Cadbury net 75

Other tax liabilities related to separation
28

Settlement of related party note receivable from Cadbury

Transfer of legal entities to Cadbury for Mexico operations

Total 150
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20 Commitments and Contingencies

Lease Commitments

The Company has leases for certain facilities and equipment which expire at various dates through 2020

Operating lease expense was $79 million $59 million and $46 million for the years ended December 31 2009

2008 and 2007 respectively Future minimum lease payments under capital and operating leases with initial or

remaining noncancellable lease terms in excess of one year as of December 31 2009 are as follows

Operating Leases Capital Leases

2010 72

2011 64

2012 50

2013 44

2014 32

Thereafter 101

Total minimum lease payments 363 20

Less imputed interest at rates ranging from 6.25% to 12.6%

Present value of minimum lease payments 16

Of the $16 million in capital lease obligations above $13 million is included in long-term debt payable to third

parties and $3 million is included in accounts payable and accrued expenses on the Consolidated Balance Sheet as

of December 31 2009

Legal Matters

The Company is occasionally subject to litigation or other legal proceedings Set forth below is description of

the Companys significant pending legal matters Although the estimated range of loss if any for the pending legal

matters described below cannot be estimated at this time the Company does not believe that the outcome of these

or any other pending legal matters individually or collectively will have material adverse effect on the business

or financial condition of the Company although such matters may have material adverse effect on the Companys

results of operations or cash flows in particular period

Snapple Litigation Labeling Claims

Snapple Beverage Corp has been sued in various jurisdictions generally alleging that Snapples labeling of

certain of its drinks is misleading and/or deceptive These cases have been filed as class actions and generally seek

unspecified damages on behalf of the class including enjoining Snapple from various labeling practices disgorging

profits reimbursing of monies paid for product and treble damages The cases and their status are as follows

In 2007 Snapple Beverage Corp was sued by Stacy Holk in New Jersey Superior Court Monmouth County

Subsequent to filing the Holk case was removed to the United States District Court District of New Jersey

Snapple filed motion to dismiss the Holk case on variety of grounds In June 2008 the district court

granted Snapples motion to dismiss The plaintiff appealed and in August 2009 the appellate court reversed

the judgment and remanded to the district court for further proceedings

In 2007 the attorneys in the Holk case also filed new action in the United States District Court Southern

District of New York on behalf of plaintiffs Evan Weiner and Timothy McClausland This case was stayed

during the pendency of the Holk motion to dismiss and appeal This stay is now lifted the Company filed its

answer and the case is proceeding
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In April 2009 Snapple Beverage Corp was sued by Frances Von Koenig in the United States District Court

Eastern District of California motion to dismiss has been filed in the Von Koenig case

In August 2009 Guy Cadwell filed suit against Dr Pepper Snapple Group Inc in the United States District

Court Southern District of California This case has been transferred to the United States District Court

Eastern District of California and has been consolidated by that court with the Von Koenig case

The Company believes it has meritorious defenses to the claims asserted in each of these cases and will defend

itself vigorously However there is no assurance that the outcome of these cases will be favorable to the Company

Nicolas Steele Seven Up/RC Bottling Company Inc

Robert Jones Seven Up/RC Bottling Company of Southern California Inc

California Wage Audit

In 2007 one of the Companys subsidiaries Seven Up/RC Bottling Company Inc was sued by Robert Jones in

the Superior Court in the State of California Orange County alleging that its subsidiary failed to provide meal and

rest periods and itemized wage statements in accordance with applicable California wage and hour law The case

was filed as class action The class which has not yet been certified consists of employees who have held delivery

driver position in California in the past three years The potential class size could be substantially higher due to the

number of individuals who have held these positions over the three year period On behalf of the class the plaintiffs

claim lost wages waiting time penalties and other penalties for each violation of the statute The Company believes

it has meritorious defenses to the claims asserted and will defend itself vigorously However there is no assurance

that the outcome of this matter will be in its favor case filed by Nicholas Steele et al in the same court based on

similarfacts and causes of action but involving merchandisers has been settled for an amount that is not material to

the Company

The Company has been requested to conduct an audit of its meal and rest periods for all non-exempt employees

in California at the direction of the California Department of Labor At this time the Company has declined to

conduct such an audit until there is judicial clarification of the intent of the statute The Company cannot predict the

outcome of such an audit

Environmental Health and Safety Matters

The Company operates many manufacturing bottling and distribution facilities In these and other aspects of

the Companys business it is subject to variety of federal state and local environment health and safety laws and

regulations The Company maintains environmental health and safety policies and quality environmental health

and safety program designed to ensure compliance with applicable laws and regulations However the nature of the

Companys business exposes it to the risk of claims with respect to environmental health and safety matters and

there can be no assurance that material costs or liabilities will not be incurred in connection with such claims

The federal Comprehensive Environmental Response Compensation and Liability Act of 1980 CERCLA
also known as the Superfund law as well as similar state laws generally impose joint and several liability for

cleanup and enforcement costs on current and former owners and operators of site without regard to fault of the

legality of the original conduct DPS has been notified that it is potentially responsible party for study and cleanup

costs at Superfund site An estimate of $250 thousand has been recorded for our share of costs related to the study

for the site Investigation and remediation costs are yet to be determined and cannot be reasonably estimated

21 Segments

Due to the integrated nature of DPS business model the Company manages its business to maximize

profitability for the Company as whole Prior to DPS separation from Cadbury it maintained its books and

records managed its business and reported its results based on International Financial Reporting Standards

IFRS DPS segment information has been prepared and presented on the basis which management uses to
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assess the performance of the Companys segments which is principally in accordance with IFRS In addition the

Companys current segment reporting structure is largely the result of acquiring and combining various portions of
its business over the past several years As result profitability trends in individual

segments may not be consistent
with the profitability of the company as whole or comparable to DPS competitors

The Company presents segment information in accordance with U.S GAAP which established
reporting and

disclosure standards for an enterprises operating segments Operating segments are defined as components of an

enterprise that are businesses for which separate financial information is available and for which the financial

information is regularly reviewed by the Companys leadership team

As of December 31 2009 the Companys operating structure consisted of the following three operating

segments

The Beverage Concentrates segment reflects sales of the Companys branded concentrates to third party
bottlers primarily in the United States and Canada Most of the brands in this segment are CSD brands

The Packaged Beverages segment reflects sales in the United States and Canada from the manufacture and
distribution of finished beverages and other products including sales of the Companys own brands and third

party brands through both DSD and WD systems

The Latin America Beverages segment reflects sales in the Mexico and Caribbean markets from the

manufacture and distribution of both concentrates and finished beverages

Segment results are based on management reports Net sales and SOP are the significant financial measures
used to assess the operating performance of the Companys operating segments

Information about the Companys operations by operating segment for the years ended December 31 2009
2008 and 2007 is as follows in millions

For the Year Ended December 31

2009 2008 2007

Segment Results Net sales

Beverage Concentrates 1063 983 984

Packaged Beverages 4111 4305 4295
Latin America Beverages 357 422 416

Net sales as reported 5531 5710 5695
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40
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868
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40

622

483

86
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259

1039
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168

225
18

18

33

51

54

608

564

96

1268

253

76

71

1004

189

For the Year Ended December 31

2009 2008 2007

Segment Results SOP

Beverage Concentrates

Packaged Beverages

Latin America Beverages

Total SOP

Unallocated corporate costs

Impairment of goodwill and intangible assets

Restructuring costs

Other operating income expense

Income loss from operations

Interest expense net

Other income net

Income loss before provision for income taxes and equity in

earnings of unconsolidated subsidiaries as reported 375 817

For the Year Ended December 31

2009 2008 2007

Amortization

Beverage Concentrates
15

Packaged Beverages

Latin America Beverages

Segment total
49

Corporate and other

Amortization as reported
49

For the Year Ended December 31

2009 2008 2007

Depreciation

Beverage Concentrates
14 13 12

Packaged Beverages
134 109 102

Latin America Beverages
10

Segment total
157 132 123

Corporate
and other

10

Adjustments and eliminations

Depreciation as reported
167 141 $120
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For the Year Ended

December 31

2009 2008

Total assets

Beverage Concentrates 91 87

Packaged Beverages 911 842

Latin America Beverages 64 51

Segment total 1066 980

Corporate and other 43 18

Adjustments and eliminations

Property plant and equipment net as reported 1109 990

Current assets as reported 1279 1237

All other non-current assets as reported 6388 6411

Total assets as reported 8776 8638

Geographic Data

The Company utilizes separate legal entities for transactions with customers outside of the United States

Information about the Companys operations by geographic region for 2009 2008 and 2007 is below

For the Year Ended December 31

2009 2008 2007

Net sales

United States 4968 5070 5069

International 563 640 626

Net sales as reported 5531 5710 5695

For the Year Ended

December 31

2009 2008

Property plant and equipment net

United States 1044 935

International 65 55

Property plant and equipment net as reported 1109 990

Major Customer

Wal-Mart Inc Wal-Mart represents one of our major customers and accounted for more than 10% of our

total net sales For the years ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007 we recorded net sales to Wal-Mart of

$733 million $639 million and $588 million respectively These represent direct sales from us to Wal-Mart and

were reported in our Packaged Beverages and Latin America Beverages segments

Additionally customers in our Beverage Concentrates segment buy concentrate from us which is used in

finished goods sold by our third party bottlers to Wal-Mart These indirect sales further increase the concentration of

risk associated with DPS consolidated net sales as it relates to Wal-Mart
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22 Related Party Transactions

Separation from Cadbury

Upon the Companys separation from Cadbury the Company settled outstanding receivable debt and payable

balances with Cadbury except for amounts due under the Separation and Distribution Agreement Transition

Services Agreement Tax Indemnity Agreement and Employee Matters Agreement Post separation there were no

expenses
allocated to DPS from Cadbury See Note for information on the accounting for the separation from

Cadbury

Allocated Expenses

Cadbury allocated certain costs to the Company including costs for certain corporate
functions provided for

the Company by Cadbury These allocations were based on the most relevant allocation method for the services

provided To the extent expenses were paid by Cadbury on behalf of the Company they were allocated based upon

the direct costs incurred Where specific identification of expenses was not practicable the costs of such services

were allocated based upon the most relevant allocation method to the services provided primarily either as

percentage of net sales or headcount of the Company The Company was allocated $6 million and $161 million for

the years ended December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively Beginning January 2008 the Company directly

incurred and recognized significant portion of these costs thereby reducing the amounts subject to allocation

through the methods described above

Cash Management

Prior to separation the Companys cash was historically available for use and was regularly swept by Cadbury

operations in the United States at Cadburys discretion Cadbury also funded the Companys operating and investing

activities as needed Transfers of cash both to and from Cadburys cash management system were reflected as

component of Cadburys net investment in the Companys Consolidated Balance Sheets Post separation the

Company has funded its liquidity needs from cash flow from operations

Receivables

The Company held note receivable balance with wholly-owned subsidiaries of Cadbury with outstanding

principal balances of $1527 million as of December 31 2007 The Company recorded $19 million and $57 million

of interest income for the years ended December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively

The Company had other related party receivables of $66 million as of December 31 2007 which primarily

related to taxes accrued interest receivable from the notes with wholly owned subsidiaries of Cadbury and other

operating activities

Payables

As of December 31 2007 the Company had related party payable balance of $175 million which represented

non-interest bearing payable
balances with companies owned by Cadbury related party

accrued interest payable

associated with interest bearing notes and related party payables for sales of goods and services with companies

owned by Cadbury

Long-term Obligations

Prior to separation the Company had variety of debt agreements with other wholly-owned subsidiaries of

Cadbury that were unrelated to the Companys business The Company recorded interest expense
of $67 million and

$227 million for the years ended December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively
related to interest bearing related party

debt

118



DR PEPPER SNAPPLE GROUP INC

NOTES TO AUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

23 Guarantor and Non-Guarantor Financial Information

The Companys 2011 2012 2013 2018 and 2038 Notes collectively the Notes are fully and uncondi

tionally guaranteed by substantially all of the Companys existing and future direct and indirect domestic

subsidiaries except two immaterial subsidiaries associated with the Companys charitable foundations the

Guarantors as defined in the indenture governing the notes The Guarantors are wholly-owned either directly or

indirectly by the Company and jointly and severally guarantee the Companys obligations under the notes None of

the Companys subsidiaries organized outside of the United States guarantee the notes collectively the Non
Guarantors

The following schedules present the information for the Guarantors and Non-Guarantors for the years ended

December 31 2009 2008 and 2007 and as of December 31 2009 and 2008 The consolidating schedules are

provided in accordance with the reporting requirements for guarantor subsidiaries

On May 2008 Cadbury plc transferred its Americas Beverages business to Dr Pepper Snapple Group Inc
which became an independent publicly-traded company Prior to the transfer Dr Pepper Snapple Group Inc did not

have any operations Accordingly activity for Dr Pepper Snapple Group Inc the Parent is reflected in the

consolidating statements from May 2008 forward

Condensed Consolidating Statement of Operations

For the Year Ended December 31 2009

Parent Guarantors Non-Guarantors Eliminations Total

In millions

Net sales 5037 494 5531

Cost of sales
_______

2028 206
_______ 2234

Gross profit 3009 288 3297

Selling general and administrative

expenses 1954 181 2135

Depreciation and amortization 114 117

Impairment of goodwill and intangible

assets

Restructuring costs

Other operating expense income 38 40
Income loss from operations 979 106 1085

Interest
expense 247 112 116 243

Interest income 116 116

Other income expense 23 24 25
_______ 22

Income loss before provision for

income taxes and equity in earnings of

subsidiaries 108 892 84 868

Provision for income taxes 50 336 29 315

Income loss before equity in earnings

of subsidiaries 58 556 55 553

Equity in earnings loss of consolidated

subsidiaries 613 57 670

Equity in earnings of unconsolidated

subsidiaries net of tax

Net income loss 555 613 57 670 555
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Net sales

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Selling general and administrative

expenses

Depreciation and amortization

Impairment of goodwill and intangible

assets

Restructuring costs

Other operating expense income

Loss income from operations

Interest expense

Interest income

Other income expense

Loss income before provision for

income taxes and equity in earnings of

subsidiaries

Provision for income taxes

Loss income before equity in earnings

of subsidiaries

Equity in loss earnings of consolidated

subsidiaries

Equity in earnings of unconsolidated

subsidiaries net of tax

Net loss income

Condensed Consolidating Statement of Operations

For the Year Ended December 31 2008

Parent Guarantors Non-Guarantors Eliminations Total

In millions

$5137 587

2348 256
______ _______

2789 331

1875 2075

105 113

1039 1039

55 57

291 123 168

192 321 256 257

132 148 256 32

19 18

41 464 130 375

24 78 41 61

17 386 89 314

414 65 349

431 321 91 349 312

200

14

14

5710

2590

3120
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Net sales

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Selling general and administrative

expenses

Depreciation and amortization

Impairment of intangible assets

Restructuring costs

Other operating income expense

Income from operations

Interest expense

Interest income

Other income expense

Income before provision for income taxes

and equity in earnings of subsidiaries

Provision for income taxes

Income before equity in earnings of

subsidiaries

Equity in earnings of consolidated

subsidiaries

Equity in earnings of unconsolidated

subsidiaries net of tax

Net income loss

Condensed Consolidating Statement of Operations

For the Year Ended December 31 2007

Parent Guarantors Non-Guarantors Eliminations Total

In millions

5131 575

_______
2336 239

______ _______

2795 336

2018

98

76

_______ _______ 71

1004

253

64

_______ _______

817

______ ______ ______
322

495

11
11

5695

2564

3131

1828

91

63

71

878

224

48

702

280

422

423

190

13

126

29

16

115

42
______

73

75 497
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Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Accounts receivable

Trade net of allowances of $0 $5

$2 $0 and $7 respectively

Other

Related party
receivable

Inventories

Deferred tax assets

Prepaid and other current assets

Total current assets

Property plant and equipment net

Investments in consolidated

subsidiaries

Investments in unconsolidated

subsidiaries

Goodwill

Other intangible assets net

Long-term receivable related parties

Other non-current assets

Non-current deferred tax assets

Total assets

Current liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued

expenses

Related party payable

Income taxes payable

Total current liabilities

Long-term debt payable to third parties

Long-term debt payable to related

parties

Deferred tax liabilities

Other non-current liabilities

Total liabilities

Total stockholders equity

Total liabilities and stockholders

equity

62

70

Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheet

As of December 31 2009

Parent Guarantors Non-Guarantors Eliminations

In millions

191 89

485 55

24

13 17
234 28

49

79 10 23

92 997 207 17

1044 65

3085 471 3556

Total

280

540

32

262

53

_______
112

1279

1109

2983

2702

3644
543

151

7217 8776

850

17

17 854

2960

3644

1038

737

3661 5589

3556 3187

22

78

38

151

578

2961

2624

3172 434

425 110

6774 8641

78 710

13

723

14

3209

1015

595

5556

3085

78

2946

434

129

3587

3187

23

13

107

471

6774 8641
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Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheet

As of December 31 2008

Parent Guarantors Non-Guarantors Eliminations Total

In millions

145 69 214

481 51 532

49 51

27 619 652

240 23 263

12 78 93

24 54 84

63 1666 160 652 1237

935 55 990

2413 2793

12 12

380

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Accounts receivable

Trade net of allowances of $0 $11

$2 $0 and $13 respectively

Other

Related party receivable

Inventories

Deferred tax assets

Prepaid and other current assets

Total current assets

Property plant and equipment net

Investments in consolidated

subsidiaries

Investments in unconsolidated

subsidiaries

Goodwill

Other intangible assets net

Long-term receivable related parties

Other non-current assets

Non-current deferred tax assets

Total assets

Current liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued

expenses

Related party payable

Income taxes payable

Total current liabilities

Long-term debt payable to third parties

Long-term debt payable to related

parties

Deferred tax liabilities

Other non-current liabilities

Total liabilities

Total stockholders equity

Total liabilities and stockholders

equity

2961

2639

3989

451 106

6916 8687

78

614

692

3505

667

28

695

17

22 2983

73 2712

3989
564

140 140

469 7434 8638

51 796

10 652

66 652 801

3522

3989
15 981

727

89 4641 6031

380 2793 2607

3989

966

112 607

4309 6274

2607 2413

6916 8687 469 7434 8638
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Operating activities

Net cash provided by operating activities

Investing activities

Purchases of investments and intangible assets

Proceeds from disposals of intangible assets

Purchases of property plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposals of property plant and

equipment

Issuances of notes receivable net

Proceeds from repayments of notes receivable

net

Net cash used in provided by investing

activities

Financing activities

Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt

related to guarantors non-guarantors

Proceeds from senior unsecured notes

Proceeds from stock options exercised

Proceeds from senior unsecured credit facility

Repayment of senior unsecured credit facility

Repayment of long-term debt related to

guarantors non-guarantors

Deferred financing charges paid

Other net

Net cash provided by used in financing

activities

Cash and cash equivalents net change

from

Operating investing and financing activities

Currency translation

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of

period

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period

398 398

Condensed Consolidating Statement of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended December 31 2009

Parent Guarantors Non-Guarantors Eliminations Total

In millions

215 1023 57

63

302 15

865

69

317

251

850

405

1805

370 35 405

398 398

398 612 44

370 35 405

850

405

1805

181 366 554

45 13 60

145 69 214

191 89 280
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Operating activities

Net cash provided by operating activities

Investing activities

Purchases of property plant and equipment

Issuances of notes receivable net

Proceeds from repayments of notes receivable

net

Other net _______

Net cash used in provided by investing

activities

Financing activities

Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt

related to separation

Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt

related to guarantors non-guarantors

Proceeds from senior unsecured notes

Proceeds from bridge loan facility

Proceeds from senior unsecured credit facility

Repayment of senior unsecured credit facility

Repayment of long-term debt related to

separation

Repayment of long-term debt related to

guarantors/ non-guarantors

Repayment of bridge loan facility

Deferred financing charges paid

Change in Cadburys net investment

Other net ______ _______

Net cash provided by used in financing

activities

Cash and cash equivalents net change

from

Operating investing and financing activities

Currency translation

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of

period ______ ______ ______ ______

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period ______ ______ ______ ______

Condensed Consolidating Statement of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended December 31 2008

Eliminations Total

709

304

4526 165

24 1540

4502 1074

Parent Guarantors Non-Guarantors

In millions

125 736 98

288 16

3888 776 27

1488 76

3888 424 36

1615

614 24

1700

1700

2200

395

1615

3888 4526

1700

1700

2200

395

4653 11 4664

24 24

1700

106

1889 82 1971

1700

106

4013 1043

117

28

145

4502 1625

158

11

93

41

11

39

69

67

214
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Condensed Consolidating Statement of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended December 31 2007

Parent Guarantors Non-Guarantors Eliminations Total

in millions

Operating activities

Net cash provided by operating activities 504 99 603

Investing activities

Acquisition of subsidiaries net of cash 30 30
Purchases of investments and intangible

assets

Proceeds from disposals of intangible assets 98 98

Purchases of property plant and equipment 218 12 230

Proceeds from disposals of property plant and

equipment

Group transfer of property plant and

equipment

Issuances of notes receivable net 1441 496 1937

Proceeds from repayments of notes receivable

net 604 404 _____ 1008

Net cash used in investing activities 985 102 1087

Financing activities

Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt 2845 2845

Repayment long-term debt 3130 325 3455
Excess tax benefit on stock-based

compensation

Change in Cadburys net investment 773 348 1121

Net cash provided by financing activities 492 23 515

Cash and cash equivalents net change

from

Operating investing and financing activities 11 20 31

Currency translation

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of

period ______
16 19

______
35

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 29 38 67

24 Agreement with PepsiCo Inc

On December 2009 DPS agreed to license certain brands to PepsiCo Inc PepsiCo on closing of

PepsiCos proposed acquisitions of The Pepsi Bottling Group Inc PBG and PepsiAmericas Inc PAS
Under the new licensing agreements PepsiCo will distribute Dr Pepper Crush and Schweppes in the

U.S territories where these brands are currently distributed by PBG and PAS The same will apply for Dr Pepper

Crush Schweppes Vernors and Sussex in Canada and Squirt and Canada Dry in Mexico
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Under the agreements DPS will receive one-time cash payment of $900 million The new agreements will

have an initial period of twenty years
with automatic twenty year renewal periods and will require PepsiCo to meet

certain performance conditions The payment was recorded as deferred revenue which will be recognized as net

sales ratably over the estimated 25-year life of the customer relationship

Additionally in U.S territories where it has distribution footprint DPS will begin selling certain owned and

licensed brands including Sunkist soda Squirt Vemors and Hawaiian Punch that were previously distributed by

PBG and PAS

On February 26 2010 the Company completed the licensing of those brands to PepsiCo following PepsiCos

acquisitions of PBG and PAS
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25 Selected Quarterly Financial Data unaudited

The following table sunimarizes the Companys information on net sales gross profit net income and earnings

per share by quarter for the years ended December 31 2009 and 2008 This data was derived from the Companys
unaudited consolidated financial statements

For periods prior to May 2008 DPS financial data has been prepared on carve-out basis from Cadburys

consolidated financial statements using the historical results of operations assets and liabilities attributable to

Cadburys Americas Beverages business and including allocations of
expenses

from Cadbury The historical

Cadburys Americas Beverages information is the Companys predecessor financial information The results

included below are not necessarily indicative of DPS future performance and may not reflect the Companys
financial performance had the Company been an independent publicly-traded company

First Second Third Fourth
For the Year Ended December 31 Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter

In millions except per share data

2009

Net sales 1260 1481 1434 1356

Gross profit 729 885 855 828

Net income 132 158 151 114

Basic earnings per common share 0.52 0.62 0.59 0.45

Diluted earnings per common share 0.52 0.62 0.59 0.44

Dividend declared per share 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.15

Common stock price

High 17.87 23.21 28.75 30.09

Low 11.90 17.40 21.65 26.19

2008

Net sales 1295 1545 1494 1376

Gross profit 730 851 785 754

Net income 95 108 106 621
Basic earnings per common share2 0.38 0.42 0.41 2.44
Diluted earnings per common share2 0.38 0.42 0.41 2.44

Dividend declared per share 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Common stock price

High N/A 26.50 26.52 26.13

Low N/A 20.98 20.18 13.78

No common stock of DPS was traded prior to May 2008 and no DPS equity awards were outstanding for the

prior periods As of May 2008 the number of basic shares includes approximately 500000 shares related to

former Cadbury benefit plans converted to DPS shares on daily volume weighted average

In connection with the separation from Cadbury on May 2008 DPS distributed to Cadbury shareholders the

common stock of DPS On the date of the distribution 253.7 million shares of common stock were issued As
result on May 2008 the Company had 253.7 million shares of common stock outstanding and this share

amount is being utilized for the calculation of basic earnings per common share for all periods presented prior to

the date of the Distribution The same number of shares is being used for diluted earnings per common share as

for basic earnings per common share as no common stock of DPS was traded prior to May 2008 and no DPS

equity awards were outstanding for the prior periods
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26 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On February 2010 the Companys Board declared dividend of $0.15 per
share on the common stock of the

Company payable on April 2010 to the stockholders of record at the close of business on March 22 2010

On February 24 2010 the Board authorized the repurchase of an additional $800 million of the Companys

outstanding common stock for total of $1 billion authorized
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ITEM CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

Not applicable

ITEM 9A CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Based on evaluation of the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures as defined in Rule 3a- 15e
and 15d-15e of the Exchange Act our management including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial

Officer has concluded that as of December 31 2009 our disclosure controls and procedures are effective to

provide reasonable assurance that information required to be disclosed in the Exchange Act filings is recorded

processed summarized and reported within the time periods specified by the Securities and Exchange Conmiis

sions rules and forms and ii ensure that information required to be disclosed by us in the reports we file or submit

under the Exchange Act are accumulated and communicated to our management including our Chief Executive

Officer and Chief Financial Officer as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure

Management Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial

reporting as such term is defined in Rule 3a- 151 and 5d- 51of the Exchange Act Under the supervision of our

management including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer we conducted an evaluation of the

effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting In making its assessment of internal control over

financial reporting management used criteria issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the

Treadway Commission COSO in Internal Control-Integrated Framework Based on that evaluation our man
agement concluded that our internal control over financial reporting is effective as of December 31 2009

Attestation Report of the Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2009 has been audited by

Deloitte Touche LLP our independent registered public accounting firm as stated in their attestation report

which is included in Item Financial Statements and Supplementary Data of the Annual Report on Form 10-K

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

As of December 31 2009 management has concluded that there have been no changes in our internal controls

over financial reporting that occuned during our fourth quarter that have materially affected or are reasonably

likely to materially affect our internal control over financial reporting

ITEM 9B OTHER INFORMATION

On February 24 2010 our Board approved in amendment to our Change in Control Severance Plan CIC
Plan to add Broadband executives to the CIC Plan at severance multiple of 2.75 The preceding summary is

qualified in its entirety by reference to the full text of the amendment copy of which is attached to this Annual

Report on Form 10-K as Exhibit 10.40

On November 19 2009 our Board authorized the repurchase of shares of its common stock at an aggregate

purchase price of up to $200 million excluding conmiissions the Original Total Share Authorization On

February 242010 our Board authorized an $800 million increase in the Original Total Share Authorization so that

the authorization repurchase of shares of its common stock is $1 billion

On October 26 2009 we announced that we entered into letter agreement with our Chief Financial Officer

John Stewart regarding his early retirement and separation from the Company the Separation Agreement The

Separation Agreement contemplates that Mr Stewart would continue in his position until March 31 2010 to provide

support in preparing certain Company filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission and to assist in the

transition of the individual selected as his successor as chief financial officer Mr Stewarts successor will not
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commence employment until April 2010 On February 26 2010 the Companys Compensation Committee in

order to ease the transition to new chief financial officer approved an amendment the Amendment to the

Separation Agreement to reflect the extension of Mr Stewarts date of separation to May 21 2010 ii make

corresponding changes to the vesting and exercise dates of his equity awards and iii add new performance

requirement that Mr Stewart will provide support in preparing the Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ending

March 31 2010 as condition of receiving his Retention Bonus as defined in the Separation Agreement The

above description of the Amendment is summary and is qualified in its entirety by the Amendment itself which is

filed as Exhibit 10.17 to this Form 10-K

On February 26 2010 we announced that we completed the licensing of certain brands to PepsiCo following

PepsiCos acquisitions of PBG and PAS As part of the transaction we received one-time cash payment of

$900 million before taxes and other related fees and expenses
and used portion

of those proceeds to reduce our

total debt obligations to $2.55 billion in-line with our target capital structure of approximately 2.25 times total debt

to Earnings Before Interest Taxes Depreciation and Amortization EBITDA after certain adjustments Under

the new licensing agreements PepsiCo will distribute Dr Pepper Crush and Schweppes in the U.S territories where

these brands were formerly distributed by PBG and PAS The same will apply for Dr Pepper Crush Schweppes

Vernors and Sussex in Canada and Squirt and Canada Dry in Mexico The new agreements will have an initial term

of 20 years with 20-year renewal periods and will require PepsiCo to meet certain performance conditions

Additionally in U.S territories where it has manufacturing and distribution footprint DPS will shortly begin

selling certain owned and licensed brands including Sunkist soda Squirt Vemors and Hawaiian Punch that were

previously distributed by PBG and PAS The one-time cash payment of $900 million will be recorded as deferred

revenue and recognized as net sales ratably over the estimated 25 year life of the customer relationship

PART III

Pursuant to Instruction G3 to Form 10-K the information required in Items 10 through 14 is incorporated by

reference from our definitive proxy statement which is incorporated herein by reference

PART P1

ITEM 15 EXHIBITS FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

Financial Statements

The following financial statements are included in Part II Item Financial Statements and Supplementary

Data in this Annual Report on Form 10-K

Consolidated Statements of Operations for the years
ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31 2009 and 2008

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years
ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders Equity and Other Comprehensive Income Loss for

the years ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the years ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007

Exhibits

See Index to Exhibits
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EXHIBIT INDEX

2.1 Separation and Distribution Agreement between Cadbury Schweppes plc and Dr Pepper Snapple Group
Inc and solely for certain provisions set forth therein Cadbury plc dated as of May 2008 filed as

Exhibit 2.1 to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed on May 2008 and incorporated herein

by reference

3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Dr Pepper Snapple Group Inc filed as Exhibit 3.1

to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed on May 12 2008 and incorporated herein by

reference

3.2 Amended and Restated By-Laws of Dr Pepper Snapple Group Inc as of July 14 2009 filed as Exhibit 3.1

to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed on July 16 2009 and incorporated herein by

reference

4.1 Indenture dated April 30 2008 between Dr Pepper Snapple Group Inc and Wells Fargo Bank N.A
filed as Exhibit 4.1 to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed on May 2008 and

incorporated herein by reference

4.2 Form of 6.12% Senior Notes due 2013 filed as Exhibit 4.2 to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K

filed on May 2008 and incorporated herein by reference

4.3 Form of 6.82% Senior Notes due 2018 filed as Exhibit 4.3 to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K

filed on May 2008 and incorporated herein by reference

4.4 Form of 7.45% Senior Notes due 2038 filed as Exhibit 4.4 to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K

filed on May 2008 and incorporated herein by reference

4.5 Registration Rights Agreement dated April 30 2008 between Dr Pepper Snapple Group Inc
J.P Morgan Securities Inc Bane of America Securities LLC Goldman Sachs Co Morgan

Stanley Co Incorporated UBS Securities LLC BNP Paribas Securities Corp Mitsubishi UFJ
Securities IntematiLonal plc Scotia Capital USA Inc SunTrust Robinson Humphrey Inc Wachovia

Capital Markets LLC and TD Securities USA LLC filed as Exhibit 4.5 to the Companys Current

Report on Form 8-K filed on May 2008 and incorporated herein by reference

4.6 Registration Rights Agreement Joinder dated May 2008 by the subsidiary guarantors named therein

filed as Exhibit 4.2 to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed on May 12 2008 and

incorporated herein by reference

4.7 Supplemental Indenture dated May 2008 among Dr Pepper Snapple Group Inc the subsidiary

guarantors named therein and Wells Fargo Bank N.A as trustee filed as Exhibit 4.1 to the Companys
Current Report on Form 8-K filed on May 12 2008 and incorporated herein by reference

4.8 Second Supplemental Indenture dated March 17 2009 to be effective as of December 31 2008 among
Splash Transport Inc as subsidiary guarantor Dr Pepper Snapple Group Inc and Wells Fargo Bank
N.A as trustee filed as Exhibit 4.8 to the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K filed on March 26
2009 and incorporated herein by reference

4.9 Third Supplemental Indenture dated as of October 192009 among 234DPAviation LLC as subsidiary

guarantor Dr Pepper Snapple Group Inc and Wells Fargo Bank N.A as trustee filed as Exhibit 4.9 to

the Companys Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed on November 2009 and incorporated herein by

reference

4.10 Indenture dated as of December 15 2009 between Dr Pepper Snapple Group Inc and Wells Fargo Bank
N.A as trustee filed as Exhibit 4.1 to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed on December 23
2009 and incorporated herein by reference

4.11 First Supplemental Indenture dated as of December 21 2009 among Dr Pepper Snapple Group Inc the

guarantors party thereto and Wells Fargo Bank N.A as trustee filed as Exhibit 4.2 to the Companys
Current Report on Form 8-K filed on December 23 2009 and incorporated herein by reference

4.12 1.70% Senior Notes due 2011 in global form filed as Exhibit 4.3 to the Companys Current Report on

Form 8-K filed on December 23 2009 and incorporated herein by reference

4.13 2.35% Senior Notes due 2012 in global form filed as Exhibit 4.4 to the Companys Current Report on

Form 8-K filed on December 23 2009 and incorporated herein by reference

10.1 Transition Services Agreement between Cadbury Schweppes plc and Dr Pepper Snapple Group Inc
dated as of May 2008 filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed on

May 2008 and incorporated herein by reference
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10.2 Tax Sharing and Indemnification Agreement between Cadbury Schweppes plc and Dr Pepper Snapple

Group Inc and solely for the certain provision set forth therein Cadbury plc dated as of May 2008

filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed on May 2008 and

incorporated herein by reference

10.3 Employee Matters Agreement between Cadbury Schweppes plc and Dr Pepper Snapple Group Inc and

solely for certain provisions set forth therein Cadbury plc dated as of May 2008 filed as Exhibit 10.3 to

the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed on May 2008 and incorporated herein by reference

10.4l Agreement dated June 15 2004 between Cadbury Schweppes Bottling Group Inc which was merged

into The American Bottling Group and CROWN Cork Seal USA Inc filed as Exhibit 10.4 to

Amendment No to the Companys Registration Statement on Form 10 filed on February 12 2008 and

incorporated herein by reference

10.5t First Amendment to the Agreement between Cadbury Schweppes Bottling Group Inc which was merged

into The American Bottling Group and CROWN Cork Seal USA Inc dated August 25 2005 filed as

Exhibit 10.5 to Amendment No to the Companys Registration Statement on Form 10 filed on

February 12 2008 and incorporated herein by reference

10.6t Second Amendment to the Agreement between Cadbury Schweppes Bottling Group Inc now known as

The American Bottling Company and CROWN Cork Seal USA Inc dated June 21 2006 filed as

Exhibit 10.6 to Amendment No to the Companys Registration Statement on Form 10 filed on

February 12 2008 and incorporated herein by reference

10.7t Third Amendment to the Agreement between Cadbury Schweppes Bottling Group Inc now known as

The American Bottling Company and CROWN Cork Seal USA Inc dated April 2007 filed as

Exhibit 10.7 to Amendment No to the Companys Registration Statement on Form 10 filed on

February 12 2008 and incorporated herein by reference

10.8t Fourth Amendment to the Agreement between Cadbury Schweppes Bottling Group Inc now known as

The American Bottling Company and CROWN Cork Seal USA Inc dated September 27 2007 filed

as Exhibit 10.8 to Amendment No to the Companys Registration Statement on Form 10 filed on

February 12 2008 and incorporated herein by reference

10.9t Agreement dated April 2009 between The American Bottling Company and Crown Cork Seal USA

Inc filed as Exhibit 10.3 to the Companys Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed on May 13 2009 and

incorporated herein by reference

10.10 Form of Dr Pepper License Agreement for Bottles Cans and Pre-mix filed as Exhibit 10.9 to Amendment

No to the Companys Registration Statement on Form 10 filed on February 12 2008 and incorporated

herein by reference

10.11 Form of Dr Pepper Fountain Concentrate Agreement filed as Exhibit 10.10 to Amendment No to the

Companys Registration Statement on Form 10 filed on March 20 2008 and incorporated herein by

reference

10.12 Executive Employment Agreement dated as of October 15 2007 between CBI Holdings Inc now

known as DPS Holdings Inc and Larry Young filed as Exhibit 10.11 to Amendment No to the

Companys Registration Statement on Form 10 filed on February 12 2008 and incorporated herein by

reference
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filed on February 18 2009 and incorporated herein by reference
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Holdings Inc and Larry Young filed as Exhibit 10.3 to the Companys Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q

filed on August 13 2009 and incorporated herein by reference
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Companys Registration Statement on Form 10 filed on February 12 2008 and incorporated herein by

reference

10.16 Letter Agreement dated October 26 2009 between Dr Pepper Snapple Group Inc DPS Holdings Inc

and John Stewart filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed on

October 27 2009 and incorporated herein by reference
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Group Inc DPS Holding Inc and John Stewart

10.18 Executive Employment Agreement dated as of October 15 2007 between CBI Holdings Inc now
known as DPS Holdings Inc and Randall Gier filed as Exhibit 10.13 to Amendment No to the

Companys Registration Statement on Form 10 filed on February 12 2008 and incorporated herein by

reference

10.19 Executive Employment Agreement dated as of October 15 2007 between CBI Holdings Inc now
known as DPS Holdings Inc and James Johnston Jr filed as Exhibit 10.14 to Amendment No to

the Companys Registration Statement on Form 10 filed on February 12 2008 and incorporated herein

by reference
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James Johnston
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by reference
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reference
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10.24 Letter Agreement effective as of November 23 2008 between Dr Pepper Snapple Group Inc and Rodger

Collins
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Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed on May 12 2008 and incorporated herein by reference
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Current Report on Form 8-K filed on May 12 2008 and incorporated herein by reference
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Current Report on Form 8-K filed on May 12 2008 and incorporated herein by reference
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May 19 2009 filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed May 21
2009 and incorporated herein by reference

10.30 Dr Pepper Snapple Group Inc Management Incentive Plan of 2009 approved by the Stockholders on

May 19 2009 filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed May 21
2009 and incorporated herein by reference

10.31 Amended and Restated Credit Agreement among Dr Pepper Snapple Group Inc various lenders and

JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A as administrative agent dated April 11 2008 filed as Exhibit 10.22 to

Amendment No to the Companys Registration Statement on Form 10 filed on April 16 2008 and

incorporated herein by reference
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incorporated herein by reference
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Chase Bank N.A as administrative agent filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys Current Report on

Form 8-K filed on May 12 2008 and incorporated herein by reference
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reference
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Exhibit 99.1 to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed February 18 2009 and incorporated
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 the registrant has

duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized

Dr Pepper Snapple Group Inc

By Is John Stewart

Date February 26 2010 Name John Stewart

Title Executive Vice President and Chief

Financial Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 this report has been signed below by the

following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated

Date February 26 2010

By Is Larry Young

Name Larry Young

Title President Chief Executive Officer and

Director

Date February 26 2010

By Is John Stewart

Name John Stewart

Title Executive Vice President and Chief

Financial Officer

Date February 26 2010

By Is Angela Stephens

Name Angela Stephens

Title Senior Vice President and Controller

Principal Accounting Officer

Date February 26 2010

By Is Wayne Sanders

Name Wayne Sanders

Title Chairman

Date February 26 2010

Date February 26 2010

By

By

Is John Adams

Name John Adams

Title Director

Is Terence Martin

Name Terence Martin

Title Director
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By Is Pamela Patsley

Date February 26 2010

Date February 26 2010

Date February 26 2010

Date February 26 2010

Date February 26 2010

By

By

By

By

Name Pamela Patsley

Title Director

Is Ronald Rogers

Name Ronald Rogers

Title Director

Is Jack Stahl

Name Jack Stahl

Title Director

Is Anne Szostak

Name Anne Szostak

Title Director

/s Mike Weinstein

Name Mike Weinstein

Title Director
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stockholderinformalion

Corporate Headquarters

Dr Pepper Snappie Group Inc

5301 Legacy Drive

Piano TX 75024

972 673-7000

www.drpeppersnapple.com

Annual Meeting of Stockholders

Stockholders are invited to attend the

2010 annual meeting of stockholders

to be held at 10 a.m CDT on Tuesday

May 20 2010 at

Westin Stonebriar Resort

Conference Center

1549 Legacy Drive

Frisco TX 75034

Form 10-K

Copies of Dr Pepper Snapple Group

Inc.s Annual Report to the Securities

and Exchange Commission on Form

10-K may be obtained without cost by

submitting request to the attention

of the investor relations department

at corporate headquarters or via the

investor center section of the Web site

at www.drpeppersnapple.com

Common Stock

The Companys Class common stock is

traded on the New York Stock Exchange

under the trading symbol DPS

There were 254115758 shares of our

common stock issued and outstanding

as of February 19 2010

Transfer Agent for Common Stock

Computershare Investor Services

250 Royall Street

Canton MA 02021

877 745-9312

Independent Registered Public

Accounting Firm

Deloitte Touche LLP

2200 Ross Avenue

Suite 1600

Dallas TX 75201

Investor Information

Earnings and other financial results

corporate news and other company

information are available at

www.drpeppersnapple.com Investors

wanting further information about DPS

should contact the investor relations

department at corporate headquarters

at 972 673-7000 or http/investor

drpeppersnapple.com/contactus.cfm

Trademark Information

This publication contains many of our owned

or licensed trademarks and trade names

which we refer to as our brands Big Red

is registered trademark of Big Red Ltd

used under license Country Time is

registered trademark owned and licensed

by Kraft Foods Inc Roses is registered

trademark of Cadbury Ireland Ltd used

under license Stewarts is registered

trademark of Stewarts Restaurants Inc

used under license Sunkist is trademark

of Sunkist Growers Inc used under license

Welchs is registered trademark of Welch

Foods Inc Cooperative Concord Mass

McDonalds is the registered trademark of

McDonalds Corporation and its affiliates

Super Bowl is registered trademark of the

National Football League Iron Man is

registered trademark of Marvel Characters

Inc Jack in the Box is registered trademark

of Jack in the Box Inc All other product

names and logos are registered trademarks

of DPS or its subsidiaries
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